
October 18, 2011 

VIA FEDERAL EXPRESS ^ ^ $ 20 | / 
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania DA p i» Q , l r t 

PENNSYLVANIA PUBLIC UTILITY COMMISSION 1 n 'WOLIC UT/LITV rnAiiM.« 
Attn: Commission Secretary S E C ^ W s ft,V™,SS/0/y 
Keystone BUILDING ' g ^ T O H / 
2n^FIoor, Room N201 
Harrisburg, PA 17120 

RE: APPLICATION FORM FOR PARITIES WISHING TO OFFER, RENDER, FURNISH OR SUPPLY ELECTRICITY 
OF ELECTRJC GENERATION SERVICE TO THE PUBLIC IN THE COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA 

APPLICANT: GDF SUEZ RETAIL ENERGY SOLUTIONS LLC, D/B/A THINK ENERGY 

Executive Secretary: 

Pursuant to the Requirements for Electric Suppliers, 66 Pa. C.S. Section 2809, and the regulations of the Pennsylvania 
Public Utility Commission, GDF Suez Retail Energy Solutions, LLC (GSRES) hereby submits its Application to Offer, Render, 
Furnish or Supply Electricity to the Public in the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania. 

Enclosed for filing, please find the following: 
1. One (1) original and one copy of the GSRES Application to Offer, Render, Furnish or Supply Electricity to the Public in 

the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania; 
2. An electronic version on CD-rom of the application and all exhibits; and 
3. A $350.00 check for the Application Filing Fee. 

In accordance with 52 Pa. Code § 54.34, GSRES will notify the Commission immediately of any material change in the 
information provided in this license application during the pendency of the application, or while the licensee is operating in 
Pennsylvania. 

Applicant respectfully requests that this application review process be expedited to the extent possible, as applicant is a 
newly-formed entity that is wholly-owned by GDF Suez Energy Resources NA, Inc., an active participant in the State of 
Pennsylvania retail electric market serving large commercial and industrial customers under license no. A-110156, issued 
September 25, 2022. GSRES is a newly-formed subsidiary, established to serve the small commercial market in 
Pennsylvania beginning early 2012. GSRES wid begin testing and system integration for serving the PA market in the 
upcoming months. Please do not hesitate to contact me with any questions or to request additional information that may 
assist in expediting this process. Thank you in advance for your assistance. 

Regards, 

Naveen Rabie 
Counsel 
Email: Naveen.rabie@gdfsuezna.com 
Office: 713-636-1607 
Fax: 713-636-1601 

GDF Suez Retail Energy Solutions, LLC 
1990 Post Oak Blvd, Suite 1900 

Houston. Texas 77056 



BEFORE THE PENNSYLVANIA PUBLIC UTILITY COMMISSION 

Application of GDF Suez Retail Energy Solutions, LLC for approval to offer, render, furnish, or sifpgipigttygtty pf ejectrtc 
generation services as a Supplier of Electricity to the Public in the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania. 

To the Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission: Q Q j j ^ 
20// 

1 • IDENTIFICATION AND CONTACT INFORMATION ^ ^S^Rf jJ f l ^ ^ M / S S / O W 

a. IDENTITY OF THE APPLICANT: Provide name (including any fictitious name or d/b/a), primary address, web 
address, and telephone number of Applicant: 

GDF Suez Energy Retail Solutions, LLC 
1990 Post Oak Blvd, Suite 1900 
Houston, Texas 77056 
www.gdfsuezenergyna.com 
713-636-0000 
1 -866-252-0078 

b. PENNSYLVANIA ADDRESS / REGISTERED AGENT: If the Applicant maintains a primary address outside of 
Pennsylvania, provide the name, address, telephone number, and fax number of the Applicant's secondary office 
within Pennsylvania. If the Applicant does not maintain a physical location within Pennsylvania, provide the name, 
address, telephone number, and fax number of the Applicant's Registered Agent within Pennsylvania. 

Capital Corporate Services 
600 North Second Street 
Harrisburg, PA 17101 
Phone: 1-800-345-4647 
Fax: 1-800-432-3622 

c. REGULATORY CONTACT: Provide the name, title, address, telephone number, fax number, and e-mail address 
of the person to whom questions about this Application should be addressed. 

Naveen Rabie, Counsel 
1900 Post Oak Blvd, Suite 1900 
Houston, Texas 77056 
713-636-1607 
Fax: 713-636-1601 
Naveen.Rabie@gdfsuezna.com 

d. ATTORNEY: Provide the name, address, telephone number, fax number, and e-mail address of the Applicant's 
attorney. If the Applicant is not using an attorney, explicitly state so. 

Jason Austin, General Counsel and Vice President 
1900 Post Oak Blvd, Suite 1900 
Houston, Texas 77056 
713-636-1742 
Fax: 713-636-1601 
Jason.Austin@gdfsuezna.com 

e. CONTACTS FOR CONSUMER SERVICE AND COMPLAINTS: Provide the name, title, address, telephone 
number, FAX number, and e-mail of the person and an alternate person responsible for addressing customer 
complaints. These persons will ordinarily be the initial point(s) of contact for resolving complaints filed with the 
Applicant, the Electric Distribution Company, the Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission, or other agencies. The 
main contact's information will be listed on the Commission website list of licensed EGSs. 

Contact for Complaints 
Laura Persson 
Director, Operations & Customer Care 
1990 Post Oak Blvd, Suite 1900 
Houston, Texas 77056 
713-636-1293 
Laura.persson@gdfsuezna.com 



Customer Care 
VERTEX Business Solutions 
Billing, Customer Care, Account Services, Call Center, Process Outsourcing, Customer Management 
Michael August 
Vertex Representative 
250 East Arapaho Road, Suite 100, Richardson, Texas 75081 
1-866-252-0078 
214-576-1000 
www.vertexgroup.com; info@vertexna.com 



2 . BUSINESS ENTITY FILINGS AND REGISTRATION 

a. FICTITIOUS NAME: (Select appropriate statement and provide supporting documentation as listed.) 

J The Applicant will be using a fictitious name or doing business as ("d/b/a") 

Provide a copy of the Applicant's filing with Pennsylvania's Department of State pursuant to 54 Pa. C.S. §311, 
Form PA-953. 

or 
X The Applicant will not be usinq a fictitious name. 

b. BUSINESS ENTITY AND DEPARTMENT OF STATE FILINGS: 
(Select appropriate statement and provide supporting documentation. As well, understand that Domestic means being 
formed within Pennsylvania and foreign means being formed outside Pennsylvania.) 

• The Applicant is a: 

Q domestic corporation (15 Pa. C.S. §1308) 
• foreign corporation (15 Pa. C.S. §4124) 

Q domestic limited liability company (15 Pa. C.S. §8913) 
X foreign limited liability company (15 Pa. C.S. $8981) 

Q Other (Describe): 

Provide proof of compliance with appropriate Department of State filing requirements as indicated above. 
See Exhibit 1 

Provide the state in which the business is incorporated/organized/formed and provide a copy of the 
Applicant's charter documentation. 

See Exhibit 1 

Give name and address of officers. 
See Exhibit 2 



3. AFFILIATES AND PREDECESSORS 

(both in state and out of state) 

a. AFFILIATES: Give name and address of any affiliate(s) currently doing business and state whether the affiliate(s) are 
jurisdictional public utilities. If the Applicant does not have any affiliates doing business, explicitly state so. Also, state 
whether the applicant has any affiliates that are currently applying to do business in Pennsylvania. 

Applicant's parent company and sole managing member, GDF Suez Energy Resources NA, Inc., is the 
retail operating group arm of GDF Suez Energy NA, Inc., its parent company that engages in electricity 
generation and cogeneration, natural gas and LNG, renewable energy, and asset-based trading and 
origination. GDF Suez Energy Resources NA, Inc. does business in the State of Pennsylvania as a licensed 
electric supplier, under license no. A-110156, issued 9/25/2002. GDF Suez Energy Resources NA, Inc. 
serves medium and large commercial and industrial customers. GDF Suez Energy Resources NA, Inc. is 
also a licensed competitive retail electric supplier that serves approximately 4,500 businesses and 60,000 
accounts in the United States in Connecticut, Massachusetts, Delaware, Illinois, Texas, New York, New 
Jersey, Maryland, Maine, the District of Columbia, and Ohio. Applicant is formed to manage the small 
commercial market. Applicant will operate as a licensed completive retail electric supplier in the States listed 
above and will focus of marketing to and serving the small commercial market in these states. 

b. PREDECESSORS: Identify the predecessor(s) of the Applicant and provide the name(s) under which the Applicant 
has operated within the preceding five (5) years, including address, web address, and teiephone number, if applicable. 
If the Applicant does not have any predecessors that have done business, explicitly state so. 

Applicant does not have a predecessor. 



4. OPERATIONS 

a. APPLICANT'S PRESENT OPERATIONS: (select and complete the appropriate statement) 

X_ The Applicant is not presently doing business in Pennsylvania. 

b. APPLICANT'S PROPOSED OPERATIONS: The Applicant proposes to operate as a (may check multiple): 

Q Generator of electricity 
X_ Supplier of electricity 

Q Aggregator engaged in the business of supplying electricity 

Q Broker/Marketer engaged in the business of supplying electricity services 

Q Electric Cooperative and supplier of electric power 

Q Other (Describe): 

Definitions 

Supplier - an entity that sells electricity to end-use customers utilizing the jurisdictional transmission and 
distribution facilities of an EDC. 
Aggregator - an entity that purchases electric energy and takes title to electric energy as an intermediary for 
sale to retail customers. 
Broker/Marketer - an entity that acts as an intermediary in the sale and purchase of electric energy but does 
not take title to electric energy. 

c. PROPOSED SERVICES: Describe in detail the electric services or the electric generation services which the Applicant 
proposes to offer. 

GDF Suez Retail Energy Solutions LLC wilt market to and sell electric energy supply in the competitive retail 
market small commercial customers in the State of Pennsylvania, in the following utility territories: PECO, 
PPL, MedEd, Penelec, Allegheny Power (West Penn Power); Duquesne Light Co, and Penn Power. GDF 
Suez Retail Energy Solutions LLC will offer a variety of electric energy products to customers including fixed-
price products and index-based products. GDF Suez Retail Energy Solutions LLC will offer a variety of electric 
energy .products to customers including fixed-price products and index-based products. GDF Suez's 
marketing initiative for entry into the PA small commercial market is a multi-channel strategy to reach 
customers through: (i) a variety of dedicated sales channels such as direct customer sales through an e-
channel (internet based sales), agent representatives (i.e. door-to-door sales) and telesales, which will 
exclusively market and sell GDF Suez's products and services; and (ii) non-dedicated sales channels such as 
consultants, aggregators, and brokers that function as a customer representative and solicit products and 
services from GDF Suez, as well as other suppliers, on the customer's behalf. 

d. PROPOSED SERVICE AREA: Provide a list of each Electric Distribution Company for which the Applicant proposes 
to provide service. 

PECO 
PPL (Pennsylvania Power and Light) 
Metropolitan Edison 
Pennsylvania Electric 
Allegheny Power (West Penn Power) 
Duquesne Light Co 
Pennsylvania Power. 

e. CUSTOMERS: Applicant proposes to provide services to: 

Q Residential Customers 
X_ Small Commercial Customers - (25 kW and Under) 
X Large Commercial Customers - (Over 25 kW) 
• 
• 
• 
• 

Industrial Customers 

Governmental Customers 

All of above 

Other (Describe): 



f. PROPOSED MARKETING METHOD (check all that apply) 

X Internal - Applicant will use its own internal resources/employees for marketing 
X External EGS - Applicant will contract with a PUC LICENSED EGS broker/marketer 

C3 Affiliate - Applicant will use a NON-EGS affiliate marketing company and or individuals. 
X External Third-Party - Applicant will contract with a NON-EGS third party marketing company and or 

individuals 
• Other (Describe): 

g. DOOR TO DOOR SALES: Will the Applicant be implementing door to door sales activities? 

X Yes 

Q No" 

If yes, will the Applicant be using a Third Party Verification procedure? 

X Yes 

• No 

If yes, describe the Applicant's Third Party Verification procedures. 

See Exhibit 3 

h. START DATE: Provide the approximate date the Applicant proposes to begin services within the Commonwealth. 

January 2012 



5. COMPLIANCE 

a. CRIMINAL/CIVIL PROCEEDINGS: State specifically whether the Applicant, an affiliate, a predecessor of either, or a 
person identified in this Application, has been or is currently the defendant of a criminal or civil proceeding within the 
last five (5) years. 

Identify all such proceedings (active or closed), by name, subject and citation; whether before an administrative body or 
in a judicial forum. If the Applicant has no proceedings to list, explicitly state such. 

Applicant has no proceedings to list. 

b. SUMMARY: If applicable; provide a statement as to the resolution or present status of any such proceedings listed 
above. 

Not Applicable. 

c. CUSTOMER/REGULATORY/PROSECUTORY ACTIONS: Identify all formal or escalated actions or complaints filed 
with or by a customer, regulatory agency, or prosecutory agency against the Applicant, an affiliate, a predecessor of 
either, or a person identified in this Application, for the prior five (5) years, including but not limited to customers, Utility 
Commissions, and Consumer Protection Agencies such as the Offices of Attorney General. If the Applicant has no 
actions or complaints to list, explicitly state such. 

Applicant has no actions or complaints to list. 

d. SUMMARY: If applicable; provide a statement as to the resolution or present status of any actions listed above. 

Not Applicable. 



6. PROOF OF SERVICE 

a. 

(Example Certificate of Service is attached at Appendix C) 

STATUTORY AGENCIES: Pursuant to Section 5.14 of the Commission's Regulations, 52 Pa. Code §5.14, provide 
proof of service of a signed and verified Application with attachments on the following: 

Office of Consumer Advocate 
5th Floor, Forum Place 
555 Walnut Street 
Harrisburg, PA 17120 

Office of the Small Business Advocate 
Commerce Building, Suite 1102 
300 North Second Street 
Harrisburg, PA 17101 

Office of the Attorney General 
Bureau of Consumer Protection 
Strawberry Square, 14th Floor 
Harrisburg, PA 17120 

Commonwealth of Pennsylvania 
Department of Revenue 
Bureau of Compliance 
Harrisburg, PA 17128-0946 

b.) EDCs: Pursuant to Sections 1.57 and 1.58 of the Commission's Regulations, 52 Pa. Code §§1.57 and 1.58, provide 
Proof of Sen/ice of the Application and attachments upon each of the Electric Distribution Companies the Applicant 
proposed to provide service in. Upon review of the Application, further notice may be required pursuant to Section 5.14 
of the Commission's Regulations, 52 Pa. Code §5.14. Contact information for each EDC is as follows. 

Allegheny Power: 
Legal Department 
West Penn Power d/b/a Allegheny Power 
800 Cabin Hill Drive 
Greensburg, PA 15601-1689 

PECO: 
Manager Energy Acquisition 
PECO Energy Company 
2301 Market Street 
Philadelphia, PA 19101-8699 

Duquesne Light: 
Regulatory Affairs 
Duquesne Light Company 
411 Seventh Street, MD 16-4 
Pittsburgh, PA 15219 

PPL: 
Legal Department 
Attn: Paul Russell 
PPL 
Two North Ninth Street 
Allentown, PA 18108-1179 

Met-Ed, Penelec, and Penn Power: 
Legal Department 
First Energy 
2800 Pottsville Pike 
Reading PA, 19612 

Citizens' Electric Company: 
Citizens' Electric Company 
Attn: EGS Coordination 
1775 Industrial Boulevard 
Lewisburg, PA 17837 

Wellsboro Electric Company: 
Wellsboro Electric Company 
Attn; EGS Coordination 
33 Austin Street 
P. O. Box 138 
Wellsboro, PA 16901 

UGI: 
UGI Utilities, Inc. 
Attn: Rates Dept. - Choice Coordinator 
2525 N. 12th Street, Suite 360 
Post Office Box 12677 
Reading, Pa 19612-2677 

Pike County Light & Power Company: 
Director of Customer Energy Services 
Orange and Rockland Company 
390 West Route 59 
Spring Valley, NY 10977-5300 



7. FINANCIAL FITNESS 

a. BONDING: In accordance with 66 Pa. C.S. Section 2809(c)(1)(i), the Applicant is required to file a bond or other 
instrument to ensure its financial responsibilities and obligations as an EGS. Therefore, the Applicant is... 

X Furnishing the original (along with copies) of an initial bond, letter of credit or proof of bonding to the Commission 
in the amount of $250.000. 

See Appendix D 

Q Furnishing the original (along with copies) of another initial security for Commission approval, to ensure financial 
responsibility. 

Q Filing for a modification to the $250,000 requirement and furnishing the original (along with copies) of an initial 
bond, letter of credit or proof of bonding to the Commission in the amount of $10,000. Applicant is required to 
provide information supporting an amount less than $250,000. Such supporting information must include 
indication that the Applicant will not take title to electricity and will not pay electricity bills on behalf of its customers. 
Further details for modification may be described as well. 

At the conclusion of Applicant's first year of operation it is the intention of the Commission to tie security 
bonds to a percentage of Applicant's gross receipts resulting from the sale of generated electricity 
consumed in Pennsylvania. The amount of the security bond will be reviewed and adjusted on an annual 
basis. 

Example version of a bond and letter of credit are attached at Appendix D & E, Applicant's security must 
follow language from these examples. 

Any deviation from these examples must be identified in the application and may not be acceptable to the 
Commission. 

b. FINANCIAL RECORDS, STATEMENTS, AND RATINGS: Applicant must provide sufficient information to 
demonstrate financial fitness commensurate with the service proposed to be provided. Examples of such information 
which may be submitted include the following: 

Actual (or proposed) organizational structure including parent, affiliated or subsidiary companies. 

See Exhibit 4 

Published Applicant or parent company financial and credit information (i.e. 10Q or 10K). (SEC/EDGAR web addresses 
are sufficient) 

See Exhibit 5 

Applicant's accounting statements, including balance sheet and income statements for the past two years. 

See Exhibit 6 

Evidence of Applicant's credit rating. Applicant may provide a copy of its Dun and Bradstreet Credit Report and Robert 
Morris and Associates financial form, evidence of Moody's, S&P, or Fitch ratings, and/or other independent financial service 
reports. 

See Exhibit? 

A description of the types and amounts of insurance carried by Applicant which are specifically intended to provide for 
or support its financial fitness to perform its obligations as a licensee. 

Audited financial statements exhibiting accounts over a minimum two year period. 

See Exhibit 8 

Bank account statement, tax returns from the previous two years, or any other information that demonstrates 
Applicant's financial fitness. 

See Exhibits 



c. ACCOUNTING RECORDS CUSTODIAN: Provide the name, title, address, telephone number, FAX number, and e-
mail address of Applicant's custodian for its accounting records. 

Deborah Roscetti 
Director of Accounting 
1990 Post Oak Blvd, Suite 1900 
Houston, Texas 77056 
Debra.roscetti@gdfsuezna.com 
713-636-1961 

d. TAXATION: Complete the TAX CERTIFICATION STATEMENT attached as Appendix F to this application. 

Ail sections of the Tax Certification Statement must be completed. Absence (submitting N/A) of any of the TAX 
identifications numbers (items 7A through 7C) shall be accompanied by supporting documentation or an 
explanation validating the absence of such information. 

Items 7A and 7C on the Tax Certification Statement are designated by the Pennsylvania Department of Revenue, 
item 78 on the Tax Certification Statement is designated by the Intemai Revenue Service. 

See Appendix F 

10 



8. TECHNICAL FITNESS: 

To ensure that the present quality and availability of service provided by electric utilities does not deteriorate, the 
Applicant shall provide sufficient information to demonstrate technical fitness commensurate with the service proposed 
to be provided. 

a.) EXPERIENCE, PLAN, STRUCTURE: such information may include: 

Applicant's previous experience in the electricity industry. 

See Exhibit 10 

Summary and proof of licenses as a supplier of electric services in other states or jurisdictions. 

See Exhibit 11 

Type of customers and number of customers Applicant currently serves in other jurisdictions. 

See Exhibit 11 

Staffing structure and numbers as well as employee training commitments. 

See E x h i b i t s 

Business plans for operations within the Commonwealth. 

See Exhibit 13 

Documentation of membership in PJM, ECAR, MAAC, other regional reliability councils, or any other membership or 
certification that is deemed appropriate to justify competency to operate as an EGS within the Commonwealth. 

See Exhibit 14 

Any other information appropriate to ensure the technical capabilities of the Applicant. 

b. ) OFFICERS: Identify Applicant's chief officers including names and their professional resumes. 

See Exhibit 10 

c. ) FERC FILING: Applicant has: 

[ 3 Filed an Application with the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission to be a Power Marketer. 

O Received approval from FERC to be a Power Marketer at Docket or Case Number 

X Not applicable 

II 



9. DISCLOSURE STATEMENT: 

a. Disclosure Statements: If proposing to serve Residential and/or Small Commercial (under 25 kW) customers, provide 
a Residential and/or Small Commercial disclosure statement. A sample disclosure statement is provided as Appendix 
G to this Application. 

See Appendix G 

Electricity should be priced in clearly stated terms to the extent possible. Common definitions should be used. All 
consumer contracts or sales agreements should be written in plain language with any exclusions, exceptions, add-ons, 
package offers, limited time offers or other deadlines prominently communicated. Penalties and procedures for ending 
contracts should be clearly communicated. 

12 



10. VERIFICATIONS. ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS, AND AGREEMENTS 

a. PJM LOAD SERVING ENTITY REQUIREMENT: As a prospective EGS, the applicant understands that those EGSs 
which provide retail electric supply service (i.e. takes title to electricity) must provide either: 

proof of registration as a PJM Load Serving Entity (LSE), or 

See Exhibit 14 

proof of a contractual arrangement with a registered PJM LSE that facilitates the retail electricity services of the EGS. 

The Applicant understands that compliance with this requirement must be filed within 120 days of the Applicant 
receiving a license. As well, the Applicant understands that compliance with this requirement may be filed with this 
instant application. 

(Select only one of the following) 

X AGREED - Applicant has included compliance with this requirement in the instant application, labeled 
in correspondence with this section (10). 

Q AGREED - Applicant will provide compliance with this requirement within 120 days of receiving its 
license 

Q ACKNOWLEDGED - Applicant is not proposing to provide retail electric supply service at this time, 
and therefore is not presently obligated to provide such information 

b. STANDARDS OF CONDUCT AND DISCLOSURE: As a condition of receiving a license, Applicant agrees to 
conform to any Uniform Standards of Conduct and Disclosure as set forth by the Commission. Further, the Applicant 
agrees that it must comply with and ensure that its employees, agents, representatives, and independent contractors 
comply with the standards of conduct and disclosure set out in Commission regulations at 52 Pa. Code § 54.43. 

X AGREED 

c. REPORTING REQUIREMENTS: Applicant agrees to provide the following information to the Commission or the 
Department of Revenue, as appropriate: 

Retail Electricity Choice Activity Reports: The regulations at 52 Pa. Code §§ 54.201--54.204 require that all active 
EGSs report sales activity information. An EGS will file an annual report reporting for customer groups defined by annual 
usage. Reports must be filed using the appropriate report form that may be obtained from the PUC's Secretary's Bureau or 
the forms officer, or may be down-loaded from the PUC's internet web site. 

Reports of Gross Receipts: Applicant shall report its Pennsylvania intrastate gross receipts to the Commission on a 
quarterly and year to date basis no later than 30 days following the end of the quarter. 

The Treasurer or other appropriate officer of Applicant shall transmit to the Department of Revenue by March 15, an 
annual report, and under oath or affirmation, of the amount of gross receipts received by Applicant during the prior calendar 
year. 

Applicant shall report to the Commission the percentages of total electricity supplied by each fuel source on an annual 
basis: 

Applicant will be required to meet periodic reporting requirements as may be issued by the Commission to fulfill the 
Commission's duty under Chapter 28 pertaining to reliability and to inform the Governor and Legislature of the progress of 
the transition to a fully competitive electric market. 

X AGREED 

d. TRANSFER OF LICENSE: The Applicant understands that if it plans to transfer its license to another entity, it is 
required to request authority from the Commission for permission prior to transferring the license. See 66 Pa. C.S. 
Section 2809(D). Transferee will be required to file the appropriate licensing application. 

13 



X AGREED 

e. ASSESSMENT: The Commission does not presently assess Electric Generation Suppliers for the purposes of 
recovery of regulatory expenses; see PPL Energyplus, LLC v. Commonwealth, 800 A.2d 360 (Pa. Cmwlth. 2002). 

X ACKNOWLEDGED 

FURTHER DEVELOPMENTS: Applicant is under a continuing obligation to amend its application if substantial 
changes occur to the information upon which the Commission relied in approving the original filing. See 52 Pa. Code § 
54.34. 

X AGREED 

g. FALSIFICATION: The Applicant understands that the making of false statement(s) herein may be groundscfor 
denying the Application or, if later discovered, for revoking any authority granted pursuant to the Application. This 
Application is subject to 18 Pa. C.S. §§4903 and 4904, relating to perjury and falsification in official matters. 

X AGREED 

h. NOTIFICATION OF CHANGE: If your answer to any of these items changes during the pendency of your application 
or if the information relative to any item herein changes while you are operating within the Commonwealth of 
Pennsylvania, you are under a duty to so inform the Commission, within twenty (20) days, as to the specifics of any 
changes which have a significant impact on the conduct of business in Pennsylvania. See 52 Pa. Code § 54.34. 

X AGREED 

CEASING OF OPERATIONS: Applicant is also required to officially notify the Commission if it plans to cease doing 
business in Pennsylvania, 90 days prior to ceasing operations. 

X AGREED 

j . Electronic Data Interchange: The Applicant acknowledges the Electronic Data Interchange (EDI) requirements and 
the relevant contacts for each EDC, as listed at appendix J . 

X AGREED 

k. FEE: The Applicant has enclosed or paid the required initial licensing fee of $350.00 payable to the Commonwealth of 
Pennsylvania. 

X AGREED 

14 



11. AFFIDAVITS 

a. ) APPLICATION AFFIDAVIT: Complete and submit with your filing an officially notarized Application Affidavit stating 
that all the information submitted in this application is truthful and correct. An example copy of this Affidavit can be 
found at Appendix A. 

See Appendix A 

b. ) OPERATIONS AFFIDAVIT: Provide an officially notarized affidavit stating that you will adhere to the reliability protocols of 
the North American Electric Reliability Council, the appropriate regional reliability council(s), and the Commission, and that 
you agree to comply with the operational requirements of the control area(s) within which you provide retail service. An 
example copy of this Affidavit can be found at Appendix B. 

See Appendix B 

15 



12. NEWSPAPER PUBLICATIONS 

Notice of filing of this Application must be published in newspapers of general circulation covering each county in 
which the applicant intends to provide service. Below is a list of newspapers which cover the publication 
requirements for Electric Generation Suppliers looking to do business in Pennsylvania. 

The newspapers in which proof of publication is required is dependent on the service territories the applicant is 
proposing to serve. The chart below dictates which newspapers are necessary for each EDC. If the applicant is 
proposing to serve the entire Commonwealth, please file proof of publication in all seven newspapers. 

Please file with the Commission the Certification of Publication, along with a photostatic copy of the notice to 
complete the notice requirements. 

Proof of newspaper publications must be filed with the initial application. Applicants do not need a docket number 
in their publication. Docket numbers will be issued when all criteria on the item 14 checklist (see below) are 
satisfied. 

See Appendix H 

Duauesne Met 
Ed PECO Penelec Penn 

Power 
PPL UGI 

West 
Penn 

Entire 
Commonwealth 

Philadelphia Daily 
News X X X X 

Harrisburg Patriot-
News X X X X X 

Scranton Times 
Tribune X X X X X 

Williamsport Sun 
Gazette 

X X X X 

Johnstown Tribune 
Democrat 

X X X 

Erie Times-News X X X 

Pittsburgh Post-Gazette X X X X 

(Example Publication is provided at Appendix H) 

16 



13. SIGNATURE 

A 
Applicant: i 3DH Suez Ret^i 
By: 

/Jasor Austin 

Title: ^ice President and General Counsel 

RECEIVED 
OCT 1 9 2011 

PA PUBLIC UTILITY COMMISSION 
SECRETARY'S BUREAU 

17 



14. CHECKLIST 

For the applicant's convenience, please use the following checklist to ensure all relevant sections are 
complete. The Commission Secretary's Bureau will not accept an application unless each of the following 
sections are complete. 

Applicant: GDF Suez Retail Energy Solutions LLC 

(A 
D 
« 
c 
(D 
O 
Q . 
CL 
< 

Signature 

Filing Fee 

y Application Affidavit 

s Operations Affidavit 

y Proof of Publication 

y Bond or Letter of Credit 

y Tax Certification Statement 

V Commonwealth Department of State Verification 

y Certificate of Service 

0) 

« 
3 
ra 
0) 

CD 

ra 
% 
o 
CD 
W 
o 
D 

RECEIVED 
OCT 1 9 2011 

PA PUBLIC UTILITY COMMISSION 
SECRETARY'S BUREAU 



Appendix A 

APPLICATION AFFIDAVIT 

STATE OF TEXAS 

COUNTY OF HARRIS 

JASON AUSTIN, Affiant, being duly [sworn/affirmed] according to law, deposes and says that: 

[He/she is the Vice President and General Counsel (Office of Affiant) of GDF Suez Retail Energy Solutions, LLC, Applicant] 

[That he/she is authorized to and does make this affidavit for said Applicant;] 

That the Applicant herein GDF Suez Retail Energy Solutions, LLC has the burden of producing information and 
supporting documentation demonstrating its technical and financial fitness to be licensed as an electric generation 
supplier pursuant to 66 Pa. C.S. § 2809 (B). 

That the Applicant herein GDF Suez Retail Energy Solutions, LLC has answered the questions on the application 
correctly, truthfully, and completely and provided supporting documentation as required. 

That the Applicant herein GDF Suez Retail Energy Solutions, LLC acknowledges that it is under a duty to update 
information provided in answer to questions on this application and contained in supporting documents. 

That the Applicant herein GDF Suez Retail Energy Solutions, LLC acknowledges that it is under a duty to supplement 
information provided in answer to questions on this application and contained in supporting documents as requested by 
the Commission. 

That the facts above set forth are true and correct to the best of his/her knowledge, information, and belief, and that 
he/she expects said Applicant to be able to prove tfiSvsame at hearing. 

Sworn and subscribed before me this 

Signature of Affiant 

^ - " day of S l ^ f r w W T " . 201 

Signature of official administering oath 

My commission expires 
RECEIVED 

OCT 1 9 20!! 

PA PUBLIC UTILITY COMMISSION 
SECRETARY'S BUREAU 

' ^ ' J f o l^tfAVEEH'RABIE—|: 

- t e ^ .••w,June,l,51.?0l5 . 
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Appendix B 

OPERATIONS AFFIDAVIT 

STATE OF TEXAS 

COUNTY OF HARRIS 

RECE/VED 
0 " 1 9 2011 

JASON AUSTIN, Affiant, being duly [sworn/affirmed] according to law, deposes and says that: 

[He/she is the Vice President and General Counsel (Office of Affiant) of GDF Suez Retail Energy Solutions, LLC] 

[That he/she is authorized to and does make this affidavit for said Applicant;] 

That GDF Suez Retail Energy Solutions, LLC, the Applicant herein, acknowledges that [Applicant] may have 
obligations pursuant to this Application consistent with the Public Utility Code of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, 
Title 66 of the Pennsylvania Consolidated Statutes; or with other applicable statutes or regulations including 
Emergency Orders which may be issued verbally or in writing during any emergency situations that may unexpectedly 
develop from time to time in the course of doing business in Pennsylvania. 

That GDF Suez Retail Energy Solutions, LLC, the Applicant herein, asserts that [he/she/it] possesses the requisite 
technical, managerial, and financial fitness to render electric service within the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania and 
that the Applicant will abide by all applicable federal and state laws and regulations and by the decisions of the 
Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission. 

That GDF Suez Retail Energy Solutions, LLC, the Applicant herein, certifies to the Commission that it is subject to, will 
pay and in the past has paid, the full amount of taxes imposed by Articles II and XI of the Act of March 4, 1971 (P.L. 6, 
No. 2), known as the Tax Reform Act of 1971 and any tax imposed by Chapter 28 of Title 66. The Applicant 
acknowledges that failure to pay such taxes or otherwise comply with the taxation requirements of Chapter 28, shall be 
cause for the Commission to revoke the license of the Applicant. The Applicant acknowledges that it shall report to the 
Commission its jurisdictional Gross Receipts and power sales for ultimate consumption, for the previous year or as 
otherwise required by the Commission. The Applicant also acknowledges that it is subject to 66 Pa. C.S. §506 (relating 
to the inspection of facilities and records). 

As provided by 66 Pa. C.S. §2810 (C)(6)(iv), Applicant, by filing of this application waives confidentiality with respect to 
its state tax information in the possession of the Department of Revenue, regardless of the source of the information, 
and shall consent to the Department of Revenue providing that information to the Pennsylvania Public Utility 
Commission. 

That GDF Suez Retail Energy Solutions, LLC, the Applicant herein, acknowledges that it has a statutory obligation to 
conform with 66 Pa. C.S. §506, §2807 (C), §2807(D)(2), §2809(B) and the standards and billing practices of 52 PA. 
Code Chapter 56. 

That the Applicant agrees to provide all consumer education materials and information in a timely manner as requested 
by the Bureau of Public Liaison or other Commission bureaus. Materials and information requested may be analyzed 
by the Commission to meet obligations under applicable sections of the law. 

That the facts above set forth are true and corre^t/tn!|e and correct to the beji 
belief. / 

of his/her knowledge, information, and 

Sworn and subscribed before me this is day of $ 6 m ^ b f c E - . 2011. 

Signature of official administering oath 

My commission expires 
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NAVEEN RABIE 
:.n Notary Public State of Texas 

My Commission E y r e s 



Appendix C 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

On this the I v day of 2011,1 certify that a true and correct copy of the foregoing application form for 
licensing within the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania as an Electric Generation Supplier and all attachments have been served 
upon the following: 

STATUTORY AGENCIES: 

EDCs: 

Office of Consumer Advocate 
5th Floor, Forum Place 
555 Walnut Street 
Harrisburg, PA 17120 

Office of the Small Business Advocate 
Commerce Building, Suite 1102 
300 North Second Street 
Harrisburg, PA 17101 

Allegheny Power 
Legal Department 
West Penn Power d/b/a Allegheny Power 
800 Cabin Hill Drive 
Greensburg, PA 15601-1689 

Office of the Attorney General 
Bureau of Consumer Protection 
Strawberry Square, 14th Floor 
Harrisburg, PA 17120 

Commonwealth of Pennsylvania 
Department of Revenue 
Bureau of Compliance 
Harrisburg, PA 17128-0946 

PECO: 
Manager Energy Acquisition 
PECO Energy Company 
2301 Market Street 
Philadelphia, PA 19101-8699 

Duquesne Light: 
Regulatory Affairs 
Duquesne Light Company 
411 Seventh Street, MD 16-4 
Pittsburgh, PA 15219 

PPL: 
Legal Department 
Attn: Paul Russell 
PPL 
Two North Ninth Street 
Allentown, PA 18108-1179 

Met-Ed, Penelec, and Penn Power: 
Legal Department 
First Energy 
2800 Pottsville Pike 
Reading PA, 19612 

RECEIVE 
OCT 19 m 

WUTYCOMMISSWM* 
P ^ ^ H S ' S BUREAU 

UGI: 
UGI Utilities, Inc. 
Attn: Rates Dept. - Choice Coordinator 
2525 N. 12th Street, Suite 360 
Post Office Box 12677 
Reading, Pa 19612-2677 

Pike County Light & Power Company: 
Director of Customer Energy Services 
Orange and Rockland Company 
390 West Route 59 
Spring Valley, NY 10977-5300 

J a s o n Aus t in , V ice Pres ident and General Counse l 

Sworn and subscribed before me this 1* day of ̂ f c W f t l 8 £ E - . 2011. 

Signature of official administering oath 

My commission expires 
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Appendix D 

Electric Generation Supplier License Bonds 

Bonds submitted in order to satisfy the licensing process must comply with the following: 

The bond in the amount of $250,000 should name the Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission as the obligee or beneficiary, and 
should contain the following language: 

This bond is written in accordance with Section 2809(c)(1)(i) of the Public Utility Code, 66 Pa. C.S. § 
2809(c)(1)(i), to assure compliance with applicable provisions of the Public Utility Code, 66 Pa. C.S. §§101, et 
seq., and the rules and regulations of the Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission by the Principle as a licensed 
electric generation supplier; to ensure the payment of Gross Receipts Tax as required by Section 2810 of the 
Public Utility Code, 66 Pa. C.S. § 2810; and to ensure the supply of electricity at retail in accordance with 
contracts, agreements or arrangements. Payment of claims shall have the following priority: (i) The 
Commonwealth; (ii) Electric Distribution Companies for the reimbursement of Gross Receipts Tax; and (iii) Private 
individuals. Proceeds of the bond may not be used to pay any penalties or fines levied against the Principal for 
violations of the law, or for payment of any other tax obligations owed to the Commonwealth. 

The original and two copies of the bond must be submitted to the Office of the Secretary, Pa. Public Utility "Com mission] 
P.O. Box 3265, Harrisburg, P A 17105-3265. The entry date of the Commiss ion ' s Order will be the effective date for the 
license/ 

RECEIVED 
OCT 1 9 Z011 

PA PUBLIC UTILITY COMMISSION 
SEQRiTARY'S mm 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA 
PUBLIC UTILITY COMMISSION 

Appendix F 

TAX CERTIFICATION STATEMENT 

RECEIVED 
OCT 1 9 2011 

PA PUBLIC UTILITY COMMISSION 
A completed Tax Certification Statement must accompany all applications for new licenses, renewals or transfers. Failure to provide the 

requested information and/or any outstanding state income, corporation, and sales (including failure to file or register) will cause your 
application to be rejected. If additional space is needed, please use white 81/2" x 11" paper. Type or print all information requested. 

1. CORPORATE OR APPLICANT NAME 
GDF SUEZ Retail Energy Solutions, LLC 

2. BUSINESS PHONE NO. (713)636-0000 
CONTACT PERSON(S) FOR TAX ACCOUNTS: 

Ben Vallejo 
3. TRADE/FICTITIOUS NAME (IF ANY) 

4. LICENSED ADDRESS 
STATE) (ZIP) 
1990 Post Oak Blvd., Suite 1900 
Houston, TX 77056 

(STREET, RURAL ROUTE, P.O. BOX NO.) (POST OFFICE) 

5. TYPE OF ENTITY • SOLE PROPRIETOR 
El LLC 

• PARTNERSHIP 
• OTHER (Describe...) 

• CORPORATION 

6. LIST OWNERfS), GENERAL PARTNERS, OR CORPORATE OFFICERS(S)' 
NAME (PRINT) 

Robert A . Wi lson P res 

SOCIAL SECURITY NUMBER (OPTIONAL) 

NAME (PRINT) 

Cra ig Sutter S V P , S a l e s 

SOCIAL SECURITY NUMBER (OPTIONAL) 

NAME (PRINT) 

J a s o n Aust in V P , G C & S e c 

SOCIAL SECURITY NUMBER (OPTIONAL) 

NAME (PRINT) 

Jay Harpole V P , Supply 

SOCIAL SECURITY NUMBER (OPTIONAL) 

NAME (PRINT) 

R a c h e l W . Kilpatrick V P Tax 

SOCIAL SECURITY NUMBER (OPTIONAL) 

|7. LIST THE FOLLOWING STATE & FEDERAL TAX IDENTIFICATION NUMBERS (ALL ITEMS A.B, & C MUST BE COMPLETED) 
Applicant must provide explanation if submitting N/A for any items 

Item A- Designated by the Pennsylvania Department of Revenue. 
Item B - Designated by the Internal Revenue Service. 
Item C - Designated by the Pennsylvania Department of Revenue. The Corporate Box number may also be referred to as the Corporate 
Account number. 

A. SALES TAX LICENSE (8 DIGITS) 

8 1 0 

APPLICATION 
PENDING N/A 

• • 

C. CORPORATE BOX NUMBER (7 DIGITS) APPLICATION 
PENDING N/A 

2 4 5 5 0 0 3 • • 

B. EMPLOYER ID fEINWa DIGITS: APPLICATION 
PENDING N/A 

3 5 2 4 0 8 1 9 0 • • 

8. .Do.yo u. haye.P A .em ploy ee s;. resid ent.or_ no niresident?, • YES M NO 



9. Do vou own any assets or have.an office in PA?, • YES Eg) NO 
NAME AND PHONE NUMBER OF PERSON(S) RESPONSIBLE FOR FILING 
TAX RETURNS 
Bonnie Baker 

.N/A Ben Val[ejo_ 
PA SALES AND USE TAX EMPLOYER TAXES CORPORATE TAXES 

PHONEJL13-636-1034 PHONE PHONE 713-636-1694 
Telephone inquiries about this form may be directed to the Pennsylvania Department of Revenue at the following numbers: (717) 
772-2673, TDD# (717) 772-2252 (Hearing Impaired Only) 

RECEIVED 
OCT 1 9 2011 

PA PUBLIC UTILITY COMMISSION 
SECRETARY'S BUREAU 



GDF Suez Retail Energy Solutions, LLC is a single member-managed LLC, wholly-owned subsidiary of GDF Suez 
Energy Resources NA, Inc. The Officers of the parent company, GDF Suez Energy Resources NA, Inc. are: 

APPENDIX G 

RECEIVED 

OCT 1 9 ion 

SECRETARY'S BUREAU 



[SAMPLE - CUSTOMER DISCLOSURE STATEMENT1 

THINK ENERGY 
Pennsylvania Electric Energy Sales Agreement: Terms and Conditioif i j p f 

Pennsylvania Electric Energy Sales Agreement for electric generation service dated this day of ^ HIIOC 
Energy Solutions LLC d/b/a Think Energy ("Think Energy") and ("Customer"). a^ntAU 

Think Energy is licensed by the Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission to offer and supply electric generation service (electricity supply). Think Energy's 
Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission license number is A-XXXX-XXXXXXX. Think Energy sets the generation service charges that you pay. Your 
Electric Distribution Company (EDC) delivers the electricity to your location. The Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission regulates distribution prices and 
services. The Federal Energy Regulatory Commission regulates transmission prices and sen/ices. 

Fixed Price: Customer will pay a fixed price of per kWh for electric supply service. 

Variable Price: Customer will pay a variable rate for electricity supply services which will fluctuate on a month-to-month basis. Customer 
acknowledges and understands that variable charges are set by Think Energy and will fluctuate with month-to-month wholesale market 

Product Type and Prtce conditions applicable to the EDCs service territory and the Independent Service Operator (ISO). 

Your Contract Price does not include taxes and utility related charges, which shall be due in accordance with your monthly invoice. 
Customer acknowledges that Suez does not control the Taxes and Utility Related Charges associated with Customer's usage. 
The initial term shall be months from the month in which service begins. Service shall commence on the date the switch to service 
from Think Energy by Customer's EDC is complete and shall remain in effect through the utility meter read date at the end of the term. 

Agreement Term Customer Notification Statement: If you have a fixed term agreement with us and it is approaching the expiration date, or whenever we 
propose to change our terms of service in any type of agreement, you will receive written notification from us in corresponding separate 
mailings that precede either the expiration date or the effective date of the proposed changes. We will explain your options to you in these 
three advance notifications. 
Upon completion of the initial term, service may continue on a month-to-month basis with no change to the terms of service herein but a 
monthly variable rate that reflects the cost of electricity supply including but not limited to energy, capacity, settlement, ancillaries, 
transmission/distribution charges and all other market-related charges, plus expenses and margin. Applicable taxes and local utility 
charges are in addition to the contract price and will be passed through by Think Energy. When receiving month-to-month service, either 

Renewal Term p a r t y m a y t e r m j n a t e t h j S Agreement by providing 30 days advance written notice of termination to the other party. At least 30 days and no 
more than 60 days prior to the end of the term Think Energy will notify Customer of the terms of renewal and Customer's right to renew or 
reject a renewal; while receiving month-to-month service, such renewal notification will be provided only for the first renewal at the end of 
the initial term. 
In accordance with 52 PA Code Section 54.5, you shall have the right to cancel this agreement without fees or penalties within three (3) 

Right to Rescind business days after receipt of this Agreement. You may exercise this right in writing, orally, or electronically. To exercise this right, contact 
Think Energy Customer Care toll-free at 1-866-252-0078. 
The Early Cancellation Fee for all customers is equal to Seven Hundred Fifty Dollars ($750) multiplied by the number of months remaining 

Eariy CancellattorrFee in the Term. The Early Cancellation Fee shall be due to Think Energy within twenty five (25) days after receipt of the notice of the fee. The 
notice of the Early Cancellation Fee shall include a calculation of such amount. 

Late Payment Fee The rate of one & one half percent (114%) (or maximum rate permitted by applicable law) multiplied by the past due balance. 

Definitions 
i. Generation Charge - Part of the basic service charges on every customer's bill for electric supply service. Electric supply service is competitively 

priced and is not regulated by the PUC. This charge depends on the contract between the customer and the electric generation supplier. 
ii. Transmission Charge - Part of the basic sen/ice charges on every customer's bill for transporting electricity from the source of supply to the EDC. 

The Federal Energy Regulatory Commission regulates retail transmission prices and sen/ices. This charge will vary with your source of supply. 

Billing and Payment 
A. You will receive a single bill from Think Energy that will contain Think Energy's charges and your EDCs charges and any applicable Taxes and 

Utility Related Charges; OR You will receive a separate bill from Think Energy for electricity supply charges will contain Think Energy's changes 
and any applicable Taxes and Utility Related Charge, and a separate bill from your EDC for its charges. Think Energy may use estimated data for 
billing purposes provided that such estimates will be subject to future reconciliation upon receipt of final data regarding the actual quantity of energy 
consumed for the applicable billing cycle from your EDC. 

B. Payment shall be due to Think Energy by check, electronic funds transfer (EFT) or any other mutually agreed upon payment method within twenty 
five (25) days after the date of the invoice. If you choose to pay by credit card a convenience fee may be charged. Customer will be charged a 
$25.00 fee for a check returned for insufficient funds. Late or partial payments will be subject to a Late Payment Fee multiplied by the past due 
balance. Think Energy retains the right to report payment history to various credit agencies. 

C. If any amount of an invoice is disputed in good .faith, the entire invoice shall be paid when due. Any disputed amounts that are ultimately 
determined to be owed to Customer shall be credited by Think Energy to Customer in the next available invoice. Any dispute with respect to an 
invoice is waived unless the other Party is notified within twenty-four months after the invoice is rendered or any specific adjustment to the invoice 
is made; provided, however, that in the event your utility adjusts its meter reading for any reason, we may make a similar adjustment to your next 
invoice to reconcile such adjustment. You shall reimburse Think Energy for reasonable fees incurred in collecting payment of invoices that remain 
outstanding beyond the due date. 

General Terms and Conditions 
A. Force Majeure. "Force Majeure" shall mean an event that is beyond the reasonable control of the Party claiming an event of Force Majeure that 

could not have been prevented by the exercise of due diligence. If either Party is rendered unable by Force Majeure to carry out, in whole or part, 
its obligations under this Agreement, such Party shall give notice and provide full details of the event to the other Party in writing as soon as 
practicable after the occurrence of the event. During such Force Majeure period, the obligations of the Parties (other than the obligation to make 
payments then due or becoming due with respect to performance prior to the event) will be suspended to the extent required. No provision of this 
Agreement shall be interpreted to require Think Energy to deliver electric energy at points other than the delivery point(s). Force Majeure shall not 
include (a) Customer's decision to sell or relocate its facilities or (b) economic loss due to Customer's loss of markets or suppliers. 

B. Security Deposits. In the event Customer does not qualify for service based on its credit score or other payment history, Think Energy may require 
a security deposit before initiating service to Customer. Alternatively, Think Energy may require Customer to provide a security deposit during the 
term of any transaction (when Customer is receiving an energy supply bill directly from Think Energy) if Customer is late paying its bill two or 
months in a row in any given period. The deposit request may be for an amount up to an estimate of two (2) months invoices from Think Energy 



fSAMPLE - CUSTOMER DISCLOSURE STATEMENT! 

during any twelve month period, and shall be in the form of a cash (check, credit card or wire) deposit. We may apply such security deposit to any 
past due amounts owed to Think Energy. If Think Energy is no longer your provider of record, any deposit balance remaining after full payment of 
(or application of the deposit toward) the final invoice will be refunded to you. 

C. Cancellation of Agreement bv Think Energy: Fees. Think Energy shall have the right to cancel service upon fifteen (15) days prior written notice in 
the event of any of the following: (a) the failure by Customer to make, when due, any payment required under this Agreement; (b) any 
representation or covenant made by Customer in this Agreement proves to have been false or misleading in any material respect when made or 
ceases to remain true during the Term, or (c) Customer is deemed ineligible for, or seeks to discontinue, utility consolidated billing. In the event 
Think Energy elects to terminate service, it shall calculate an early cancellation fee equal to Seven Hundred Fifty Dollars ($750) multiplied by the 
number of months remaining in the Term. The early cancellation fee shall be due to Think Energy within twenty-five (25) days after notice of the 
fee to Customer. Customer also shall remain responsible for amounts due for electricity service provided pursuant to this Agreement prior to such 
termination date. The notice of the Early Cancellation Fee shall include a calculation of such amount. This Section shall be without prejudice and 
in addition to any right of setoff, combination of accounts, lien or other right to which Think Energy is at any time otherwise entitled (whether by 
operation of law, contract or otherwise). 

D. Change in Law. In the event that there is a change in law, administrative regulation, or any fees or costs imposed by the ISO or by a Governmental 
Authority and such change causes Think Energy to incur any capital, operating or other costs relating to the provision of services contemplated 
herein, such costs shall be passed through to the Customer. In the event such a change in law renders performance under this Agreement illegal, 
the Parties shall meet as soon as practicable to renegotiate the Agreement to comply with such change. 

E. Service Complaints and Dispute Resolution. If you are unsatisfied with your service, please contact Think Energy to discuss your terms of service. 
If you are still dissatisfied with your service, you may contact the Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission at 1-800-PUC-1110. 

F. Emergency Service. In the event of an emergency, such as a power failure or a downed power line, you should call your local utility company at the 
telephone number listed above. 

G. Limitation of Liability. LIABILITY OF CUSTOMER AND THINK ENERGY SHALL BE LIMITED AS SET FORTH IN THIS AGREEMENT, AND 
ALL OTHER DAMAGES OR REMEDIES HEREBY ARE WAIVED. IN NO EVENT SHALL EITHER PARTY BE LIABLE TO THE OTHER PARTY 
FOR CONSEQUENTIAL, INCIDENTAL, PUNITIVE, EXEMPLARY OR INDIRECT DAMAGES IN TORT, CONTRACT UNDER ANY INDEMNITY 
PROVISION OR OTHERWISE. 

H. Miscellaneous. Notices, correspondence, and address changes shall be in writing and delivered by regular or electronic mail, facsimile, or similar 
means. Notice by facsimile, electronic mail or hand delivery shall be deemed to have been received on the date transmitted or delivered (after 
business hours deemed received on next business day). All notices shall be provided to the person and addresses specified by Customer and 
Think Energy. Title, liability and risk of loss associated with the electric energy purchased and sold hereunder shall pass from Seller to Customer at 
the delivery point into your local utility. Taxes shall mean any and all taxes and fees imposed on the purchase and sale of electric energy by any 
Governmental Authority. Unless Customer has provided a valid exemption certification, Customer will be responsible for, pay, and indemnify Think 
Energy for all taxes hereunder, whether imposed on Customer or Think Energy, and such taxes, other than gross receipts tax which is included in 
the Contract Price, will be stated on your bill. Seller may collect such taxes from Customer by increasing Seller charges for the amount of such 
taxes. Each Party shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless the other Party harmless from claims, demands and causes of action asserted 
against the indemnitee by any person arising from or out of any event, circumstance, act or incident first occurring or existing during the period 
when control and title to electric energy is vested in such Party. Customer may not assign this Agreement or any of its rights or obligations under 
this Agreement without the prior written consent of Seller, provided however, Think Energy MAY TRANSFER OR SELL ITS RECEIVABLES WITH 
OUT THE PRIOR WRITTEN CONSENT OF CUSTOMER. Consent to assignment shall not be unreasonably withheld. Any assignment in violation 
of this Section shall be void. This Agreement, any Appendix or validation recording or form of validation ticket or Exhibits attached hereto executed 
in accordance with this Agreement constitute the entire agreement between the Parties. No amendment, modification or change will be 
enforceable unless reduced to writing and executed by both Parties. No waiver by any Party hereto of any one or more defaults by the other Party 
in the performance of any of the provisions of this Agreement will be construed as a waiver of any other default or defaults whether of a like kind or 
different nature. Any provision or section declared or rendered unlawful by a court of law or regulatory agency with jurisdiction over the Parties, or 
deemed unlawful because of a statutory change, will not otherwise affect the lawful obligations that arise under this Agreement. All confidentiality 
and indemnity rights will survive the termination of this Agreement. All obligations provided in this Agreement will remain in effect for the purpose of 
complying herewith. INCLUDING ANY COUNTERCLAIMS AND CROSS CLAIMS ASSERTED IN SUCH ACTION, THIS AGREEMENT SHALL BE 
GOVERNED BY AND CONSTRUED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE LAWS OF NEW YORK. WITHOUT REGARD TO THE LAWS OF NEW YORK 
REQUIRING THE APPLICATION OF THE LAWS OF ANOTHER STATE. With the exception of any warranty that is expressly set forth in this 
Agreement, Seller and its successors and assigns make NO WARRANTY OF ANY KIND. EITHER EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, INCLUDING, BUT 
NOT LIMITED TO, THE IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY AND FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE. With regard to the 
services Think Energy provides or the activities Customer undertakes, pursuant to this Agreement. Think Energy acts solely as counter-party in all 
transactions with Customer under this or any other Agreement. Accordingly Think Energy has no duty to advise Customer or exercise judgment on 
Customer's behalf as to the merits or suitability of any transactions that Think Energy proposes to enter into with Customer. 

I. Privacy and Information Release Authorization. You authorize Think Energy to obtain your usage history from your EDC. You may rescind this 
authorization at anytime by contacting Think Energy. Think Energy will not release your confidential information without your consent. You 
authorize Think Energy to obtain and review information regarding Customer's credit history from credit reporting agencies and the following 
information from the applicable utility: consumption history; billing determinants; utility account number; credit information; public assistance status; 
and existence of medical emergencies. This information may be used by Think Energy to determine whether it will commence and/or continue to 
provide energy supply service to Customer and will not be disclosed to a third party unless required by law. Customer's execution of this 
Agreement shall constitute authorization for the release of this information to Think Energy. This authorization will remain in effect during the 
transaction term and any renewal or extension term of this Agreement. Customer may rescind this authorization at any time by providing written 
notice thereof to Think Energy or by calling Think Energy at 1-866-252-0078. 

Contact Information 

A. GDF Suez Retail Energy Solutions d/b/a Think Energy (Think Energy") 
1990 Post Oak Blvd. Suite 1900, Houston, Texas 77056 
Toll-Free - 1-866-252-0078 

B. Default Service Provider (Your Local Utility Company/EDC) Information: 
DEFAULT SERVICE PROVIDER TELEPHONE NUMBER 
Metropolitan Edison Company/ Met-Ed 1-800-545-7741 
Pennsylvania Electric Company/ Penelec 1-800-545-7741 
Duquesne Light Company 1-888-393-7100 
Philadelphia Electric and Gas Company/ PECO 1-800-841-4141 



[SAMPLE - CUSTOMER DISCLOSURE STATEMENT] 

Allegheny Power/West Penn Power 1-800-255-3443 
PPL Electric Utilities 1-800-342-5775 
Pennsylvania Power Gompany/ Penn Power 1-800-720-3600 
UGI Electric/UGI Utilities 1-800-962-1212 

C. Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission 
P.O. Box 3265 Harrisburg, PA 17105-3265 
1-800-692-7380; 1-800-PUC-1110 

SIGNATURE AND BILLING INFORMATION 

CUSTOMER ENTITY NAME 

By: 

Name: 

Title: 

Date: 

Address 

City, State, Zip 

Phone 

Facsimile 

Email 

RECEIVED 
OCT 1 9 2011 

PA PUBLIC UTILITY COMMISSION 
SECRETARY'S BUREAU 

SERVICE LOCATION(S) INFORMATION 

Account Number: 

Street Address 

City, State, Zip 

TRANSACTION IDENTIFIER: 



GDF Suez Retail Energy Solutions, LLC is a single member-managed LLC, wholly-owned subsidiary of GDF Suez 
Energy Resources NA, Inc. The Officers of the parent company, GDF Suez Energy Resources NA, Inc. are: 

APPENDIX H 

RECEIVED 



F O R M O F N O T I C E P U B L I C A T I O N 

PENNSYLVANIA PUBLIC UTILITY COMMISSION 

NOTICE 

Appl icat ion of GDF Suez Retail Energy Solut ions LLC (d/b/a "Think Energy") For Approval To Offer, Render, 
Furnish Or Supply Electricity Or Electric Generation Serv ices As A Suppl ier of Electricity To The Publ ic In 
The Commonwealth Of Pennsylvania. 

GDF Suez Retail Energy Solutions LLC (d/b/a Think Energy") will be filing an application with the Pennsylvania 
Public Utility Commission ("PUC") for a license to supply electricity or electric generation services as (1) a supplier of 
electric power. GDF Suez Retail Energy Solutions LLC (d/b/a 'Think Energy") proposes to sel l electricity and related 
services throughout all of Pennsylvania under the provisions of the new Electricity Generation Customer Choice and 
Competition Act. 

The PUC may consider this application without a hearing. Protests directed to the technical or financial fitness of 
GDF Suez Retail Energy Solutions LLC (d/b/a Think Energy") may be filed within 15 days of the date of this notice 
with the Secretary of the P U C , P.O. Box 3265, Harrisburg, PA 17105-3265. You should send copies of any protest 
to the GDF Suez Retail Energy Solutions LLC (d/b/a Think Energy") attorney at the address listed below. 

Bv and through Counsel: 
Jason Austin 

GDF Suez Retail Energy Solutions. LLC 
1990 Post Oak Boulevard, Suite 1900 

Houston, Texas 77056 
Email: Jason.Austin@gdf$uezna.com 

RECEIVED 
OCT 1 9 2011 

PA PUBLIC UTILITY COMMISSION 
SECRETARY'S BUREAU 



No. Term, 

Proof of Publication of Notice in Pittsburgh Post-Gazette 
Under Act No 587, Approved May 16, 1929, PL 1784, as last amended by Act No 409 of September 29, 1951 

Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, County of Allegheny, ss M. Goodwin . being duly sworn, deposes and says thai the 
Pittsburgh Post-Gazette, a newspaper of general circulation published in the City of Pittsburgh, County and Commonweallh aforesaid, was 
established in 1993 by the merging of the Pittsburgh Post-Gazette and Sun-Telegraph and The Pittsburgh Press and the Pittsburgh Post-
Gazette and Sun-Telegraph was established in I960 and the Pittsburgh Post-Gazette was cslablislied in 1927 by the merging of the 
Pittsburgh Gazette established in 1786 and the Pittsbuigh Post, established in 1842, since which date the said Pittsburgh Post-Gazette has 
been regularly issued in said County and (hat a copy of said printed notice or publication is attached hereto exactly as (he same was 
printed and published in the regular editions and issues of Hie said Pittsburgh Post-Gazette a 
newspaper of general circulation on the following dates, viz: 

23 of September, 2011 
Affiant further deposes that he/she is an agent for the PG Publishing Company, a corporation and publisher of the Pittsburgh Post-Gazette, 
that, as such agent, affiant is duly authorized to verify the foregoing statement under oath, that affiant is not interested in the subject matter 
of the afore said notice or publication, and that all allegations in the foregoing statement as to time, place and character of publication are 
true. 

COPY OF NOTICE OR PUBLICATION 

COMMISSION 
NOTICE 

Appl icat ion of GDF 
Suez Retail Energy solu­
tions LLC (d/b/a ''Think 
Energy") For Approval To 
Offer. Render. Furnish Or 
Supply Elect r ic i ty Or 
Electric Generation Ser-
vices A S A supplier of 
Electricity TO The public 
In The Commonwealth 
of Pennsylvania. 

GDF Suez Retail Ener­
gy Solutions LLC (d/b/a 
"Think Energy") will be 
filing an appficatitjn with 
the Pennsylvania public 
U t i l i t y C o m m i s s i o n 
("PUC ) for a license to 
supply electricity or elec­
tric generation services 
as.(l) a supplier-of elec­
tric power: G D F Suez Re-
tall Energy Solutions LLC 
(d/b/a "Think Energy") 
proposes to sell electrici­
ty and related services 
throughout all of Penn­
sylvania under the provi­
sions of the new Elec-
t r l c i t y G e n e r a t i o n 
Customer Choice and 
Competition Act. 

The PUC may consid­
er this application wlth-

'out a hearing. Protests 
directed to the technical 
or financial f itness of 
GDF Suez Retail Energy 
so lu t ions LLC (d/b/a 
"Think Energy") may be 
filed within 15 days of 
the date of this notice 
with the'secretary of the 
PUC, P.O. Box 32<55. Har-
'risburg, P A 17105-3265. 
You should send copies 
of any protest to the GDF 
Suez Retail Energy solu­
tions LLC (d/b/a 'Think 
Energy") attorney at the 
address listed below. 

By and through 
counsel: Jason Austin 

GDF Suez Retail 

PG Publishing Company 

Sworn to and subscribed before me this day of: 
September 23, 201 1 

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA 
Notarial Seal 

Linda M. Gaertner, Notary Public 
City Of Pittsburgh, Allegheny County 

Ry Commission Expires Jan. 31, Z015 
MtiMLJfiR, PENNSYLVANIA ASSOCIATION OF NOTARIES RECEIVED 

Publisher' 
PG PUBL Enerĝ ŝ uiionrLLc NY, publisher o 

' 1990 Post oak i ' r 

hereby ack ^SSUkSSf^^ of the aforsaid 
been fully i Ema'VdSzfl

n

u

a

sg0

n^i 
Office A 

34 Boulevard of the Allies 
PITTSBURGH, PA 15222 

Phone 412-263-1338 

0 C r i 9 2011 

STATEMENT OF ADVERTISING^CtJsTS™ S MEAU 
GDF Suez R e t a i l Energy S o l u t i o n s 
1990 POST OAK BLVD STE 1900 
HOUSTON TX 77056-3831 

To PG Publishing Company 

Total $480.00 

s Receipt for Advertising Costs 
f the Pittsburgh Post-Gazette3 a newspaper of general circulation, 
advertising and publication costs and certifies that the same have 

PG Publishing Company, a Corporation, Publisher of 
Pittsburgh Post-Gazette, a Newspaper of General Circulation 

By 

I hereby certify that the foregoing is the original Proof of Publication and receipt for the Advertising costs in the subject matter of 
said notice. 

Alloimy For 



Proof of Publication in The Philadelphia Daily News 
Under Act. No 587, Approved May 16, 1929 

STA TE OF PENNS YL VA NIA 
COUNTY OF PHILADELPHIA 

Anna Dickerson being duly sworn, deposes and says 
that The Philadelphia Daily News is a newspaper published 
daily, except Sunday, at Philadelphia, Pennsylvania, and was 
established in said city in 1925, since which date said newspaper 
has been regularly issued in said County, and that a copy of 
the printed notice of publication is attached hereto exactly as 
the same was printed and published in the regular editions and 
issues of the said newspaper on the following dates: 

September 22,2011 

Affiant further deposes and says that she is i.:n employee 
of the publisher of said newspaper and has been authorized 
to verify the foregoing statement and that she is not interested 
in the subject matter of the aforesaid notice of publication, and 
that all allegations in the foregoing statement as to time, place 
and character of publication are true. 

Copy of Notice of Publication 

P E N N S Y L V A N I A P U B L I C U T I L f f * ^ " J V J T ' g l ^ H T ^ I 
N O T I C E 

A p p l i c a t i o n o l G D F S u a z R a t a l ) E n o r s y S o l u ­
t i o n . L L C ( d / b / a ' T h i n k E n o r g y " ) F o r A p p r o v a l 
T o O l t a r , R e n d a r , F u r n i s h O r S u p p l y E loc l r f c f t y 
O r E l e c t r i c G a n o r a t l o n S e r v i c e s A B A S u p p l i e r ot 
E l o c l r i c i t y T o T h « P u b l i c In T h e C o m m o n w e a l t h 
O l P e n n s y l v a n i a . 
G D F S u e z R a t a l ! E n e r g y S o l u t i o n * L L C ( d / b / a 
"Th ink E n e r g y " ) wi l l b e I l l lng o n a p p l i c a t i o n w i t h 
Ihe P e n n s y l v a n i a P u b l i c Ut i l i ty C o m m i s s i o n 
( " P U C " ) fo r a l i c e n s e to s u p p l y e lec t r i c i t y o r 

• e l e c t r i c g e n e r a t i o n s e r v i c e s a s (1) a s u p p l i e r ot 
e l e c t r i c p o w e r . Q O F S u a z R a t a l ! E n e r g y S o l u ­
t i o n s L L C ( d / b / a - T h i n k E n e r g y * ) p r o p o s e s to 
se l l e lec t r i c i t y a n d r e l a t e d s e r v i c e s I h r o u g h o u t 
a l l o l P e n n s y l v a n i a u n d o r t he p r o v i s i o n s ot t he 
n e w E l e c t r i c i t y G e n e ro l l o n C u s t o m e r C h o i c e 
a n d C o m p e t i t i o n A c t . 
T h e P U C m a y c o n s i d e r th is a p p l i c a t i o n w i thou t 
a h e a r i n g . P r o t e s t s d i r e c t e d t o t he t e c h n i c a l o r 
f i n a n c i a l l i t n e s s o l G D F S u a z R a t a l l ' E n e r g y 
S o l u t i o n s L L C ( d / b / a T h i n k E n e r g y ' ) m a y b o 
f i led w i t h i n 15 d a y s o l t he d a t e o f t h i s n o t i c e 
w i t h the S e c r e t a r y o f the P U C . P . O . B o x 3 2 6 5 , 
H a r r i s b u r g , P A 1 7 1 0 5 - 3 2 6 5 . Y o u s h o u l d s e n d 
c o p i e s of a n y p r o t e s t t o t h e G D F S u a z R e t a i l 
E n e r g y S o l u t i o n * L L C ( d / b / a T h i n k E n e r g y - ) 
a t t o r n e y at t he a d d r e s s l i s ted b e l o w . 

B y a n d t h r o u g h C o u n s e l : 
J a s o n A u s t i n 

G D F S u e z R e t a i l E n e r g y S o l u t i o n s , L L C 
1090 P o s t O a k B o u l e v a r d , S u i t e 1900 

H o u s t o n , T a x a a 77056 
E m a i l : J a s o n . A u st I n @ g d l s ' u e z n a . c o m 

FlECElVED 

Sworn to and subscribed before me this 22"" day of 
September. 2011. 

PAP 

OCT 1 & 

jBUC UTILITY COMMISSION 
BRBfAlWS BUREAU 

My Commission Expires: 
NOTARIAL SEAL 

Mary Anne Lugan, Notary Public 
City ofPliilatlelpliia, Pliila. County 
My Commissioii Exjiires March 30, 2(113 



No. Term, 19 

PROOF OF PUBLICATION OF NOTICE IN THE WILLIAMSPORT 
SUN-GAZETTE UNDER ACT NO. 587, APPROVED MAY 16,1929 

STATE OF PENNSYLVANIA 
COUNTY OF LYCOMING SS: 

Bernard A . Oravec Publisher, of the Sun-Gazette Company, publishers of the Williamsport, Sun-Gazette, successor 
to the William sport Sun and the Gazette & Bulletin, both daily newspapers of general circulation, published at 252 West Fourth Street, 
"Williamsport, Pennsylvania, being duly sworn, deposes and says that the Williamsport Sun was established in 1870 and the Gazette & 
Bulletin was established in 1801, since which dates said successor, the Williamsport Sun-Gazette, has been regularly issued and pub­
lished in the County of Lycoming aforesaid, and that a copy of the printed notice is attached hereto exactly as the same was printed and 
published in the regular editions of said Williamsport Sun-Gazette on the following dates, viz: 

^ 3. Of/ 

Affiant further deposes that he is an officer daily authorized by the Sun-Gazette Company, pubHsher of the Williamsport Sim-Gazette, 
to verify the foregoing statement under oath and also declares that affiant is not interested in the subject matter of the aforesaid notice 
of publication, and that all the allegations in the foregoing statement as to time, place and character of publication are true. 

PENNSYLVANIA 
PUBLIC UTILITY 

COMMISSION 

NOTICE 

1 

Application of GDF 
Suez BfitaU Energy 
Solutions LLC fd/h/n 
"ThlnK Energy") For 
Approval To Offer, 
Render, Furnish Or 
Supply Electricity Or 
Electric Generation Ser­
vices As A Supplier of 
Electricity To The 'Pub­
lic In The Com-' 
monwealth Of Pennsyl­
vania. 

GDF Suez Retail Energy 
Solutions LLC (d/b/a 
Think Energy") will be fif­
ing an application with the' 
Pennsylvania Public Utlll-

0tU» WW 

1 T ^ S U N - r G A Z E T T E 

and certifies that the 

ty Commission ("PUC") 
for a license .to supply 
electricity or electric gen : 

eration services .as- (1) -a 
supplier of electric power. 
GDF 'Suez- Retail 'Energy 
Solutions LLC (d/b/a 
Think Energy") proposes 
to sell electricity and re­
lated services throughout 
all of Pennsylvania under 
the provisions of the'new 
Electricity • Generation 
Customer Choice and 
Competition Act 

The PUC may consider 
this application without a 
hearing. Protests directed 
to the technical, or finan­
cial fitness of GDF Suez 
Retail Energy Solutions 
LLC (d/b/a "Think Ener-

-jgy") may be. filed within 
i l 5 days of. the date of 
this notice with the Secre­
tary of the PUC. P.O. 
Box 3265, Harrisburg, PA 
17105-3265. You should 
send copies of any pro­
test to the GDF Suez Re­
tail Eneray Solutions LLC 
(d/b/a Think Energy") at­
torney at the address list­
ed below. 

By and through Counsel:' 
i . . Jaaoo-AusiiiL 
IVyDF Suez Retail Energy 

Solutions, LLC 

SUN-GAZETTE COMPANY 
fore me 

NOTARIAL SEAL 
CATHY A. BILL£Y, Notary Public 

City of WilHamspmt, Lycomlny County 
My Commission Expires May 15,2015 

STATEMENT OF ADVERTISING COSTS 

To the Sun-Gazette Company, Dr.: 

For publishing the notice attached 

hereto on the above state dates $ 

Probated same $ 

Total %"^7/^0 

^po j jg Bouieva-d,' i>s RECEIPT FOR ADVERTISING COSTS 
Houston, Texas 77056 

EmaiirJasoaAustin 
®gdlsuezna.com acknowledges receipt of the aforesaid advertising and publication costs 

;^m^liSVS"5S"SirTuily paid. 

SUN-GAZETTE COMPANY 

B Y Bernard A . Oravec 



OATH of PUBLICATION 
In 

THE ERIE TIMES-NEWS 

COMBINATION EDITION 

GDJT SUEZ RETAIL ENERGY 
SOLUTIONS LLC 
1990 POST OAK BLVD STE 1900 
HOUSTON TX 77056 

REFERENCE: L0005319 
2012356 PUC NOTICE 

STATE OF PENNSYLVANIA) 
COUNTY OF ERIE ) SS: 

Rosanne Cheeseman being duly sworn, deposes and 
says that she i s the Pu b l i s h e r of the Times 
P u b l i s h i n g Company, which publi s h e s : the 
E r i e Times-News, e s t a b l i s h e d Octobei? 2,2000, a 
d a i l y newspaper of general c i r c u l a t i o n , successor, 
by c o n s o l i d a t i o n , of the Morning News, e s t a b l i s h e d 
January 1957, and 
the E r i e D a i l y Times, e s t a b l i s h e d A p r i l 1888, 
d a i l y newspapers of general c i r c u l a t i o n and 
published" at" E r i e , "Erie County", * Pennsylvania, and 
that the notice of which the attached i s a copy 
published, i r i the regular e d i t i o n s of s a i d 
newspaper of the dates r e f e r r e d to below. 
A f f i a n t f u r t h e r deposes that she i s duly 
authorized by the TIMES PUBLISHING COMPANY, 
pu b l i s h e r of The E r i e Times-News to v e r i f y the 
foregoing statement under oath, and a f f i a n t i s not 
i n t e r e s t e d i n the subject matter of the a f o r e s a i d 
n o t i c e or advertisement, and that a l l a l l e g a t i o n s 
i n the forgoing statement as to time, place and 
character of p u b l i c a t i o n are tr u e . 

PUBLISHED ON; 09/23 

TOTAL COST: 
FILED ON: 

294.00 
09/23/11 

AD SPACE: 7.000 INCH 

RECEIVED 
OCT 1 9 2011 

PA PUBLIC UTILiTY COMMISSION 

PENNSYLVANIA PUBLIC UTILITY COMMISSION 
NOTICE 

Application of GDF SasLHetail Energy Solutjcws 
LLC (d/b/a "Thipk Enefpy^Dr AmirBBat in 
- fer, Render, Furnish Or Supply Electricily Or 
Electric Generation Services As A Supplier ol 
Electricily To The Public In The Commonweallh 01 
Pennsylvania. 

GDF Suez Retail Energy Solutions LLC (d/b/a 
'Think energy") will be fid'ng an application with the 
Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission ("PUC") for 
a license to supply electricity or electric generation 
services as (1) a supplier of electric power. GDF 
Suez Retail Energy Solutions LLC (d/b/a "Think 
Energy") proposes to sell electricity and related 
services throughout all of Pennsylvania under 
the provisions of the new Electricity Generation 
Customer Choice and Competition Act. 

The PUC may consider this application without 
a hearing. Protests directed to the technical or 
financiarfitness of GDF Suez Retail Energy Solutions 
LLC (d/b/a 'Think Energy" may be filed within 15 
days of the date of this not ce with the Secretary of 
the PUC. P.O. Box 3265. Harrisburg. PA 17W5-
3265. You should send copies of any protest to the 
GDF Suez Retail Energy Solutions LLC d/b/a 'Think 
Energy") attorney at the address listed below. 

Bv and throuph Counsel: 
Jason Austin 

GDF Suez Retail Energy Solutions. LLC 
1990 Post Oak Boulevard, Suite 1900 

Houston. Texas 77056 
_ Email: Jason.Austin@qdfsuezna.com 

Sworn to and ibed before me this <^Ly ( ){j 

^ 2 2 ^ W A f n ^ ^ ^ H ^ W i * 
NOTARY 

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA 
NOTARIAL SEAL 

Tami J. Davis, Notary Public 
City of Erie, Erie County 

My commission expires April H 2014 



The Scranton Times (Under act P.L 877 No 160. July 9,1976) 
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, County of Lackawanna 

GDF SUEZ RETAIL ENERGY SOLUTIONS LLC 
NAVEEN RABIE 
SUITE 1900 1990 POST OAK BLVD 
HOUSTON TX 77056 

Account # 549711 
Orders 80710377 
Ad Price: 209.75 

Gina Krushinski 
Being duly sworn according to law deposes and says that she is Billing clerk 
for The Scranton Times, owner and publisher of The Scranton Times, a newspaper 
of general circulation, established in 1870, published in the city of Scranton, 
county and state aforesaid, and that the printed notice or publication hereto 
attached is exactly as printed in the regular editions of the said newspaper 
on the following dates: 

09/20/2011 

Affiant further deposes and says that neither the affiant nor The Scranton Times 
is interested in the subject matter of the aforesaid notice or advertisement 
and that aUegatiors-Ln-the .foregoing -.sts'nment ŝ time.-plpce and. 
character or publication are true J & ^ i A , l / h j j / ^ l l i / v / ^ l A . _ J ^ 

RECEIVED 
OCT 1 9 2011 

PA PUBLIC UTILiTY COMMISSION 
SSCRETARY'S BUREAU 

Sworn and subscribed to before me 
this 20th day of September A. D., 2011 

(Notary Public) 

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA 
Notarial Seal 

Sharon Venturt, Notary Public 
City of Scranton, Lackawanna County 
My Commtsston Expires Feb. 12, 2014 

Member. Pennsvtvanta Association of Notaries 

LEGAL NOTICE 

PENNSYLVANIA PUBUC 
. UTILFTY COMMISSION 

Application of GDF Suez Retail.Energy' 
Solutions LLC (d/b/a Think Energy) For 
Approval To Offer, Render, Furnish Or 
Supply Electricity Or Electric Genera­
tion Services As A Supplier of Electrici­
ty To The Public In The Common­
wealth Of Pennsylvania. 

GDF Suez Retail Energy Solutions LLC I 
(d/b/a Think Energy) will be filing an, 
application with the Pennsylvania Pub­

l ic Utility Commission (RUC) for a li­
cense to supply electricity or electric: 
generation services as (1) a supplier ofj 
electric power. GOF Suez Retail Energy 
Solutions LLC (d/b/a Think Energy) 
proposes to sell electricity and related 
services throughout all'of Pennsylva­
nia under the provisions bf the newj 
Electricity Generation Customer Choice 
and Competition Act. 

The PUC may consider this application 
without e hearing. Protests oirected to 
the technical or financial fitness of GDF 
Suez Retail Energy Solutions LLC 
(d/b/e Think Energy) may be filed with­
in 15 days of the date of this notice 
with the Secretary of the PUC, P.O. 
Box 3265, Harrisburg, PA 17105-3265. 
You should send copies of any protest 
to the GDF Suez Retail Energy Solu­
tions LLC (d/b/a Think Energy) attorney 
at the address listed below. 

By end through Counsel: , 
1 Jason Austin ' 
! GDF Suez Retail Energy Solutions, LLC 

,1990 Post Oak Boulevard, Suite 1900 1 

I Houston, Texas 77056 
Email: Jeson, Austin@odfsuezna.com 



C O M M O N W E A L T H OF P E N N S Y L V A N I A ^ 

fnibli-
thut i 
oj'TIi 

County of Cambria 

NOTICE. 
' Apptlcatioh of GDF fftiez Retail Energy Solutions L^Q 
> fd/b/a 'Thlnfc Energy") For Approvfll To,Offer, Render, 
i Furnish Or Supply Electricity Or Electric Generation 
' Services As A Supplier ol Electricity To The Public In 

The Commonwealth Of Pennsylvania. 
GDF Suez Retail Energy Solutions LLC {d/b/a 'Think En-

1 ergy") will be filing ah application with the' Pennsylvania 
Public Utility Commission ("PUC") for a .license to supply 
electricity or electric generation services as (1) a supplier 
of electric power. GDF Suez Retail Energy Solutions-LLC 

: (d/b/a Think Energy") proposes to sell electricity and re-
. lated services throughout all of Pennsylvania under the 

provisions of the new Electricity Generation Customer 
' Choice and Competition Act. 
"The PUC may consider this application .without a hearing. 
Protests directed to the technical or financial' fitness of 
GDF Suez Retail Energy Solutions LLC (d/b/a Think En­
ergy") may be filed withm IS.days of the date of this no­
tice with the .Secretary of the PUC, P.O. Box 3265, Har­
risburg, PA 17105-3265. You should'send copies of any 
protest to the GDF Suez Retail Energy Solutions LLC 
(d/b/a Think Energy;*) attorney at the address.listed be­
low. 

By and'through Counsai: 
Jason Austin 

GDF Suez Retell Energy Solutions, LLC 
1990 Post OaK Boulevard, Suite 1900 

Houston. Texas 77056 
Email: 

Jason, A u sti n @ gdtsuezn a.com 

SS 

On this 26th day of September A.D. 
\ 2011, before me, the subscriber, a 

Notary Public in and for said 
County and State, personalty 
appeared Christine MarltejTut, who 
being duly sworn according to law. 
deposes and says as Classified • 
Advertising Manager of the 
Tribune-Democrat; Johnstown, PA. 
a neivspaper of general circulation 
as defined by the "Newspaper 
Advertising Act", a merger 
September 8,1952, of the Johnstown 
Tribune, established 
December 7.1853; and of the 
Johnstown Democrat, established 
March 5, 1863, 

unty of Cambria, and Commonwealth of Pennsylvania and 
<ove mailer published in said publication in the regular issues 
VA, on September 21, 2011; and that the Affiant is not 
vertisins and that all of the allegations as to time, place and 

character oj said pitbticatioirare'truer 

Sworn :mtl Stil>3(;rih<»l Jjcfori: im: this 

26||] (l;iv of Si:|>ti:iiiln:r. 201 I . 

STATEMENT OF ADVERTISING 

0.00 Lines @ S2.50 per lin«; 0.00 
ft.5 Im;lu:s @ 325.00 per iucli 162.50 
Notary Fui: 5.00 
Clerical Fee IM 

T o t a l Cos t 170.00 

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA 
Notarial Seal 

Vivian Ohs, Notary Public 
Qty of Johnstown, Cambria County 

My Commission Expires Dec 6, 2012 
MEMBER, PENNSYLVANIA ASSOOAHON OF NOTARIES 

To The TriI>iine-Demof;ral. Johnstown, P A 
For pnl i l ishing the no I ice or p i i l i l ica l ion 
attached hereto on the ahove stated dates. 

P U B L I S H E R ' S R E C E I P T F O R A D V E R T I S I N G C O S T S 

foi- p u b l i s h e r o f 

a nowspuper o f genera l e i r e u l a t i o n , he reby acknowledges rece ip t of the a f o r e s a i d 

a n d p u b i i c a t i o n costs a n d ce r t i f i e s that the same has been d u l y p a i d . 

( N a m e o f N e w s p a p e r ) 

By. 



The Patriot-News Co. 
2020 Technology Pkwy 

Suite 300 
Mechanicsburg, PA 17050 
Inquiries-717-255-8213 

Now you know 

GDF SUEZ RETAIL ENERGY SOLUTIONS LLC 

1990 POST OAK BLVD 

SUITE 1900 ATTN NAVEEN RABIE 

HOUSTON TX 77056 

THE PATRIOT NEWS 
THE SUNDAY PATRIOT NEWS 

Proof of Publication 
Under Act No. 587, Approved May 16, 1929 

Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, County of Dauphin} ss 

Holly Blain, being duly sworn according to law, deposes and says: 

That she is a Staff Accountant of The Patriot News Co., a corporation organized and existing under the laws of the 
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, with its principal office and piace of business at 2020 Technology Pkwy, Suite 300, in the 
Township of Hampden, County of Cumberland, State of Pennsylvania, owner and publisher of The Patriot-News and The Sunday 
Patriot-News newspapers of general circulation, printed and published at 1900 Patriot Drive, in the City, County and State 
aforesaid; that The Patriot-News and The Sunday Patriot-News were established March 4th, 1854, and September 18th, 1949, 
respectively, and all have been continuously published ever since; 

That the printed notice or publication which is securely attached hereto is exactly as printed and published in their regular 
daily and/or Sunday/ Community Weekly editions which appeared on the date(s) indicated below. That neither she nor said 
Company is interested in the subject matter of said printed notice or advertising, and that all of the allegations of this statement as 
to the time, place and character of publication are true; and 

That she has personal knowledge of the facts aforesaid and is duly authorized and empowered to verify this statement on 
behalf of The Patriot-News Co. aforesaid by virtue and pursuant to a resolution unanimously passed and adopted severally by the 
stockholders and board of directors of the said Company and subsequently duly recorded in the office for the Recording of Deeds 
in and for said County of Dauphin in Miscellaneous Book "M", Volume 14, Page 317. 

PUBLICATION COPY This ad # 0002170073 ran on the dates shown below: 
September 22, 2011 

mMMONWEALTW OF PENNSYLVANIA 
Notarial Seal 

Sherrte L KJsner, Notaiy Public 
Lower Paxton TVp., Dauphin County 

M v rnmmlslnn Expires Nov. 26, 2011 

Member, Pennsylvania Assodacon OT naranes 



The Patriot-News Co. 
2020 Technology Pkwy 

Suite 300 
Mechanicsburg, PA 17050 

Inquiries - 717-255-8213 
Now you know 

GDF SUEZ RETAIL ENERGY SOLUTIONS LLC 

1990 POST OAK BLVD 
SUITE 1900 ATTN NAVEEN RABIE 

HOUSTON TX 77056 

ALL CHARGES ARE NET 

ACCT# NAME AD ORDER # Dfi jg EDITION ADDTL. INFO, TYPE OF CHARGE AMOUNT 

230432 GDF SUEZ RETAIL ENERGY SOLUTI 0002170073 09/22/11 REGULAR BASIC AD CHARGE $203.58 

REMITTANCE ADDRESS 

The Patriot-News Co. 
23794 Network PL 

Chicago, IL 60673-1237 

AFFIDAVIT CHARGE $5.00 

TOTAL: $208.58 

Please include the Account # or Ad Order # (above) with your remittance-Thank You 

NOTE: This Invoice replaces the Order Confirmation which we previously sent with Proofs of Publication 



P E N N S Y L V A N I A PUBLIC 
UTILITY C O M M I S S I O N 

N O T I C E 
Appttcalion of G D F Suez RelaS Eiwrgy 

Sokjfiorvs L i C (d/b/a T l i i nK Bne ia / ' ) For 
Approval To Offer. Render. Funrsn Or 
Supply Electriaty O r E ledr i c Generation 
Services A s A SuppHer of Elednci ty To The 
Public In TTio CommonweallJi Of 
Pennsylvania. 

G D F Sues Rotaa E re iay S o M f e n s LLC 
(d/b/a T h i n k E n e r g / l will be filing an 
appficafion Willi Ihe Pennsylvafi ia Public 
UBSty Commission t"PUC"5 fer a l icense to 
supply eiectridty or e ledr ic generoUon 
services a s (1) a supplier o f electric power. 
G D F S u e z Rels i i EnerQy Solui lons L L C 
[d/b/a T N n k EnefBy'7 proposes to sell 
electricity and related services Ihruugtiout all 
of Pennsylvania undor (he provisions of the 
new Electricity Generation Customer Choice 
and CompatiBon A c t 

The P U C may consider this fipplicaslon 
wilhoul a hearing. Prolests directed lo the 
ledinical or financial fitness of G D F Suez 
Relafl EneiBV Services Solutions L L C (dlWa 
"ThinK E n a r g / l may be filed within 15 days 
of f i e date of this notice wi lh Hie Secrela iy of 
the P U C , P . O . Box 3265. Harrisburg. P A 
171D5-3Z65. You should send copies of any 
protest to the G D F S u e z Retail Enerfly 
SolJl ions LLC (d/b/a T h i n k Energy"} 
eltomey at Ihe address listed trelow. 

By and through Counse l : 
Jason Aust in 

G D F Suez Retail Energy 
Sotulfons, L L C 

1990 Post Oak Boulevard, Suite 1900 
Houston. Texas 77056 

EmaU: Jason AUEt in@gdSuezna.coni 



BEFORE THE PENNSYLVANIA PUBLIC UTILITY COMMISSION 

Application of GDF Suez Retail Energy Solutions, LLC for approval to offer, render, furnish, or supply electricity or electric generation 
services as a Supplier of Electricity to the public in the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania (Pennsylvania). 

EXHIBIT DESCRIPTION 

Exhibit 1 

Exhibit 2 

Exhibit 3 

Exhibit 4 

Exhibit 5 

Exhibit 6 

Exhibit? 

Exhibit 8 

Exhibits 

Exhibit 10 

Exhibit 11 

Exhibit 12 

Exhibit 13 

Exhibit 14 

Proof of compliance with Department of State filing requirements. 
Reference in Application: Section 2(b) 

Applicant's LLC State of Delaware Filing Documentation 
Reference in Application: Section 2(b) 

Applicant's Third Party Verification Procedures 
Reference in Application: Section 4(g) 

Applicant's Organizational Structure 
Reference in Application: Section 7(b) 

CONFIDENTIAL - GDF SUEZ (Applicant's ultimate parent company) Standard & Poors Ratings Direct Report 
Reference in Application: Section 7(b) 

CONFIDENTIAL - GDF Suez Energy Resources NA, Inc. (Applicant's direct parent company) accounting 
statements; and Applicant's accounting statements 

Reference in Application: Section 7(b) 

CONFIDENTIAL - GDF Suez Energy Resources NA, Inc. (Applicant's direct parent company) Dunns and 
Bradstreet Risk Management Report 

Reference in Application: Section 7(b) 

CONFIDENTIAL - GDF Suez Energy Resources NA, Inc. (Applicant's direct parent company) 2010 Audited 
Financial Statements 

Reference in Application: Section 7(b) 

Other information that demonstrates Applicant's financial fitness 
Reference in Application: Section 8(b) 

Applicant's experience in the electricity industry 
Reference in Application: Section 8(b) 

Summary of licenses and Type of Customers serving 
Reference in Application: Section 8(b) 

Staffing Structure of Applicant 
Reference in Application: Section 8(b) 

CONFIDENTIAL - Business Plans for Operations 
Reference in Application: Section 8(b) 

Proof of PJM Membership 
Reference in Application: Section 8(b) 



BEFORE THE PENNSYLVANIA PUBLIC UTILITY COMMISSION 

Application of GDF Suez Retail Energy Solutions, LLC for approval to offer, render, furnish, or supply 
electricity or electric generation services as a Supplier of Electricity to the public in the Commonwealth 
of Pennsylvania (Pennsylvania). 

Exhibit 1 

RECEIVED 
OCT 1» 

^COMMISSION 



GDF Suez Retail Energy Solutions, LLC is a single member-managed LLC, wholly-owned subsidiary of GDF Suez 
Energy Resources NA, Inc. The Officers of the parent company, GDF Suez Energy Resources NA, Inc. are: 

Officers: 

Robert Wilson, President and CEO 
1990 Post Oak Blvd, Suite 1900 
Houston, Texas 77056 
Tel. 713-636-0000 
Fax: 713-636-1601 
Robert.wilson@gdfsuezna.com 

Craig Sutter,. Sr. Vice President, Sales 
1990 Post Oak Blvd, Suite 1900 
Houston, Texas 77056 
Tel. 713-636-0000 
Fax: 713-636-1601 
Craig.sutter@gdfsuezna.com 

Patrick Gaussent, Vice President and Treasurer 
1990 Post Oak Blvd, Suite 1900 
Houston, Texas 77056 
Tel. 713-636-0000 
Fax: 713-636-1601 
Patrick.Gaussent@gdfsuezna.com 

Jason Austin, Vice President and General Counsel 
1990 Post Oak Blvd, Suite 1900 
Houston, Texas 77056 
Tel. 713-636-0000 
Fax: 713-636-1601 
Jason.Austin@gdfsuezna.com 

Brenda Bayer, Vice President and Asst. Treasurer 
1990 Post Oak Blvd, Suite 1900 
Houston, Texas 77056 
Tel. 713-636-0000 
Fax: 713-636-1601 
Brenda.bayer@gdfsuezna.com 

David Coffman, Vice President 
1990 Post Oak Blvd, Suite 1900 
Houston, Texas 77056 
Tel. 713-636-0000 
Fax: 713-636-1601 
David.coffman@gdfsuezna.com 

Jay Harpole, Vice President Supply 
1990 Post Oak Blvd, Suite 1900 
Houston, Texas 77056 
Tel. 713-636-0000 
Fax: 713-636-1601 
Jay.harpole@gdfsuezna.com 

Cecilia Heilmann, Vice President Business Control 
1990 Post Oak Blvd, Suite 1900 
Houston, Texas 77056 
Tel. 713-636-0000 
Fax: 713-636-1601 
Cecilia.heilmann@gdfsuezna.com 

Rachel W. Kilpatrick, Vice President 
1990 Post Oak Blvd, Suite 1900 
Houston, Texas 77056 
Tel. 713-636-0000 
Fax: 713-636-1601 
Rachei.kilpatrick@gdfsuezna.com 

Zin Smati, Vice President 
1990 Post Oak Blvd, Suite 1900 
Houston, Texas 77056 
Tel. 713-636-0000 
Fax: 713-636-1601 
Zin.smati@gdfsuezna.com 

Naveen Rabie, Assistant Secretary 
1990 Post Oak Blvd, Suite 1900 
Houston, Texas 77056 
Tel. 713-636-0000 
Fax: 713-636-1601 
Naveen.rabie@gdfsuezna.com 

BECEWED 
OCT 19 

.UTlUTf COMMISSION 



Entity #: 4050080 
Date Filed: 08/15/2011 

Carol Aichele 
Secretary of the Commonwealth 

PENNSYLVANIA DEPARTMENT OF STATE 
CORPORATION BUREAU 

Application for Registration of Fictitious Name 
S4Pn.C.S.§3U 

RECEIVED 
OCT 1 9 2011 

Huns PENNC0RP SERVICEGR0UR INC. 
600 N0HIH StUUNl) SIHtET-lc. n 

^ P0 BOX 1810 ^ 
HARRISBURG. PA 17in«.19in 

_ _. » P u

e

B L |C UTILITY COMMISSION 
iih'kft l ( ! n < ' ' J m , : r o n c n , w t o 8ECR£TAHY'S SURS^y 
<= 

Document wtD be retomed i 

Commonwealth of Pennsylvania 
FICTfTIOUS NAME 2 Psgefs) 

Fee: $70 Tl122960021 

fa cojiipliniico willi the requirements of 54 Pa.C.S, § 311 (retoting to regiitration), the undenigned cmityCies) desiring to regisler B 
fictitious nauio under 54 Pa.C.S. Ch. 3 (relating to fictitiousnainu), hereby slate<s) that: 

1. The fictitious name 

2. A brief staLemenl of the charector or naluro of the liusiness or other ncthdty to be carried oo uoder or tlirough 
the (ktitious tmiue b; ^ • A <I . i — 

3. The address, including number am] t l iw, if any, of the principai place ofbujineM (P.O. Box clone is jwt 
acceptable): 

P f l ^ nKt/ ftV.^.^t.. WOQ , u ^ , ^ ^ , a^fl 
Number and aireet City State Zip County 

A. The mntesnd address, tncjudiiig ntunber'and street, it any. of each individual interefled in Ihe business is: 
Nrnne Number and Street City State 

20ilAU6l5 AMIO'.OB 

PA 0EPT OF STATE 



DSCS-M-iU-Z 

5. Bach entity, ether Qim sn individual, inlsmtod in loch businets is (are): 

GDF Suez Retail Energy Solutions, Inc. Coiporation Delaware 
Nanw Foonof Otganizatlon 

1990 Post Oak Blvd., Ste. 1900, Houston, TX 77056 

Organizhig Jurisdiction 

IMrtoipa] Office Mdrvts 

Capitol Corporate Services, Inc. - 600 N 2nd St, Harrisburg, PA 17108, Dauphin County 
FA ftegiitared Office, ifany 

Nam© Form of Oiganizatlan Organizing Juriidiction 

Principal Office Address 

PA Hegiitered OHica, if any 

6. The tpplictnt Ii familiar with ihe ppoviaiom of 54 Pa.C.S. 9 332 (wlatina to effect of reaiswaon) o>d 
urtfcnlancb that filing under the Flctitiotu Namea Act doea oot create any exclusive cr othfr right in tte 
fi<̂ itk>Uiiinmc. 

7. OjHionit): Hie nanie(f) of As agents), If ai^, any one of whom la wthoriiad to execute antandmeoti to, 
wtthdnwals from or cancellation of thia i^istiation in behalf of all then cxUting parties to (he regiitntion, is 

IN TBSTIMONY WHBREOP, the undcrjî ncd have caused this Application for Reglstiiition ofplotitloio 
HUTK tote dxecuted this 

dividual StgoatDra Individual Sigoaturo 

^dividual Signflluro Individual Sigaatun 

f,Pg Suijg. SftWA ^Ofa.^^ LLC, 
ft Entity*»Bnio Jn XK 

I Signature 

Entity Name 

Signature 

Tide 



BEFORE THE PENNSYLVANIA PUBLIC UTILITY COMMISSION 

Application of GDF Suez Retail Energy Solutions, LLC for approval to offer, render, furnish, or supply 
electricity or electric generation services as a Supplier of Electricity to the public in the Commonwealth 
of Pennsylvania (Pennsylvania). 

Exhibit 2 



Entity U: 4030189 
DateF=iled:QS/M/2011 

Carol Aichele 
Secfetary of the Commonwealth 

PENNSYLVANIA DEPARTMENT OF STATE 
CORPORATION BUREAU 

Application for Registiauon - Foreign 
~1 Rcstacrtd Umitti UtbUlty Otrotl Pirtncfihlp (58211) 
_ RagiUffodl birftpd FhWHtylinkedfirtarA^ ft KM) 
_ Llmltod Pnlnnii^ 3 8582) 
ffi LMdUaUUtyOxiqwiiy 3 S9IL) 

PENNC0RP8ERVICBGB0Uf!IWC. 
600 NORTH SECOND STREET,n(?/1 x 

POBOX 1210 )VfM 
HARRISBURG, PA 17108-1210 

Commonwealth.of Pennsylvania 
Appltcatfan for Registration 3Pase(s) 

Til13041037 •II 
Fee: $250 

b coopliicix wilh Che itquimmU of ibe tpplioble ftmixiaai (nlttinj toregbtntkm), (he sademgaed, dstiriDj to 
rejltttr to do buiinen to ihli Conunocwctith, hereby »t«tei ftut 

1. HunanKtoboî ataedlt: 
GDF SUEZ RETAIL ENERGY SOLUTIONS, LLC 

2. fiftttt /ttnx* Wforth tn paragraph ! fa nol Qvaliabkfcr luttflAb Commanvtallh, cctpltli !h*Jbliowing) ; 

ntfuara ' ' '—1—-'- nmwwwwMlth IK 

GDF SUEZ RETAIL ENERGY SOLUTIONS, LLC 

3. Iheiuragfteji^dieaiitidcrtbliwaoriiiUohllm 

4. TLa (•) wlilrr*! oT iu iniUnl rcglitend ofUco in thi» Camamwiltii or (b) rame ofh» cwnmmiiiJ regUterwl 
otdce pwrider isd fl» euBtfy of vow* IK 

(ajtfonbtf aid vtnd State 

(b) NnneorCocameRUI Retfatned OfBca Providtr 

CepltPl CQrporat& Sgrvlggg, Inc. 
Covaty 
DaijpHiH 

2011 HAY -k AHIO! li 
PA DEPT OF STATE 

PA 0EPT OF STATE 



CI HM"* offce office wqufred to b» anlntiliKd tgr ft fa ftu JodKUo&BioflticapDfiitioBtytbalmof 
tfatt Jiriidlrtipi bi 

Number ud Ace! cay Etito 2$ 

St UlifiDtRqnMlytbeltwiofltiMidlctlaDefotgidat^ 
DfUipriDdpi]o{Qc«lR 

1990 POST OAK 3LVD., STE. 1900. HOUSTON^ TCXAS 77056 
NnnAffiiuIitreet Ciiy Sue Zip 

fi. For RttiriOtdPrtftxtiatialUmtlxdLtaUSry Company Oafy. SHbi aia IftitappKcobU; -Pj oumpiaj'tn 
UlliLliil|ii jrl'Jlf"tffffM*ff^,lt*"mi^l-f|MflHTn'ltWvtorfi): 

LhnWitf UttHity Pwrtamkh ind Lhntod Pctiwrhipi ConglihpMBintpftiTmlg 
7. The mae wvl btnfetett tdtfcew of wch geacwl pdiwr. 

tdifcw flf fto ofBos at wbidi Ii kept i U« or the Mnwi od tddnum ot the liaUedp&trutttnd&efr 
oipfa*! watrfanioti U: 

KtuAar and ftrsot City State Zip Qxnty 

Tlartgittenxipartimfaipharê midtrtiJaaloĥ  
CaBmniveaBb ii caooeied or wiftdawn. 

INTBSTIMONY WHHaEOF, 4a •B&ri&eA ha eawetf 
[faia AtyScatioa fer Rê atntion to be dpwd by a dnfy 
aadtoAad dBaariawnlw or omacei thmof ttb 

26 ot; APRIL 2011 

QDF SUEZ RETAIL ENERQYSOLUTIONS, a C 

SUEZ Ensroy Resources NA, Inc. 
Secretary of Managing MembV' 



(DeCazvare PAGE 1 

The first State 

I , JEFFREY W. BULLOCK, SECRETARY OF STATE OF THE STATE OF 

DELAWARE, DO HEREBY CERTIFY "GDF SUEZ RETAIL ENERGY SOLUTIONS, 

LLC" IS DULY FORMED UNDER THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF DELAWARE AND 

IS IN GOOD STANDING AND HAS A LEGAL EXISTENCE SO FAR AS THE 

RECORDS OF THIS OFFICE SHOW, AS OF THE TWENTY-FIFTH DAY OF MAY, 

A.D. 2011. 

AND I DO HEREBY FURTHER CERTIFY THAT THE SAID "GDF SUEZ 

RETAIL ENERGY SOLUTIONS, LLC" WAS FORMED ON THE EIGHTEENTH DAY 

OF APRIL, A.D. 2011. 

AND I DO HEREBY FURTHER CERTIFY THAT THE ANNUAL TAXES HAVE 

NOT BEEN ASSESSED TO DATE. 

RECEIVED 
OCT 1 9 2011 

PfcPUiUG UTILITY COMMISSION 
SECRETARY'S BUREAU 

4970172 8300 

110625024 
You may v e r i f y this certificate online 
at corp.delawaro.gov/authvar.shtml 

AUTHEN. 
T \ Jeffrey W. 

NT3^ATION: 
'. Bullock, Secretary of Slate 

8788980 

DATE: 05-25-11 



rDeCaiuare 
Ihe first State 

PAGE 1 

I , JEFFREY W. BULLOCK, SECRETARY OF STATE OF THE STATE OF 

DELAWARE, DO HEREBY CERTIFY THE ATTACHED IS A TRUE AND CORRECT 

COPY OF THE CERTIFICATE OF FORMATION OF "GDF SUEZ ENERGY 

SOLUTIONS, LLC", FILED IN THIS OFFICE ON THE EIGHTEENTH DAY OF 

APRIL, A.D. 2011, AT 11:51 O'CLOCK A.M. 

RECEIVED 
OCT 1 9 2011 

PA PUBLIC UTILITY COMMISSION 
SECRETARY'S EURiAU 

4970172 8100 

110424850 
you may verify this certificate online 
at corp.deZaware-gov/authver.shtml 

vn I \ Jeffrey VV. Bullock, Secretary ofSLaLe 

AUTHENTICATION: 8700231 

DATE: 04-18-11 



State of Delaware 
Secretary of state 

Division or Corporations 
Delivered 11:54 m 04/18/2011 

FILED 11:51 AM 04/18/2011 
SRV 110424850 - 4970172 FILE 

CERTIFICATE OF FORMATION 

OF 

GDF SUEZ ENERGY SOLUTIONS, LLC 

1. The name of the limited liabflffy company is GDF SUEZ Energy Solutions, LLC. 

2. The address of its registered office in the State of Delaware is 815 South Dupont 
Highway, in the City of Dover, County of Kent. The name of its registered agent at such 
address is Capitol Services, Inc. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has executed this Certificate of 
Formation of GDF SUEZ Energy Solutions, LLC this 15th day of April, 2011. 

GDF SUEZ ENERGY RCES NA, INC. 

Authorized Person 
e: Jason Austin, Vice President 

RECEIVED 
OCT 1 9 2011 

PA PUBLIC UTILITY COMMISSION 
SECRETARY'S BUREAU 

LG.CORp\GDF SUEZ ENERQY SOLUTIONS LLC-DE FORMATION 



(DeCazuare PAGE 1 

Uie first State 

I , JEFFREY W. BULLOCK, SECRETARY OF STATE OF THE STATE OF 

DELAWARE, DO HEREBY CERTIFY THE ATTACHED IS A TRUE AND CORRECT 

COPY OF THE CERTIFICATE OF AMENDMENT OF "GDF SUEZ ENERGY 

SOLUTIONS, LLC", CHANGING ITS NAME FROM "GDF SUEZ ENERGY 

SOLUTIONS, LLC" TO "GDF SUEZ RETAIL ENERGY SOLUTIONS, LLC", 

FILED IN THIS OFFICE ON THE TWENTY-SIXTH DAY OF APRIL, A.D. 

2011, AT 7:24 O'CLOCK P.M. 

RECEIVED 
OCT 1 9 2011 

PA PUBLIC UTILITY COMMISSION 
SECRETARY'S BUREAU 

4970172 8100 

110458301 
You may v e r i f y this certificate online 
at corp.dslaware.gov/authveir.Bhtml 

Jeffrey W. Bullock. Secretary of State 

AUTHENttcATION: 8719331 

DATE: 04-27-11 



State of Delaware 
Secretary of State 

Division or Corpora tions 
Delivered 07:26 PM 04/26/2011 

FILED 07:24 PM 04/26/2011 
SRV 110458301 - 4970172 FILE 

STATE OF DELAWARE 
CERTIFICATE OF AMENDMENT 

1. Name of Limited Liability Company: 
GDF SUEZ Energy Solutions, LLC 

2. The Certificate of Formation of the Jimtted liability company is hereby amended 
as follows: 

1. The name of Che l imi ted l i a b i l i t y company i s GDF 
SUEZ Re ta i l Energy Solutions, LLC. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned have executed this Certificate on 
the 26th day 0 f A p r i l _ ) A.D. 2011 , 

Authorized Person(s) 

N a m e : J a s o n Austin 

Print or Type 



BEFORE THE PENNSYLVANIA PUBUC UTILITY COMMISSION 

Application of GDF Suez Retail Energy Solutions, LLC for approval to offer, render, furnish, or supply 
electricity or electric generation services as a Supplier of Electricity to the public in the Commonwealth 
of Pennsylvania (Pennsylvania). 

Exhibit 3 

RECEIVED 
OCT 1 9 



GDF Suez Retail Energy Solutions, LLC 

Third Party Verification Procedures 

GDF Suez Retail Energy Solutions, LLC (GSRES) has established the following Third Party Verification 
Procedures as part of the sales process: 

1. All telephonic and door-to-door sales with any commercial customer will require a Third Party 
Verification (TPV) call. 

a. For telephonic sales, once the customer has agreed to the product and terms, a recorded, 
scripted TPV call will be completed. 

b. For door to door sales, once the customer has agreed to the product and terms, a recorded, 
scripted TPV call will be completed by a third party verification vendor. 

2. The TPV call will be recorded and retained for a minimum of two (2) years. 

3. The TPV process will be monitored by the GSRES Compliance Manager, in conjunction with GDF 
Suez legal staff to ensure ongoing compliance with existing regulations. 



BEFORE THE PENNSYLVANIA PUBLIC UTILITY COMMISSION 

Application of GDF Suez Retail Energy Solutions, LLC for approval to offer, render, furnish, or supply 
electricity or electric generation services as a Supplier of Electricity to the public in the Commonwealth 
of Pennsylvania (Pennsylvania). 

Exhibit 4 

KPUBucunury 



GDF SUEZ Energy North America, Inc. 
April 30, 2011 - Confidential International Power 

(1) The French government 
owns 35.88%. 

GDF SUEZ S.A. (1) 
(French society anonyme) 

AH ownership is 100% unless otherwise noted. 

GSENA Business Unit 

Owns Non-Power Generation Assets 

GDF SUEZ Energy 
Development NA, Inc. 

(Delaware) 

TNA Merchant Projects, Inc. 
(Delaware) 

See Separate Chart (p. 4) 

GDF SUEZ Plainfield 
Renewable Company, 

LLC (Delaware) 

GDF SUEZ NYC, LLC 
(Delaware) 

GDF SUEZ Energy 
Market ing NA, Inc. 

(Delaware) 

Tractebel Finance US, 
Inc. 

(Delaware) 

SUEZ LNG Ventures NA, 
LLC 

(Delaware) 

99.13' 

Eiectrabel S.A. 
(Belgium societe anonyme) 

.E7% 

GENFINA S.C.R.L. (2) 
(Belgium) 

69.7% 

International Power pic 
(UK) 

International Power (Zebra) 

Limited (UK) 

.03% 

Calypso U;S. Pipeline, LLC 
(Delaware) 

Calypso LNG, LLC 
(Delaware) 

i 2011 GDF SUEZ Energy North America, Inc. 
iAJIrights reserved., 

99.99 % 

GDF SUEZ Energy Asia, 
Turkey & Southern Africa B.V. 

(Netherlands) 

Suez-Tractebel S.A. 
(Belgian societe anonyme) 

GDF SUEZ Energia de Mexico 
Nederland Holding B.V. 

(Netherlands) 

GDF SUEZ Energy North America, Inc. 

(Delaware) 

99.9956% 

GDF SUEZ Energia de Mexico, S.A. de 
C.V. 

(Mexico) 
See Separate Charts (pp. 19-20) 

.0044% 

GDF SUEZ GAS NA 
HOLDINGS LLC 

(Delaware) 
See Separate Chart (p. 3) 

94.52% 

> 

GDF SUEZ Energy 
Generation North 

America, Inc. 
(Delaware) 

See Separate Charts 
(PP- 5-13) 

V V 

SUEZ Renewable Energy 
NA, LLC 

(Delaware) 
See Separate Chart (p. 10) 

5.48% 

GDF SUEZ North 
America E&P Corp. 

(Delaware) 

SUEZ Wind Energy NA, 
Inc. 

(Delaware) 

GDF SUEZ Energy 
Resources NA, Inc. 

(Delaware) 

NFM Solar Power, 
LLC 

(Delaware) t p . 

=3" 

t f i CD 

GDF SUEZ Retail Energy 
Solutions, LLC 

(Delaware) 

CD 

v- 1 

-
Proprietary and d&n'ffifyential 

ENERGY EUROPE & INTERNATION§ 

m o 

s 
LG.ACG.CORP CHARTS 



GSERNA Small Customer Business Organization April 2011 

1'Oirectar,!g' 

Manager, " 
r Marketing Mgtnt 

Planning 

Oreanl^ation Chart Legend 

I April 2 0 H Recruit 

June 2011 Recruit 

September 2011 Recruit 

ChanneJ Manager 
'•• NEPOOL/NVISO-
• (Agents/Affinity)' 

, Channel Manager 

; (Agents/Affinity)' 

Manager, 
Telesales 

^':^i^3nage'r,^::>-'i 

Joon Chun 

Manager, 
Operations 

Summary of Incremental PTEs 

Function 
Reports to Small 

Custo m er Business 
Reports to Existing 

Dept GSERNA/GSENA Total fncremental 

GM 2 2 
Supply 3 3 
Marketing 4 4 
Sales 6 6 
Ops/Customer Care 4 4 
Process/Systems MgmtSc IT 3 4 
Bus Control 4 4 
Legal 1 1 

Totals 16 11 27 

Note - Positions shown as "Manager" with no direct reports may have a title change to "Specialist" 
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GDF SUEZ ENERGY NORTH AMERICA, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION 
AS O F DECEMBER 31. 2010 AND 2009 
(In thousanris) 

No!ei 2010 1009 
A S S E T S 

NONCURRENT ASSETS: 
Inlnngiblc asc l l — net (. S 82.1.73 S 172,4511 
Goodwill 7 0115.353 893.65 8 
1'jopcily. plain, and equipment —ncl ti M4rt.S-l3 S.I 27.015 
Deriv aiivc instnimcnlj 14 129.7K3 107.051 
ImctlmenK in nisodnlcs ') K0.325 107.532 
Older noncurrem osscls 12 79.46] io;.4;6 
Dcrcncd [ i \ asset! 5 1.751 21,892 

Total noncuitenl assets 7,.|27,TO 6,532,074 

CURRENT ASSETS: 
Derivative instruments 14 2(11J71) 193.6]y 
Notes rcecKnbk 13 36.801 
Trodc ord other rccci\Bb!ej — net 13 595.1*1 631.634 
Imenlorics 11 177.1B; 193.631 
Other current assets i ; 125.44! 3U5 f i 
Cosh andcishcqtmnlcms I-1 160.20] 152,410 

Total euncnt assets 1.259.11 fiS 1.239.451 

TOTAL SS.6I7.7J7 * 7.771,525 

LIABILITIES ANO EQUITY 

EQUITY: 
Shareholder's equity S 2.527.1:11 52.253.457 
Nnncontrolling interest ]%.7(H 6.826 

Total equin 2.717.S24 2.260.283 

CONCURRENT LIABILITIES: 
Provisions l(. 34.730 34,879 
Lone-lcrm bonouings 13.1i 3.m.lS95 3.430.446 
Deri vol i ie insininKMf 14 186,054 173.016 
Other noncurrem liabilities If. 22 ].',) 11 191.029 
Deferred tax liabilities 5 97.377 62.097 

Total noncurrcnl li obi lilies 4.436.867 3,891,467 

CURRENT UABlLIT i l -S: 
Pmv is ions 16 35.353 66.603 
Short-term borrowings 13.15 545,115 655.565 
Deris mi vt mstiumenli IJ 394.776 365.459 
Trndc mid other payables 13 43 0.3(Hi 397.715 
Other euncnt liabilities IC. 127,522 134,433 

Total current liohililies 1,533.066 1,619.775 

TOTAL SB.6K7.757 S 7.771.525 

Sec notes lo consolidated (inoncia) stotcments. 

GDF SUEZ ENERGY NORTH AMERICA, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME 
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009 
(In thousands) 

Reienues 

Purchases 

Personnel coils 

Depreciation, amoiti/ation und proi isions 

Olher opcraling cvpenses 

CURRENT OPERATING INCOME 

MmL-to-martci on commodity controcls other than trading instruments 

[mpoirmcnls of properly, plant und equipment and intangible assets 

Rcstiucturini; costs 

Disposal orossels — net 

INCOME FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

Financiol expenses 

Financial income 

NET FINANCIAL LOSS 

Net income before income tax and assoc 

Income lax benefit 

Share in nel income of associates 

NET INCOME 

Company' share 

Non-control liny interest 

2010 

S J.!511,130 

(•1.023.742) 

(218.7211) 

(347,348) 

(265.880) 

2I)4,440 

40.858 

(59.07 II 

(5.416) 

n « » i 

254.558 

(291.5161 

20.574 

(270.942) 

(16.384) 

21.826 

s 4.598 

s It.459) 

6.057 

2009 

S 4.969.074 

(3.862.%5| 

(211.8991 

(267.4721 

(119,854) 

506,884 

(6.040) 

(1W.405I 

(12.406) 

(39,5118) 

283.625 

(248.603) 

28,941 

(219.662) 

63.96J 

12.9311 

i LS59 , 

I 75.3.14 

s 71.295 

s 4,1139 

Sec notes lo consolidated financial statements. 



GDF SUEZ ENERGY NORTH AMERICA, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 
FOR TME ^EWRS ENDED OSCEMBER S'V, Vim MID vm 
(In thousands) 

NET INCOME 

Nel invcstinent hedges 

Cash flow hedges 

Commodiiy cash flow hedges 

Actuarial gains and losses 

Deferred 1 fixes 

Trans] alt on adjustments 

Other comprehensive income 

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 

Company share 

Nun-comro l l i ng interests 

201D 

S -1,598 

(2.651) 

(16.384) 

100,769 

(•150) 

(2a, 198) 

17,950 

71.036 

2009 

S 75.334 

(7.070) 

42.,)66 

(23.806) 

3.411 

(1.767) 

31.984 

45.718 

S 75.634 SI2i.0S2 

$ 69.577 SI 17.013 

S 6.057 S 4.039 

See notes to consolidaied rtnancial stmemcnls. 

GDF SUEZ ENERGY NORTH AMERICA, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2010 AND 1009 
fin thfm'indt. eacepl share amountsl 

- mi 
B V P t l w U i r -

I - W i r Y — J m i u i v 

IUhfr w w p n l c o i n 

. i K l . i l p B - . l i i 

1,111) 1 •• l L C 7 i . l i ; 5 M3i9 S l i n , J ID) 

71 > « 

( 1 ,011131 

] n i l i m p i U i k i n i l l . B J 11 7 H . ' l . * * 4 l l J . O L i I f l . m ; 

JGJ.ITT 

t i n p b > « i l i H C - h ' i c d e w ; i * 7 I . « 

IhiDtlidnCina I kd p o n A i x D o f l d J l h O K l 
[.•-•SU i t ! ! ! , 

!; 11 M i l 1. IA1 1351.41? *.*» 
17.5M1 7 1 0 . 6 71.05S 

lofCM) tocrtm ( l . 4 » l m m 6.017 l i l t 

T J ^ I I v i r e f i r e b a m i [ l . J U l 17 « u •11.177 ( J l ) 7 71.111 

C H A i l T t i i i H i ' l u n p n * 2 1 - ™ n u . 

A J I H U ^ o i i k f i L d i l i c p I H 7 M H i ™ 

1.0 u 

IE6 DOOl U . H I I i r o . d d 

K i n L V M l ( 1 H l l n . W O I Slua.TOJ I 2 . 7 1 7 . l i ; i 



GDF SUEZ ENERGY NORTH AMERICA, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 

COMSOUDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009 
(In thousands) 

2010 2009 

C A S H FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES: 
Met income 
Share in nel loss ofassocialcs 
Dividends received from nssocimcs 
Ncl deprccmlion. nmortiznlion, mid provisions 
Nel capiial loss on disposal (including reversals of provision) 
Mark lo market on commodiiy comracls other than trading instruments 
I nip airmen I of proper))', plant, and equipment nnd intangibles assets 
Oihcr items with no cash impact 
Income tax benefit 
Ncl financial loss 

Cash generated from opera I ions before income lax and 
working capital requirements 

Tax paid 
Change in working capital requirements 

Ncl cash provided by operating activities 

C A S H FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES; 
Acquisitions of properly, plant, and equipment and intangible assets 
Acquisitions of entities ncl of cash and cash equivalents acquired 
Change in resiricicd cash 
Change In loans and receivables originated by the group and other 

Net cash used in investing activities 

C A S H FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES: 
Dividends paid 
Repayment of borrowings and debt 
Interest paid 
Increase in borrowings and debt 
Increase in capital 

Ncl cash (used in) provided by financing activities 

EFFECT OF CHANGES IN E X C H A N G E RATES AND OTHER 

T O T A L CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

C A S H AND CASH EQUIVALENTS — Beginning of year 

C A S H AND CASH EQUIVALENTS — End of year 

See notes tn consolidated financial stfltements. 

S 4.598 S 75.334 
844 1.559 

2.136 2.513 
379.588 267.472 
16.253 39.508 
(40.858) 6.940 
59.071 164.405 
I.S3I 2.744 

(21.826) (12.930) 
270.042 219,662 

672.579 767.207 

(22.674) (35.074) 
29.487 (151,691) 

679.392 580.442 

(178.381) (718,397) 
(243.689) (32,119) 
17.349 (9.662) 
36,801 10.235 

(367.920) (749.943) 

(16.000) 
(1.069.011) (329.113) 
(248,259) (245.324) 
800.810 452.058 
212.000 204.197 

(320.460) 81.818 

16.779 6,179 

7,791 (81,504) 

152,410 233,914 

S 160.201 S 152.410 
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GDF SUEZ ENERGY NORTH AMERICA, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
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1. DESCRIPTION O F BUSINESS 

G D F SUEZ Energy North America, Inc, (ihe "Company" or "GSENA") is a wholly-owned subsidiary of 
Suez-Traclcbcl. S.A. (ihe "Parent"), a Belgian company, and was formed and incorporated in 1981 in 
the slate of Delaware. The Parent is a wholly owned subsidiary of GDF SUEZ S.A. (GDF SUEZ), a 
French-domiciled company: therefore. GDF SUEZ is the Company's ultimate parent ("Ultimale 
Controlling Party"), 

The Company has 13.400 shares of common stock auihori7«d, with 8,950 shares issued and oiitsinuding. 
The shares are all owned by the Parent and have no preferences or rcstriciions. 

The Company's primary subsidiaries and their activities are as follows: 

G D F SUEZ Energy Geneniiion North Amenva. Inc. (GENCO) — engaged in owning and operating 
retail, industrial, and nonmility wholesale powcr-gencrating facilities. 

C D F S U E Z dm- NA Holilmgs L L C (dSGNA/l) — engaged in the purchase, storage, and resale of 
liquefied nnturnl gas. 

G D F SUEZ linerxy Resaurces NA. Inc. (GSERNA) —engaged in the marketing and sale of retail 
electricity to commercial and industrial customers. 

G D F SUEZ Energy Marketing; NA. Inc. (GSIMNA) — engaged in risk management iictivities supporting 
other Company subsidiaries. 

G D F SUEZ S'tmlt Amermi E & I ' Carp (E&!') — engaged in exploration and production activities in the 
G u l f o f Mexico, subsequently sold in January 2011 (see Note 25). 

The Company is hend(|iiancrcd at 1990 Post Oak Blvd. Houston, T.X 77056. 

On March 31. 2011. the Company's management approved and ainhori/id io issue the consolidated 
financial statements of the Company for ihcyear ended December 31.2010. 

SIGNIFICANT A C C O U N T I N G POLICIES 

Index to Accounting Policies 

A Basis of Prcseulation 

B Principles of Consolidation 
B . l Subsidiaries 
B.2 Associates 

B.3 Joinl Ven!nres 

C Business Combinations 

D Use of Estimates 
D. l Provision Estimates 
D.2 Postemploymem Benefit Obligations 
D.3 Recoverable Amount of Property. Plant, and Equipment and lulangible Asscis 
D.4 Financial Insimments 
D.5 Tax Loss Canyfowards 

D.6 Allowance for Doubtful Accounts 

E Cash and Cash Equivalents nnd Restricted Cash 

F Inventories 
G Financial Insimments, Derivatives and Risk Management 

G. l Financial Assets 
0 2 Financial Liabilities 
G.3 Derivatives and Hedge Acconniing 
G.4 Definition and Scope of Derivative Instruments 
G.5 Embedded Derivatives 
G.6 Hedging Instruments: Recognition and Prcseutalion 
G.7 Derivative In si rumen is Not Qualifying for Hedge Accounting 
G.S Fair Value of Financial Instruments 

H Property. Plant, and Equipment 

I Impairment of Property. Plant, and Equipment and Intangible Assets 

J Goodwill 

K Intangibles 

L Revenue Recognition 

M Leases 

N Income Taxes 
N . l Deferred Tax 

N.2 Current Tax 

O Foreign Currency Translation 

1' Provisions 
P.l Asset Retirement Obligations 

P.2 Postemploymem Benefit Obligations and Olher Long-Term Employee Benefits 

Q Share-Based Payments 
Q.l Slock Opiion Plans 
0.2 Share Appreciation Rights 
0.3 Shares Granted to Employees 

0.4 Employee Share Purchase Plans 

R Exploration and Production 
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A . Bas is o f i ' r csen ln t ion — T h e Company ' s consol idated f inancial siniements for ihe year ended 

December 3 1 , 2 0 1 0 . have been prepared in accordance w i l h Imemai ional F inancia l Report ing Standards 

( I F R S ) as publ ished by the Intemalional Acconn i i ng Standards Board ( ! A S B ) . The pol ic ies set mil 

be low have been winsis iemly appl ied to a l l Ihe years presenled. 

The Company's consolidated financial siaiements have been prepared under Ihe historical cosi 

convention except for some derivative and financial instniments measured at fair value in conformity 

with Intemalional Acconniing Standard (iAS) 39, Fimmchd Imtmnienis: Recogmiioii mill 

Meaxureumii. 

T h e prepafaftoit o f the Caatpetsy's oattfal idated F m s n c k l f tstcmants teqa i ra ; msasgemsn l l o itsc c e M a n 

cr i t i ca l occottnting estimates and requires management to exercise i ls judgment in the process o f 

a p p l y i n g the account ing pol ic ies. Delineated wi th in ihe noies arc areas invo lv ing a higher degree o f 

judgment or complexi ty , or areas where assumptions and cs i imalcs are signif icant to the consol idated 

f inancia l statements (see Note 2.D), 

IFUS Standards. Amendments, and Iniernalivnal Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee 

(IFRIQ Inierprriarions applicable to the 2010 annual financial smtmems: 

• Amendments to IFRS 3 (revised) — Business Combinations, which applies lo acquisitions of 

controlling interests (within the meaning of IAS 27 revised) thai lake place after Janiiaty 1. 2010, 

and IAS 27 (revised) — Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements. 

• Improvements to IFRS 2009 

• Amendment to IAS 39 — Fligihh Hedged Items 

• A m e n d m c n l 10 I F R S 2 — Gr<mp Cask-set t led S l t a n - h a s e d payment 'frapLsocliolts 

• Amendments to IFRS 5 — Non-curreni Assets Held for Sale and Disamltmted Operaiiatts 

• 1FR1C 17 — Dlsirlbtttions of Non-Cash Assets to (hvners 

These amendments and interpretations do not have a material impact on the Company ' s consolidated 

f inanc ia l statements. 

IFRS Standards and litierprciaitons Effective after 2010 f'iaf the Company has vkcied not loiwfvaifopi 

HI 2010: 

• IFRS 9 — Financia l Instniments: Class i f icat ion nnd Measurement 

• IAS 24 (revised) — Related-Parly Disc losures 

• Amendment to I A S 32 — C l a s s i f i c a t i o n o f Rights Issues 

• Amendment lo I A S 12 — Deferred Tax — Recovery o f Under ly ing Assets 

• Amtndmen i s l o I F R S 1 — Enhancing Disc losures aboul T iansfers of F inancia l Assets 

• I F R I C 19 — Ex i ingu ish ing Financial L iab i l i t ies with Equ i ty Instruments 

• Amendment to I F R I C 14 — Prepaid Voluntary Con tri but ions 

T h e Company does not expect these standards and interprelal ions to have a material impact to its 

consol idated financial siaiements. 

B. Prinriplesof Consnlitlatiun —The consolidaiion mclViods used by ihe Company consist of the full 

consolidalion method, the proportionate consolidation method, and the equity meihod. The Company 

a.ssesses the extent of its control of or influence over each of its investee's operaling and financing 

policies, taking into account the guidance contained in IAS 27. Consolidated Financial Slatements and 

- 1 0 -

Accomtmg for Investments tn Subsidiaries: IAS 28. Acctimting for Iiiresnnenis in Associates: and 

IAS 31. Finuncttd Reporting of investments in Joinl Ventures. 

fS. i Subsidiar ies — Subsidiar ies are a l l entii'tes. inc luding unincorporated cnti i ies. such as partnersli ips. 

over wh ich the Company exercises contro l . T h e existence and effect o f poicut iai vo i ing rights that we 

currently exercisable o r convertible are considered when assessing whether the Company controls 

another en l i l y . 

Subsidiar ies are ful ly consol idated f rom the date on which Ihe Company obtains conl ro l . T h e y are 

deconsolidated from the date that control ceases. 

Intercompany transactions, balances, and unrcal i ted gains on Iiansaclions lielweett companies are 

el iminated. Unreal ized losses are also e l iminated unless the transaction provides evidence o f an 

impainnenl o f Ihe asset transferred. The account ing pol ic ies o f ihe Company 's subsidiaries have been 

changed, where necessary, to ensure consistency with the acconni ing pol ic ies adopted by the Company . 

H.2Assnc in ies — The equity method is used for a l l associate companies over which the Company 

exercises stgnvficani inf luence, hut not contro l . In accotdance wi th this meihod. the C o m p a i w tecognizes 

its proportionate share o f the investee's net income or loss on a separale line o f the consol idated 

statements o f income under share in nel income o f associates. 

When the Company 's share o f losses, inc luding any other unsecured receivables, in an associate equals 

or exceeds its interest i n the associalc, the Company does not recognize further losses unless i i has 

incurred obligations or made payments on behal f o f the associate. Unreal ized gains on transaclions 

belween the Company and its associates are el imiuuted to the extent o f the C o m p a n y ' s interest in the 

associates. Unreal ized losses are also el iminated unless the transaciion provides evidence o f an 

impairment o f t he asset transferred. Accoun t ing pol ic ies o fassoc ia lcs have been changed where 

necessaiy to ensure consistency w i l h the pol ic ies adopted by the Company . 

B . S J n i n t Ventures — Compan ies over wh ich ihe Company exercises j o i n l control are consol idated by 

the proportionate method, based on the Company ' s percentage interest. The Company combines its 

share o f the joint venture 's ind iv idual income and expenses, assets and l iabi l i t ies, and cash f lows on a 

l i ne -by - l be basis wi th simi lar items in the Company ' s consolidated f inancial slatements. 

The Company recognizes the portion o f gains or losses on ihe sale o f asseis by the Company to the joint 

venture thai is attributable to the other venturers, The Company does not recognize its share o f profits or 

losses fiom ll ie joint venture that result from the Company ' s purchase o f asseis f rom the joint venture 

unti l it resells the assets to an independenl party. A loss on the transaction is recognized immedia le ly i f 

ihe loss provides ev idence o f a reduction in the net realizable value o f current assets or an impai rmem 

loss. Account ing pol ic ies o f j o in l ventures have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency 

wi th the accounting pol ic ies adopted by the Company. 

A list o f Ihe main ful ly consolidated and proport ionately consolidated companies, together wi th 

investments accounted for by the equity method, is presented in Note 25. 



C . Business C o m b i n n l i o n s — For business combinai ions carried out since January I, 2010, ihe 
C o m p a n y appl ies ihe acquisi t ion meihod as def ined in I F R S 3 (reviseil) a l l ow ing a choice on a 
t rnnsact ion-by- l tansnaion basis for lite measurement o f noncnntrol l ing interests al ihe dale o f 
acquis i t ion either al fair value or al the nonconi rol l ing inierests' share o f recognized identif iable nel 
assets o f t he acquirer. T h e recognit ion and subsequent account ing requirements for contingent 
considerat ion are measured al fair value at the ncquis i l ion date; subsequent ndjuslments to the 
considerat ion arc recognized against the cost o f t he acquisi t ion only to the extent that they arise from 
n e w information obtained wi th in the measurement period (a max imum o f 12 monllts from ihe 
acquis i t ion date) about Ihe fair value at the date o f acquisi t ion. A l l other subsequent ndjuslmenls to 
cont ingent consideration classi f ied as an asset or a l iabi l i ty arc recognized in prolt l or loss. Th i s change 
a l s o requires the recognit ion o f a sel l lemeni gain or loss when Ihe business combinat ion in effect settles 
a preexi si i ng relai ion ship between ihe Company and the acquirce. Acquis i t ions after January 1. 2010. 
requires related costs to be accounted for separately f rom the business combinat ion, general ly leading to 
those costs beiitfi recognized as an expense in profit or loss as incur red whereas previously ihey were 
accounted for as pan o f t he cost o f t he acquisi t ion. 

D . Use o f Es t imates — The preparation o f consolidated financial statements requires the use o f 
est imates nnd assumptions to determine ihe value o f certain assets and i iabi l i t ies, the disclosure o f 
cer ta in contingeni asseis and Itabil i l ics at the dale o f Ihe consol idaied f inancial statements, and cenain 
revenues and expenses reported during the period. These estimates arc evaluated on an ongoing basis 
u t i l i z i ng l i istor ical experience, consultation w i l h outside advisors, and other methods considered 
reasonable in Ihe particular circumstances. A l i hough these estimates are based on manaBcment's best 
ava i lab le knowledge at ihe time, due lo tmcenaini ics inherent in the estimation process, actual results 
m a y differ from those estimates. The efTects o f revis ions lo estimates are recognized when the facts that 
g i v e rise to the revis ion become known. 

T h e estimates used in preparing the Company ' s consol idated f inancial siaiements pr imar i ly relate lo: 

• The measurement o f provis ions, part icular ly d ismant l ing obl igal ions, disputes, and postern pi oyment 
benefit obl igat ions 

• Measurement o f ihe recoverable amount o f goodw i l l : intangible assets; and property, plant, and 
equipment 

• F inanc ia l instrument and der ivai ivc valuation 

• Measurement o f capital ized lax loss carryforwards 

• Unb i l l ed revenue (sec Note 2.L) 

• A l l owance for doubtful accounts 

D . I P rov i s i on Es i ima ics — Provis ion esl imales with paramelers having a signif icant inf luence oh Ihe 

amount o f provisions include expenditure t iming, the discount rate appl ied to future cash f lows, and the 

actua l level o f expend i lure. These parameters are based on information and estimates deemed to be 

appropriate al the currcnl l ime. 

D. 21'ostemployment Henefu Obl igat ion-; — Employee benefi l obl igat ions are valued on Ihe basis o f 
ac luar ia l assumptions. A l though the Company considers the assumptions used in the valuation model to 
be documented and appropriate, any changes in these assumptions may have a material impact on ihe 
resu l t ing calculat ion. 
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D.3 Recoverable Amount o f Property, Plant, a n d Equipment a n d Intangible Assc is — T h e recoverable 
amount o f properly, plant, and equipment: goodwi l l : and intangible assets is based on estimates and 
assumptions regarding future cash flows and Ihe market outlook associated wi th the assets. Changes in 
these estimates and assumptions may result in the requirement to recognize an impa innen l o f t he 
carry ing amount, 

D . J F i n a n c i a l Instnmtei i is — The Company uses valuation techniques to determine the fair value o f 

f inancial insimments thai are noi ac i ive ly listed on a market. Changes in the assumptions used in 

valuation lechniques cou ld have a material impact on the resulting calculat ion. 

1X5 Tax Loss Car ry fo rwards — Deferred tax assets arc recognized on lax loss carryforwards when it is 

probable that taxable prof t l w i l l be avai lable against wh ich the tax loss carryforwards can be ut i l ized. 

D. 6 A l lowance f o r Dtmbt f i i l Acvounm; — The Company a cent es an al lowance for doubtful accounts 
based on esl imales o f uncol lect ib le revenues after analyz ing various factors, inc luding accounts 
receivable agings, historical col lect ions, and customer-specif ic circumstances. At December 31, 2010 
and 2009. the Company maintained an al lowance for doubiful accounts o f S6.6 mi l l i on and S7.9 m i l l i on , 
respectively. The C o m p a n y writes o f f accounts receivable balances against the al lowance for doubtful 
accounts when a receivable is determined to be uncol lect ible. 

E . C a s h nnd C a s h Equ i va l en t s and Rest r ic ted C a s h — Cash and cash equivalents compr ise cash on 

hand, deposits held on ca l l with banks, and other short-term and highly l iqu id investments where the r isk 

o f a change in value is deemed to be negl igible based on the criteria set out in IAS 7, C a s h F l o w 

Statements. Bank overdrafts are included in short-term borrowings in the consolidated balance sheets. 

Cash balances that arc restricted less than one year are included in short term cash. 

Cash balances required to be maintained in accordance wi th certain agreements that are restricted in use 

for greater than one year , including maintenance reserve funds, debt-sinking funds, and certain 

trading-related contracts are c lassi f ied as restricted aiid M e included in other noncurrem asseis in the 

accompanying consol idated balance sheets. 

C a s h P o o l Ar rangement — T h e Company and i ls subsidiaries address cash f low needs by part icipating 
in a cash pool arrangement. The terms o f the cash pool arrangement are determined by the Ul t imate 
Parent and provide for the Company ' s subsidiaries wi lh excess funds to temporari ly loan ftmds into the 
cash pool so thai subsidiaries in need o f funds can tempoiari ly borrow from the pool . Pool ing occurs 
first among the C o m p a n y ' s subsidiaries and then w i l h an aff i l ia ie o f t h e Parent. Interest is earned at rates 
equivalent to third-party investment rates, i f the Company is a net lender to the pool , and at the London 
Inter Bank Of fered Ra le ( L I B O R ) , plus 1,5%. i f the Company is a net borrower from Ihe pool . T h e cash 
pool arrangemeni was renewed on December 31 . 2009, for an addit ional three-year te im. 

F. Inventor ies — Inventories arc measured at the lower o f cost or net real izable value, except for 
storage o f nalttral gas inventory, wh ich is marked to market. N e l real izable value corresponds to Ihe 
estimated sel l ing price in the ordinary course o f business, less the estimated costs o fcomple t ton and the 
estimated costs necessary to make lite sale. L iquef ied natural gas ( L N G ) inventory is determined using 
the firsl-tn. ftrst-out method, and natural gas and olher fuel inventories are determined us ing the first-in, 
first-out method or.weighted-average cost method. 

S ince emission rights are consumed in the production process, they are classi f ied as inventory. Emiss ion 
rights granlcd free o f charge are recorded iu Ihe balance sheets at a zero value, and emiss ion rights 
purchased in the market are recognized at acquisi t ion cost. Renewable energy credits that are generated 
as a by-produci o f product ion are recorded at fair value. 
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G . F in i i nc in l I ns i rumcnrs . Der iva t ives nnd R i s k M a n a g e m e n t — T h e Company ' s overal l risk 

manngemem program focuses on the unpredictabil i ty o f financial markets and seeks to min imize 

potent ia l adverse efTects on the Company ' s f inancial performance. The Company uses derivative 

instn iments to hedge certain risk exposures, such as interest rales, foreign currency exchange rates, and 

commod i t y prices. 

F inanc ia l instruments and derivatives arc recognized and measured in accordance wi th IAS 32. 

F i m t i i a u l /ns tn imen i * : I'n-xeitftition, and financial instniments: recognit ion nnd measurement. 

G . I I ' imir icial Assets — Financia l asseis are composed o f loans and receivables carried at amort ized 
cost , inc luding trade and other receivables, and f inancial asscis measured at fair value through income, 
i nc lud ing derivative financial instruments (sec Note 1-1). 

G . 2 Fntt inci t i l L iab i l i t ies — Financia l l inbi l i l ies include borrowings, trade and other payables, der ivai ivc 
r inat icial insmimci t ls . capital renewal and replacement obl igations, and other f inancial l iabi l i t ies. 
F inanc ia l l iabi l i t ies arc broken down into current and noncurrcnt l iab i l i l i cs in the consolidated balance 
sheets (sec Note 14). Current f inancial l iabi l i t ies pr imar i ly include: 

i i . F inancia l l iabil i t ies wi lh a settlement or niaiurity date wi th in 12 months o f the balance sheet date 

b. F inancia l l iabi l i t ies in respect o f which the Company does not have an uncondit ional right io defer 

settlement for at least 12 months after the balance sheet date 

c. F inancia l l iabi l i t ies held pr imar i ly for trading purposes 

d . Derivat ive financial instniments qua l i fy ing as fair value and cash f low hedges where the underly ing 
is c lassi f ied as a current item 

e. A l l commodi ty derivatives not qua l i fy ing as hedges 

Bo r row ings arc measured ai amort ized cost; any dif ference between proceeds, net o f transaction costs, 

a n d ihe redemption value is recognized in the income statements over the period o f t he borrowings using 

the effective interest method. 

G . J DeriYatiYes und Hedge A c c a u n i m g — The Company uses derivative ins imments to manage and 

reduce i l s exposure to market risks arising from fluctuations in interest rales, foreign currency exchange 

rates, and commodi i y pr ices, main ly for natural gas and electr ic i ly (see Note 14). 

G.-1 Dej int i i tm a n d Scope o f Derirttttxv Instniments — Derivat ive instniments are contracts; (i) whose 

va lue changes in response to the change in one or more observable variables, (ii) thai do not require any 

mater ia l init ial net investment, and (ii i) thai ore sc l l led nl a future dale. 

De r i va i i v c insimments include swaps, opt ions, futures and swaptions. as we l l as forward commitments 

to purchase or sell l isted and unl isted securities, and firm commitments or options to purchase or sell 

n o n financial assets thai involve physical del ivery o f ihe underly ing commodi ty . Electr ic i ty and natural 

gas purchase and sale contracts are analyzed systematical ly to determine whether they represent 

purchases and sales arising in ihe ordinaiy course o f business, whereby they may noi fall within the 

scope o f I A S 39. 
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T h c first step o fde tc rmin ing whether the derivat ive instrument falls within the scope o f IAS 39 consists 
o f demonstrating that the contract was entered into and conl inues to be held for Ihe purpose o f a 
purchase or sale w i l h physical delivery o f ihe under ly ing commodi ty , in accordance with the C o m p a n y ' s 
expected sale or usage requirements in the foreseeable future in the ordinary course o f i ls operations. 

T h e second step is to demonstrate that the Company has no practice o f settling simi lar contracts on a nel 
basis. Forward purchases or sales with physical del iver) 1 o f ihe underly ing commodi ty that are carried 
out wi th the sole puq iose o f balancing the Company energy volumes are not considered by the Company 
as contracts that are settled net — the contract is not negoi iaied with the a im o f real iz ing financial 
arbitrage, and the contract is not equivalent lo a written option. The Company dist inguishes belween 
contracts that are equivalent to capacity sales, whereby electr ici ty sales a l lowing the buyer a certain 
degree o f l l cx ib i l i t y concerning the volumes del ivered are considered transaclions fal l ing w i th in the 
scope o fo rd ina ry operations from transaclions that are equivalent to written f inancial options, wh ich arc 
acconuied for as derivat ive instniments. 

On l y contracts thai meet all o f t he above condit ions in steps one and two arc considered as fa l l ing 

outside the scope o f I A S 39. Adequate speci f ic documentation is compi led to support l l l is analysis. 

G . 5 Ivnbedded D e r m i u v e s — A n embedded derivat ive is a component o f a hybr id (combined) 

instntmenl thai also includes a uoiiderivntive host contract, whereby the effect o f a port ion o f t he cash 

f lows o f ihe combined instrument vary s imi lar ly to a stand-alone derivative. The Company 's contracts 

that typ ica l ly coniain embedded derivai ives are contracts with clauses or options affect ing Ihe conlract 

price, vo lume, or ma lur i l y . Th is is pr imari ly the case w i th contracts for the purchase or sale o f 

nonf innncial assets, whose price is revised based on an index, lite exchange rate o f a foreign currency, or 

the price o f an asset other than Ihe contract's under ly ing. 

Embedded derivatives are separated from the host contract and accounted for as derivatives when : 

(i) The hybr id instrument is not measured at fair value through income 

(ii) I f separated from Ihe host contract, the embedded derivative ful f i l ls the criteria for c lassi f icat ion as a 

derivat ive instrument (existence o f tin under ly ing, no material init ial net investment, settlement at a 

future date) 

( i i i ) Its characteristics arc not c losely related lo those o f t h e host contract 

The analysis o f whelher or not the characteristics o f t he derivative are c losely related to the host contract 

is made when the contract is signed. 

Embedded derivatives thai arc separated from the host contract arc recognized iu the consol idated 

balance sl ice! at fair value, with changes in fair value recognized iu income (except when the embedded 

derivative is pan o f a designated hedging relationship). A s o f December 31 . 2010 Ihe Company had no 

embedded derivatives thai required bifurcation recognized into ihe financial statements. 
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deferred inxes are recognized for temporary difTcrcnces arising f rom goodwi l l for wh ich impu i rmcM 
losses ore not deductible or f rom the init ial recognit ion o f an asset or l iabi l i ty in a transaction which (i) is 
not a business combinat ion and (i i) at the time o f t he transaction, affects neither account ing nor taxable 
income. 

Deffeoed lax assets are recognized to the extent thai it is probable that taxable income w i l l be avai lable 
against wh ich the deductible lemporaiy difference can be mi l i zed . Deferred tax l iab i l i l y is recognized for 
a l l taxable temporary di (Terences associated w i l h investmenis in subsidiaries and interests in j o in l 
ventures, except i f the Conninny is able lo control the t i m i n ^ o f the ienn>orjry difTecence tevetsal and it 
is probable that the temporary difTercnce w i l l not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred taxes are 
rev iewed al each balance sheet date lo take into account factors, inc lud ing the impact o f tax law changes 
and the prospects o f recover ing de fencd tax asseis ar is ing fiom deduc l i bk temporary differences. 

N . 2 C u r r a i i Tax — Current lax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for Ihe year, ut i l iz ing 
tax rales enacted or subsequcmly enacted al the reporting date, and any adjustment to tax payable in 
respect o f previous years, 

O . F o r e i g n C u r r e n c y T r a n s l a t i o n — The Company 's consol idated f inancial statements arc presenled 
i n U .S . dol lars, wh ich is its functional currency. The results and consol idated f inancial posit ion o f all the 
C o m p a n y ' s enti l ies thai have a functional currency different from the presentation currency arc 
translated into the presentation currency as fo l lows: 

(a) Asse is nnd l iabil i t ies for each consolidated balance sheet i tem presenled are translated at the c los ing 

rate at Ihe balance sheet date 

(b) Income and expenses for each consol idaied income statement are translated at average exchange 
rales (unless this average is not a reasonable approximation o f t he cumulat ive effect o f the rales 
prevai l ing on ihe transaction dates, iu which case income and expenses are translated at the dales o f 
the Iransaciions) 

( c ) A l l result ing exchange differences arc recognized as a component o f equity 

W i t l i i n the consol idat ion o f t he Company ' s consolidated f inancial siaiements, exchange differences 
a r is ing f rom the translaiion o f t he net inveslmcnt in foreign entities, and o f borrowings and other 
cur rency instniments designated as hedges o f such invesiments. arc taken to shareholder's equity. 
T rans la i i on differences previously recorded under equity are taken to the consol idated income sinlement 
upon the disposal o f a foreign entity. 

G o o d w i l l and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisit ion o f a foreign entity arc treated as asseis 

ar id l iobil ittes o f the foreign entity and translated al the year-end exchange rale. 

P . P rov i s ions — The Company records a provis ion where it has a present obl igat ion (legal or 
cons lmc l i ve ) . the settlement o f wh ich is more l ike ly lhan not to result in an outf low o f resources, and the 
amount can be rel iably cst imaled, 

/ ' . / Ansel Retirement Obl igat ions — T h e Company accounts for asset retirement obl igations in 
accordance with IAS 16, and IAS . i7, R rav i s i om. Contingent L iab i l i t ies a m i Cont ingent Assets. In 
accordance with IAS 37, Ihe Company records the fair value o f an asset retirement obl igat ion as a 
l i ab i l i t y in Ihe period in which it incurs a legal obl igat ion for the retirement o f tangible long- l ived assets, 
coup led with a concspoud ing asset that is depreciated over the l i fe o f ihe asset. In accordance w i l h 
I F R i C t. C/tonjji!.'! in Dectmmnxsuming. Restorat ion am i S im i la r Ltahiht ies, after the ini t ia l 
measurement o f t he asset retirement obl igat ion, the l iabi l i ty w i l l be adjusted, or accreted, dur ing each 
repor t ing period to ref leci changes in the estimated future cash f lows underlv ing the obl igat ion (see 
No te 16). 
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l ' .21'ostemployment Benefit Ob l iga l ions a n d Other Long-Term Employee Benefits — The C o m p a n y ' s 
obl igat ions in relat ion to pension and other employee benefits are recognized and measured in 
compl iance wi th IAS 19. Employee Rcnefits. Accord ing ly , the cosl o f def ined contribution p lans is 
espenscd based rm the amoiml o f conMibul io i is payable iu ihe period. T h e Company ' s obl igat ions 
concerning defined benefit plans are assessed on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit 
meihod. Actuar ia l gains and losses resulting from changes in actuarial assumptions and experience 
adjustments are recognized direct ly in equity and are shown in the consolidated statements o f 
comprehensive income. 

Q. Share-Bused Paymcnti — Under IFRS 2, Share-based Payment, share-based payments made in 
consideration for services provided are recognized as personnel costs. These services are measured at the 
fair value of Ihe instniments awarded. Share-based payments may involve equity-settled or cash-seilled 
instruments. The Company docs not have its own share-based compensalion plan, but participates in the 
plans of its parent. As the shares are granted by the Company's ultimate parent, GDF SUEZ, the 
Company follows IFRIC Interpretation 11, Il-RS 2 — Group and Treastny Share Ultimate Tranxacnons. 

Q . l S lock Opt ion P l a n s — Opt ions granted by G D F S U E Z to employees o f the Company are measured 
at Ihe gram dale us ing a binomial pr ic ing model, wh ich lakes into account the characteristics o f ihe plan 
concerned, market data at the time o f gram, and a behavioral assumption in relation to benef ic iar ies. The 
value determined is recorded in personnel costs over lite vesting per iod, offset through equity. 

Q.2 Share App rec ia t i on Rights — In 2007, G D F S U E Z began lo grant employees in the Un i ted Stales 

share appreciat ion rights ( S A R s ) instead o f slock options. S A R s are also granted wi th certain employee 

share purchase plans. S A R s are settled in cash. Thei r fair value is expensed over the vest ing per iod o f 

the rights, wi th an ofTseiting entry recorded in employee-related l iabi l i t ies. Changes in the fair value o f 

the f iabi lUy are taken to income for each period. 

Q . J Shares G r a n t e d to Employees — The fair value o f bonus share plans is estimated by reference to ihe 
share price a! Ihe gram date, taking in lo account the fact that no dividends are payable over Ihe vest ing 
period, and based on the esiimated turnover rate for the employees concerned and the probabi l i ty lhai 
G D F S U E Z w i l l meet its performance targets. The fair value measureuienl also takes in lo account the 
nontransferabil i ty per iod associated with these instniments. The cost o f shares granted to employees is 
expensed over ihe vest in i ; period o f Ihe rights and offset against equity. 

Q.- l Employee Share Pnrchi tse P lans — G D F S U E Z ' S corporate savings plans enable employees to 

subscribe to shares al a lower-than-market price. T h e fair value o f ins lmmenls awarded under employee 

share purchase plans is estimated ai the grant date based on this discount awarded to employees and 

nontransferabi l i ly per iod applicable lo the shares subscribed. The cosl o f employee share purchase plans 

is recognized in full and offset against equity. 

R . E x p l o r a t i o n nnd P r o d u c t i o n — In compl iance with IFRS 6. Exp lo ra t i onJo r an i l Eva lua t ion o f 

M i n e r a l Resources, the Company uses a method based on the success fill -e f fons meihod to accouri l for 

Ihe cosis incurred. Unde r the successful-efforts meihod. with the excepi ion o f acquisi t ion cosis o f 

l icenses wh ich are capital ized according to IAS 38, a direcl relationship between costs inc l ined and 

reserves discovered is required before costs are capital ized, When proved reserves are found, previously 

capi ta l ized cosis are c lassi f ied from explorat ion asseis to assets in the development phase. If there is no 

proved reserve (dry we l l ) , previously capital ized costs are charged to operating cos l . 

Dur ing the development and product ion phase, costs arc capital ized to property, plant, and equipment i f 
it is probable lhai future economic benefits associated w i l l f low to ihe Compttny, and the cost o f ihe i tem 
can be measured re l iab ly . 
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removal ofthe sill, especially from ihe lailrace, was more challenging lhan inilially anlicipalcd. Tlic 
Slnlion relumed to service on November 21 si. The total cosl of ihe ouiage was $47.7 million, wilh 
S6,l million related to pans replacement (capitalized) and $41.6 million related Io silt removal. 
S21.2 million of (he total estimated silt removal costs have been capitalized as a new major maintenance 
asset at Northftcld that will be depreciated over the next five years, which is the estimated time until the 
nexi dewalcring major mainicnancc. The Company expensed costs DfS20.4 million as of December 31. 
2010 related to sill removal. Additionally. S6.S million ofthe costs associated with tindcprccinled values 
o f assets that were replaced were recognized as loss on disposal. 

The Company has filed an insurance claim for business interruption insurance to recover lost margin 
during Ihe Northfield Mottnlain outage. In addition, the Company believes thai a significant ponion of 
the $47.7 million is eligible for recovery through a property damage claim and has tiled an insurance 
claim for recovery. On Ociober 14. 2010, the Company requested partial paymeul on their insurance 
claim in the amount of SI4.S million for physical damage and SI7.3 million for business inicmiplion. 
The Company expects the property claim to cover essentially all ofthe silt-related costs and the cosl to 
repair/replace any equipment damaged by the silt. The Company has not received a response from the 
insurance carrier. Consequently, on December 6, the Company filed a complaint in federal court in 
Massachusetts against the insurance carrier. As of December 31. 2010. no receivables for the insurance 
claims have been recorded. 

The Company purchased an option to invest iu a Plainfield biomass plant in July 2009. On l-'ebniary 16, 
2010, GSENA exercised the option to reimburse the developers for the cost inclined on the project to 
date. On April 1. 2010. GSENA made the decision to noi move forward with the project. On April 15. 
2010, the developers made lite decision lo exercise ihcir option to lake back the project. GSENA had 
S6.5 million in costs in the projeel (S5.2 million capital), which under the terms ofthe contract is 
reimbursable by developers upon certain triggering events. GSENA is con (i mi ing to pursue 
rccovcrnbility of this cosi but as it docs not believe it is probable as defined by IAS 37, Ihe Company has 
impaired the full amount of these costs. 

The Company was recently subject lo tax audits by the Internal Revenue Service (IRS) for lax years 
2004-2007. The IRS began an audit 2008 and 200*9 on March 9. 2011. The results of ihe 2004-2005 and 
2006-2007 IRS field audits are in the appeals stage at this time. The Company established a S50 million 
reserve for these audits in 2008, in 2010, a portion ofthe reserve was released for issues that were 
effectively settled at the field level. As of December 31, 2010, the Company has a 535.4 million reserve 
(see Note 5.6). which the Company believes is ndequate for accntal under IAS 37. 

4. R E V K N U E S 

The Company's revenues for the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009. are as follows (in 
thousands) (see Note 2.L): 

Revenues: 
Electricity and thermnl 
Nalural gas 
Gross margin from energy trading 

S4.029.899 
1,131,821 

(11.590) 

S 3,541,OSS 
1,349,371 

78,620 

Total revenues S5.I50.130 S4.969.074 
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S. I N C O M E T A X E S 

5.1.1 Breakdown of Income Ta* Expense — Income lax expense for 2010 and 2009 consisted ofthe 
following (in I ho us ands): 

2010 2009 

Cunent (benefit) expense 
Deferred expense (benefil) 

Provision for income taxes 

(47,718) 
25.892 

42.833 
(55.763) 

S (21,826) S( 12.930) 

5,1.2 Reconciliation to Theoretical Income Tav Expense — A reconciliaiion belween the theoretical 
income lax expense and the Company's actual income lax expense is presented below (in Ihousands): 

2010 2009 

Computed " e x p e c t e d " tax expense at 3 5 % S (6,030) S 22,387 

Increase (decrease) in income taxes resulting from: 
Stale and local i ncome taxes — net o f federal benefi l 4.394 1,302 
Other income taxed al a rate lower/higher lhan siandard rale (606) 64 

T a x credits, p r imar i l y Section 45 crediis federal benefit - (9.045) 

Change in valuat ion al lowance, related to net operat ing losses 3.392 (11.607) 

Rev is ions in estimates o f deferred taxes 14.176 (17.893) 

Siandard t iming dilTerence adjustment (2.562) -
Impact o f pennanent differences due lo equity-based compensal ion 577 (2.268) 

Impact o f olher permanent differences — current year 675 -
Impact o f olher permanent differences — prior year (1.825) -
Ventus dual consol idaied loss reversal 920 3.698 

Div idends f rom Mex ican-cont ro l led foreign corporal ions 579 2.151 

Decrease in lax reserves (30.473) -
Revis ion in der ivat ive adjustment ( I .6I9) -
Mino r i t y interest and olher hook revisions (3.213) 
Oi l ie r (211) (1.719) 

Provis ion for income taxes 5(21.826) 5(12.930) 

The 2010 effective lax rate varies significantly when compared to 2009, primarily due to: 

• Decrease tn tax reserves based on re-measurement of tax benefil s related to audit controversy 

• Revisions in deferred taxes 

• Expirarion of IRC Section 45 renewable energy credits 

5.1.3 Deferred Tax Expense by Nature — Impacts on the consolidated slaicmcnls of income for the 
years ended December 31.2010 and 2009. are as follows (in thousands): 
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2010 2009 2010 2009 

Deferred lax nsscls: Deferred tax asseis: 
Loss carryforwards 5(22.042) S (36.740) Loss carryforwards 5 104.980 5 82.038 
Accruals and allowances (29.1.18) 40,134 Accruals and allowances 53,614 23.997 
Derivative insirumcnis 28,792 1.108 Derivaiivc instniments 18,245 47,037 
Tax credit carry forward. includinB AMT and Section 45 credits (3,064) 3,333 Derivative insimments — OCI 73.541 101.739 
Other (5.713) 9.359 Tax credit carry forward, including AMT nnd Section 45 credits 13.403 10.339 (5.713) 

Other 479 (3,880) 

Deferred tax asscis (32.545) 17.194 (32.545) 
Gross deferred tav assets 264.262 261.270 

Deferred tax liabililies 
Depreciation 60,304 (10.940) Deferred tax liabilities: 
Investments in partnerships (7,9091 (62.199) Depreciation (309.315) (249.012) 
Other 6.042 182 Investments in partnerships (44.372) (52,281) 

Other (6.201) (182) 
Deferred lax liabilities 58.437 (72.957) 

Gross deferred tax liabililics (359.888) (301.475) 
Net deferred tax assets (liabilities) S 25,892 5(55.763) 

(301.475) 

Net deferred lax liabililies S (95.626) S (40.205) 

5.2 Income Tuxes Recorded Directly inlo Equity 

At December 31, 2010 and 2009, changes in defencd taxes recogni/.ed directly into equity resulted from 
cash How hedges and can be analyzed as follows: 

Cash flow hedges 
Net investment hedges 

Total 

2009 Change 2010 

5101.418 5(28.596) 572,822 
321 398 719 

5101.739 5(28.198) 573.541 

5.3 Deferred Income Taxes — Analysis of the net defencd tax position recognized in the consolidated 
bainncc sheet at December 31. 2010 and 2009 (before netting ofdeferrcd lax asseis and liabilities by tax 
entity), by type of temporary difference is ns follows (in thousands): 

Deferred Inxes are reported in the consolidated balance sheets as of December 31. 2010 and 2009. as (in 
thousands): 

Noncurrem defened income lax asset 
Noncttrrent defencd income lax liability 

Net defened tax liabililv 

2010 

S 1.751 
(97,377) 

2009 

S 21.892 
(62.097) 

5(95,626) 5(40.205) 

The increase in nel defened lax liabililies is mainly attrihutable to increased accelerated tax 
depreciation, litis increase is ofTset by decrease in fair value of derivative instruments, and increases in 
tux loss carry for wards . 

5.4.1 Deductible Temporary Differences not Kecognized in the Consolidated BuiHnee Sheets 

The Company had unrecognized tax benefits relating primarily to Canadian and stale loss carryforwards 
and other deductible stale temporary differences in the amount of 541.7 million and 544.3 million at 
December 31. 2010 and 2009, respectively, that, if recognized, would decrease the cfTcctivc tax rate. 
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The expiration dates for the unrecoytized taxless cany forwards ai December 31, 2010. are presented as 
follows (in thousands): 

Years Ending 
December 31 

Ordinary 
Tax Loss 

2011 
2012 
2013 
2014 
2015 and beyond 

S 1.176 
4,2*12 

587 
1,373 

34.254 

Total S 41,672 

The Company has not provided deferred tax on the undistributed earnings from ils foreign subsidiaries, 
as ihe Company has no plans io repatriate earnings. This amounl may become taxable upon an aciual or 
deemed repatriation of asscis from the subsidiaries or a sale or liquidation of the subsidiaries. The 
Company estimates that ihe total ncl undistributed earnings upon which it has not provided defened 
taxes to be approximalely S222 million and S64 million at December 31. 2010 and 2009, respectively. 

5.4.2 tlncerlnin Tax 1'osiiions — A reconciliation ofthe Company's uncertain tax positions as of 
December 31, 2010, is as follows (in Ihousands): 

Unrecognized 
Tax Benefits 

Balance —January 1, 2010 
Decreases based on tax positions relutiug in 2009 
Increases related lo scttlemems with taxing authorities 

Balance — December 31. 2010 

S 66,356 
(31.533) 

530 

S 35.353 
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INTANGl BLEASSETS 

The Company's intangible asseis as of December 31. 2010 and 2009. were as follows (in ihousands): 

Power purchase agreements 
Fuel, administrative, operating and 
mainienance, and olher contracts 

Leaseholds 
E&P licenses 

Noncotnpete agreements and other 

Total intangible assets 

Intangible Accumulated 
Asset Gross Amortization Impairment 

5470,678 5(432.742) 5 

20.851 
20.510 
189,903 
50,289 

(8.715) 
(20.504) 

(12,692) 
(189,768) 

Carrying 
Amounts 

S 37.936 

12.136 
6 

135 
32.460 

S752.231 5(474,653) 5(194.905) 5 82.673 

2009 

Power purchase agreements 
Fuel, administralive. operaling and 
maintenance, and other conlracls 

Leaseholds 
E&P licenses 

Noncompete agreements and other 

Total intangible assets 

5470.678 5(365.973) 

37.094 
20.510 

189.938 
36.642 

(10.558) 
(20.498) 

(33.271) 
(152,112) 

5104.705 

26,536 
12 

37.826 
3.371 

5754,862 5(430.300) 5(152.112) 5172,450 

The majority of ihe Company's intangible assets have finite lives as they are related primarily to 
contracts, and are amormeij on a straighi-line basis over the terms ofthe respective contracts, which 
range from 15 lo 30 years, or are matched to scheduled fixed-price increases under the power purchase 
agreement. The Company has intangible assets of Si 2.9 million related to water rights and transmission 
credits with indefinite lives, as there is no foreseeable limit to the period over which the asset is expected 
lo generate net cash inflows. 

The carrying amounl for Ihe power purchase agreements is for Northeast Energy LP (NELP), a joint 
venture, and is being amortized over the life ofthe contracts through 2011 and 2016. The change in 
intangibles during 2010 is primarily due lo the amortization ofthe power purchase agreement (PPA) for 
NELP and the impairment taken on the E&P licenses. See discussion of E&P in Note 23. There was an 
addition to intangibles to the Choctaw Gas Generation facility of 54 million relating to transmission 
credits for upgrade of ihe customer's physical transmission system. 

Amortization expense for intangible and other assets for the years ended December 31,2010 and 2009, 
was 540.9 million and $45.8 million, respectively. 



7. G O O D W I L L 

Goodwill is ihe cosl of a business combinalion over ihe Company's interest in the fair value of 
identifiable assets, liabilities, and contingent liabililics al the acquisition dote. Goodwill is tested for 
impaiimcni each year ns of June 30. nnd upon review of triggering events in the second half of the year. 
No impairment of goodwill has been recorded through December 31, 2010. Movements iu the carrying 
amounl of goodwill at December 31. 2010 and 200'), are as follows (iu thousands): 

Gross amounl — January 1. 200'' S 873.353 

Acquisitions adjustment (5.960) 
Translaiion ndjuslments 26,265 

Cross amounl — December 31, 2009 893,658 

Acquisitions 1.493 
Translation adjustments 10.202 

Gross amounl — December 31. 2010 5905,353 

'f l ic 2009 acquisition adjustment is related lo a recalculation oftaxes rclntcd to the 2008 acquisition of 
FirstLight. The 2010 acquisition is from Astoria I — see Note 3. 

A l l goodwill CGUs arc tested for impairment based on daia as of June 30. 2010. The calculation ofthe 
recoverable amount of CGUs is delermined using discounted cash flows and the carrying amounl of ihe 
asseis. The discounicd cash (low method uses cash flow forecast covering an explicil period ofsix years 
and resulting in medium-term business plan approved by the corresponding business unit's business 
controllers and Cl iO, When the discounted method is used, value in use is calculated on the basis of 
three scenarios ("low." "medium." and "high"). The "medium" scenario, which management deems 
most probable, is usually preferred. The CGUs. as determined in accordance wilh IAS 36, are the 
primary subsidiaries listed in Nole 1, with the exccpiious of GSEMNA, which no longer has separate 
assets. The merchant asseis in ihe past were considered pan of GSEMNA and are now included with 
Generation. 'Fhc only cash flow that GSEMNA will independently generate is related to trading nnd 
origination, which does not rely directly on physical assets. The majority of GSEMNA activity relates to 
optimizing nnd protecting the value of GSENA assets: GSEMNA is no longer considered a siand-nlone 
C G U . 

The recov erable amounts delermined under the three above-mentioned scenarios are generated bv 
modifying the key assumptions used as inputs for the underlying models, and particularly the discount 
rales applied, 'lite discount rates applied are determined on the basis ofthe weighted-average cost of 
capital adjusted to reflect business, industry, country, nnd currency risks associated with each CGU 
reviewed. Discount rates correspond to a risk-free market interest rate and risks specific to the asset for 
which ihe future cash flow estimates have not been adjusted. The Company uses estimates and 
assumptions in calculating the recoverable amounl. If the key assumptions or eslimales change, the 
recoverable amounts may be diflcrcnl. 
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The major assumptions used to review the recoverable amounl ofthe CGU arc as follows (in ihousands): 

Cash — Generating Units 

GSENA — Gas 
GSENA — Generation 
GSENA — Retail 

Carrying 
Amount of Measurement Discount 
Goodwill Method Rale 

5245,449 DCF 7.2 % 
651,901 DCF 6.1-8.0 

8,003 DCF 10.3 

8. P R O P E R T V . P L A N T , AND E Q U I P M E N T 

8.1 Movements in Properly, Plant, and Equipment — Movemenls in property, plant, and equipment 
at December 31.2010 iind20Q9, are as lollov-'s (in thousandsV. 

Plu i t and CmptM CanilructlDn 
Land Equipment Et,P A l l t U L u i * In PrDgrei* 

C n o i h« iL mine — J in ium I .Mf iS — nt 
cult 126.102 I S.1I I.BJO 5 S4KK.745 I 470.214 S 6.297.1(11 

7 ! 21.817 : i . n t . 491.I2R 514,974 
Dii|xtiat< (9.2121 (K6.'J59| 
TntHfcr* 6.KJ2 (4S7.W71 
TnnsU l i nn 97 M.076 .1,209 7 ; . i s 2 

CmiH t r o t \B1UC — D c t c m b n J l . JOOfl — s i 
cosl 2 M 7 2 5.77 S.HI 1 21.916 i»i6..'75 506.904 6 . B 1 7 . m 

J l . J N J 1H ir.9.J24 1 W.H.I 6 
A iU j l i rm i tluc li> BLlditinnal piilchasc Df 

A i l o l u I J b . W I.III.WIK i . i r . : j 6 i . 

(15-1) ( S l U J - n (2001 (iO.WIl) 
Trnn i fcn (1 .0 i i ) 501.056 909 (502.4:5) <U15l 
Tr*n»h!vui .17 3 : * 0 7 210 I:.S5J 

iWi in t m l is luc — IXs tmbcr '1.201b — m 
Cent J 7.40A f i l l 1 21.97J 54((7.0S4 S 17.1.99H ( 8.15.1.148 

AfCUmLllnicil [IcpiccialiQn Anil iriijutiniwnl — 
Juniun t.2W9 1 - i ( I J 6 9 j S 6 l 1 • S l77.161| i U9 .0 I I ) S(1,4KS."60) 

D l i p u u t l l . ' B9 48.777 
Intpdinnent ( R 5 i l ) (9) (14.5401 
TTUitlatmn (n.ivi, (11.119. 
Ch i rgc for ihe veai 1211.0711 n.oss) (11.6911 (225.821) 

Accumutalo l tlcprccifllinn and iin|iainTicn1 — 
nccct i ihcr l l . I IJO' ) ( l . » ( l . 7 4 l | (1.055) lS7.r*7| (19.03 i l l 

D i ^v i id l t s : . i i i i 1.516 1 ) ^ » J 
ImpaLrmenl ( 2 : K 1 

(10.2J5) (S.KKI) 116.2711 
TrarataVKtB lf..(.-n) th.t.T<) 
T n i u f a * I JOP 15 1.515 
Chart:? r« the yeat 012.5JK) 12.659) tit.ust I.i26.585l 

AccumulnloJ dcpIECiiliun nml tmpiinncnl — 
[ ) « ™ t * l . ' 1 . 2 ( l l f l S C J K l l l t .KS6 .6 l 9 ) III 1.514) S l I S / ^ S i S H7.4f.9) S( : .004. WIS) 

C u m mp anKiiml: 
Jnminn I. 201)') S 26, '02 1 1.9J2.JJ4 1 S4I1.JS2 I 411^23 5 4.8 11.141 
Oetcmhci 1 | , :0 (M 26.472 4.215.070 IK.KKI 19S.70K 467.S84 J.I 27.015 
D c t r m l i j l l . I O l P (15.J72 10.4W .188.109 116^29 6,148.54! 
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In 2009. ilic Company impaired property, plnm. nnd equipment of S 14.5 million, primarily related to 
impainnenl ofthe Choclaw Generation Limited Partnership facility. The impairmem was the result of 
revisions to rmure cash flow estimates. These amounts are included in impairment of property, plant, 
and equipment in the accompanying consolidated statements of income. In 2010 ihe Company impaired 
asscis totaling $16.3 million, primarily related to impairment at Pinctree Power i-'itcliburg ("Fitchburg") 
plant ofS10.4 million, and l i&P ofS5.8 million (see Note 23), The SI0,4 million impnimicnt at 
Fitchburg was due lo proposed changes to biomass eligibility for the Massachusetts Renewable Energy 
Portfolio Standard Program, 'fhe Company viewed these changes as a trigecring event and noted that the 
discounted cash flows fair value for the Fitchburg plant was lower lhan the current book value of 
property, plant, equipment. Impairments taken prior to January 1, 2009, totaled S554.6 million. 

In 2010. GSGNAH reduced the useful life of lite Matthew LNG Vessel to coincide with the end of Ihe 
Atlantic LNG Purchase Contract (18 years) ns opposed to its original useful life (23 years). The driving 
factor for this change in accounting estimate by management is stricter emissions regulations on LNG 
vessels in the nonheast region, coupled with more efficient vessels being built over time. This resulted 
in a $4.5 million increase in dcpreciaiion in 2010 related to the Matthew LNG Vessel, The change was 
accounted for prospectively in accordance with IAS 8. Changes m Accounting eslimates ami errors. 

In 2009, loss on disposal of assets of S39.5 million is primarily related to the major outage replacement 
o f componeniizcd parts that had not been fully depreciated. In 2010. loss on disposal of assets of 
SI 6,2 million is comprised of S6,8 million due todewatering nl FirstLight (see Note?), SI.3 million 
related to ihe sale ofa portion ofBiopowcr and the remainder is related to Ihe major outage replacement 
o f componcnti«d parts lhai had noi been fully depreciated. 

The Company accrued a total of S3.1 million nnd SI 9.2 million in coustniction costs for property, plant, 
and equipment in 2010 and 2009, respectively. The Company also transferred S25.4 million and 
$8,5 million from other current assets to propcity, pluul. and equipment related lo maintenance 
performed under long-term service agreements (LTSAs) in 2010 and 2009, respectively. 

8.2 Capital Commitments — in the ordinary course of operations, ihe Company has entered into 
comntiiments related to ihe purchase or constniction of properly, plant, nnd equipment. The Company's 
projcclcd committed capital expenditures are as follows (in thousands): 

GSGNAH fNeptune) 
FirstLight 

11.359 
34.542 

Total development commitments 

Maintenance — LTSAs 

45.901 

697.067 

Total S 742.968 

See discussion of Neptune in Note 3. FirstLight started a construction project at ils Northftcld facility 
that will involve the overhaul of each ofthe motor-generator pump turbine units. The project includes 
strengthening of four rotors, three new turbines, four new generator windings, refurbished poles in 
existing unils. and a new transfonner. The project is expected to increase energy production efficiency 
and began iu January 2011 wilh a planned completion dale of May 2014. 

Certain subsidiaries ofthe Company have entered inlo long-term wnrrnnly Bgreemenls wilh Siemens and 
LTSAs with multiple vendors that provide for routine maintenance, major maintenance, and replaccmcm 
of specific parts covered in ihe agreements. The terms of the agrecmems vary. 
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Bono wing costs capitalized on const ruction-in-progress expenditures were $3 million and $ i 5.3 million 
in 2010 nnd 2009. respectively. 

9. INVESTMEN TS IN ASSOCIATES 

9.1 Breakdown of Investments in Associnlcs — Breakdown of investments in associates as of 
December 31. 2010 nnd 2009, are as follows (in ihousands): 

Carrying Amount ot 
Invettmenti In AHoclate* 

Share in Nel tncom* 
ot Attociatct 

pDrccnugt December 31, December 11, December 31, Otcvmlwr 31. 
Intcrcit 2010 2009 2010 1601 

Aiiotio Projed Ponncrs LLC 14.11 •/. s • S 73.5(.<i I (6241 
Astoria Proicel Partners II LLC 30 0 76.083 2K.103 i n (:.'74| 
SUEZA'WNAJDEGS DfLaniinE LLC 433 6S1 516 U07 
Shrcupon Red River Ulililies, LLC 3.909 5,01(9 IKflSI 612 

Tom! S R0j25 S 107.532 S(K44) t 11.55'J) 

On January 7. 2010, the Company purchased additional direct and indirect equity interests in Astoria I, 
After purchasing these interests, the Company obtained control of and consolidated Astoria I. 

9.2 Key Figures of Associates — Key figures of associates as of December 31, 2010 and 2009. are as 
follows (in thousands): 

Pctcentsge Total Mot 
2010 IntoIBS I Aviotft UaUlll lBi RuvunuQi Income 

Atiorio Project Pnnners 11 LLC 30.l> •/. S1.095.4S2 S 1.019.554 s S (6.7I9| 
SUEZ/VU.'NA/DEGS at Laniins LLC 30.2 1,7W 4.84-1 U 1 7 
Shreitpon Red i t i i c rU i i l i i i a .LLC 39.2 32.670 25.249 8.890 (2.061, 

Total S 1.1.11.020 S t.(l5S.S»7 S 13.734 S (7.4(0) 

Percentage Tolnl Net 
2009 Interest Ai»1a Uabllltlos Ravimues tncomo 

Attoria Pro}cc! Pannert LLC 14.11 •/. S 695.207 S 673J4S J227.I1J S 17.36] 
Anorio Projeel Purtnert 11 LLC 30.0 611.771 634.7111 (4.195) 
SU EZ/VWNA/DEG S ef Lnniirs LLC 39.2 3.020 1.293 4.868 3.078 
Shrccport Red Ri ic i Utilities. LLC 39 2 40.627 27.644 9.11') 1.613 

Twal * U57.634 S U 3 W W SI41.I0J 117.K57 

The Company adjusts its share of net income of associates for ihe depreciable portion ofthe premium 
paid for its investment in Astoria I and 11. 
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m JJS'VKSXMKNTS LN JOLV1' V E N T U R E S 

The: Company nccoums for its interest in joint ventures using the proportional consolidation method. 
Contributions of joinl ventures to the Company's consolidaied financial statements arc ns follows (in 
thousands): 

Contol ldat lor Current NoncunnE Cur r tn l NoMurr tnr C u m n t N«l 

A i H t l AlttB U i b U I K i U I M I U M RBVtnut i b i c o r w l L D i i 

M U c c c m b c t U . ^ i l D : 

Nnrthcart l : nc ip ' IJ* >(•% IS 5.487 5218.789 I !(..196 I 51.128 5151.754 519.029 

Vfinnviki tmc I'nrtntnhii' » t 556 4,029 l .m: 2.111 1.248 

I'cpen l^ntr^l)• S c i M m — S U U / . 

T t a n u U J C So ' . W 7.402 1.941 1316 869 

D r l u Tuumh ip IHil i t iei. L L C 481 2.717 2.71U 12 5 KB 241 

S U E Z - D t O S Solul iom I X C so 119 175 IKD 

S U E Z - B E O S nf M h u b u K L L C SI 4.497 15.157 2.091 14.061 I. '«8 

S U E Z - B F O S nt Kncht f l t j . L L C SI : . i 7 9 513 1.169 6^112 978 

suE/.-iMiosnrsiivM Otmtux: SI n : 2.475 ( ISl 511 440 

SUJC-lJIiOSBfOmnni Milti IXC SI S.K40 2.951 1M1 S44 541 

tJuinfLi M i l l * Encriiy 

t^quipincnt l ^ u i n p L L C SI 1,692 4.918 S U 6(1 

S U E Z - D E O S i . f f u w . b . L L C SI 4.914 9.131 2.0H7 9.927 2,461 

CafliDlld«twn Cur r tn l N e n c u m n l C u r n n l Noneumnl C u m n l N M 

P t r t t n u g v A t u n A n t n Luuuan U i b n i M i RtVt f lUM Incvnt t t D i i 

A t l J c e t m S n H . J I K i ' i . 

N'oflhc&tt l^ncxn*' IJ* S O W IM. I I t t 5291.095 511,129 5140,218 1129.110 S I 4,Mill 

^ In im^ lJ t>nc i'ditncrthip 50 5J(, 4.218 -17(1 950 2,105 1.J10 

t'creo Enngv S C I I K C — S U E Z 

T t a i m l . L L C SO :.«<i 7,945 1.174 7.056 1.112 760 

i W a TmMnhip Ul l l i l i in . U C i i 4S9 5.958 111' 5.921 681 .127 

s i n x - w o s sokiii.™ ux - 50 119 205 (10) 

s U B t - l M i U S ..f A A u b u b . L L C SI 1.872 16.818 2.214 12.459 1.814 

S U K Z - D K l S n f R o c h n t n . L L C SI 1.6111 884 711 6,291 619 

iHnZf.-mUf nt Silln Umn VIC SI 294 2.575 86 491 186 

StnOt- t l l - l lS e d i m n g t M i th L L C 51 46 1.165 401 544 14701 

'"iMingi M i l l * t inn^y 

Hqu ipmn l l . w i n ^ L X C SI 1.941 •8 i n 47 

Mln tZ-Dl i r iS nrT ima ' la . U . C St .1.110 9.416 mi 9.81.1 HOS) 

In several joinl ventures with Duke Energy Generation Services Holding Company. Inc. (DEGS), each 
partner has 50% of the voting rights, but cither 51% or -19% ofthe rights to the earnings and ncl asscis of 
the venture. 

11. I N V E N T O R I E S 

Major classes of invenlorynt December 31, 2010 and 2009. were as follows (in thousands): 

2010 2009 

L N G inventory S 16.861 S 20.466 

Natural gas and other fuel inventory 79.470 93,446 

Spare parts 25.089 17.528 

Green certif icates 5.284 5.843 

Greenhotrse {emission aflawances) 48.94S 46.213 

Other inventory 1.531 1,135 

Tota l inventories S177.183 5193,631 
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The Company had fair value adjusimenis of ils natural gas invemory of S(3.l) million and S3.1 million 
as of December 31. 2010 and 2009, respectively. 

12. O T H E R ASSETS 

12.1 Other Noncurrcnt Asseis — Other noncurrem asseis at December 31. 2010 and 2009. were as 
follows (iu thousands): 

Olher noncurreni assets: 
Supplemental executive retirement plan cash surrender value 
Rabbi trust 
Prepaid broker fees 
Olher long-term asseis 

Long-term reslricted cash grcaier than one year 

Total olher non current asscis 

2010 2009 

513,452 S 11.869 

21,527 19.694 

3,574 7.194 

21,317 26.780 
19,591 36.939 

S 79.461 S 102.476 

12.2 Other Current Asseis — Other cmreni assets al December 31. 2010 and 2009, were as follows (in 
thousands): 

Olher current assets: 
Prepaid expenses 
Currant taxes 
Other current assets 

2010 

S 88,165 
33,116 

4,160 

2009 

S 26.909 

4.447 

Total other current assets 

13. F I N A N C I A L INSTRUMENTS O T H E R T H A N D E R I V A T I V E S 

5 125.441 $31,356 

13.1 Financial Asseis — The Company's financial asscis arc classified under the following caiegories 
at December 31. 2010 and 2009. (in ihousands): 

Trade and other receivables 
Short-term notes receivable 

from affiliates 
Cash and cash equivalents 

Total financial assets 

2010 
Noncurreni Current 

S - 5595.664 

lf)0.20] 

Total 

S 595.664 

160,201 

S755.865 5755.865 

2009 
Total 

S 631.634 

3 (i.KO I 
152.410 

S 820.845 
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13.1.1 Lonns nnd Rrccivnbles Carried nl Amortized Cost — Loans and teceivnblcs carried at 
amortized cosl at Deccmbei 31. 2010 and 2009. were as follows (in thousands): 

Trade and other receivables — net: 
Trade debtors 
Trade-dcbiors-related accounts 
Unbilled revenue 
Allowance for doubtful accounts 

Total trade and other 
receivables — nel 

Collaicral cash — asset 

Noles receivable from afftliaies — 
cash pool 

Total notes receivable from 
afliliates 

Non current Current 

$339,508 
37.801 

189.301 
(21.427) 

545.183 

50,481 

Total 

S339.508 
37,801 

189.301 
(21.427) 

545,183 

50.481 

2009 
Total 

$422,327 
12.527 

171.330 
(7.948) 

598.236 

33.398 

36,801 

36.801 

Total $595,664 S595.664 $668,435 

Margin accounts receivable and payable represent primarily cash on deposit with or received from 
counterparties and brokers to satisfy margin (cash collateral) miuirements with respect to (inancial and 
forward contracts. Such deposits will be refunded back to the Company or the counterparty at the time iu 
which all obligations under ihe contracts have been fulfilled. 

13.1.2. Cushand Cash K<|uival?nts and Restricted Cash — The Company's financial risk 
management policy is described in Note 2.F. Cash and cash cquivalcnls totaled S 160,2 million and 
SI52.4 million at December 31. 2010 and 2009, respectively, which includes restricted cash of 
S26.4 million at December 31, 2010, and S28.9 million at December 31. 2009, and excludes non current 
restricted cash of SI 9.6 million and $36.9 million at December 31, 2010 and 2009. respectively. 

13.2 Financiiil Liabilities — Financial liabilities include borrowings and debt and trade and olher 
payables, as well as financial derivative inslrumems which are reported in derivative instruments line 
items in the consolidated statements of financial position. 
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The Company's financial liabilities other than derivaiivc instruments at December 31, 2010 and 2009, 
are ns follows (in ihousands): 

Noncurrent Current Total 

Total 

2009 
Total 

Borrowings (Note 15, 
financial debt and borrowings) $3,895,895 $506,229 54,402,124 $4.086.011 

Cash pool (payable) - 38.886 38.886 
Trade and other payables 430.300 430,300 397.715 

SJ.B9S.B95 $975,415 $4,871,310 S4.483.726 

13.2.1 Trade and Oilier Payables —Trade and other payables at December 31, 2010 and 2009, were 
as follows (in thousands): 

Trade accounls payable 
Accounts payable — related party 
Collateral cash 
Accrued expenses 

Total 

201O 2009 
Noncurreni Current Total Total 

$ - $231.945 
17.383 
1.750 

179,222 

$231,945 
17.383 

1.750 
179,222 

$251,379 
14,339 
2.200 

129.797 

S - $430,300 S 430.300 $397,715 

13.3 Vair values — J-'air values reflect the cash lhai would have been received or paid if ihe instruments 
were settled at year-end. The fair value of cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables, and 
imde and other payables are not materially different from iheir carrying amounts because ofthe shon-
lerm nature of these inslrumems and/or because ihe staled rates approximate market. 

At December 31. 2010 and 2009, the Company's carrying value oflong-ierm fixed-rate debt was 
$1.7 billion and SI.3 billion, respectively, wilh estimated fair values of approximalely $1.8 billion and 
$1.3 billion, respeclively (in thousands): 

Long-term fixed-rale debi 

Carrying 
Value 

Fair 
Value 

$1,651,558 $1,753,967 

Carrying 
Valua 

Fair 
Valuo 

$1,304,638 $1,326,298 

14. RISK:MANAGEMENT ACTIVITIES 

14.1 Risk .Manaeement Activities —Trading —The Company employs various lypes of derivatives 
including futures, fonvards. swaps, options, and other physical and financial instruments for the 
purposes of risk managcmeni and trading activities. The trading activities include both exchangertraded 
and bilateral comracls. GSEMNA conducts those trading activiiics to generate profits on short-lcrm 
differences in market prices. This trading activity is ceniercd on commodilics and geographical areas in 
which the Company has an asset presence. Trading activity is governed through the use of various 
limits, including value at risk (VaR). deal tenor, and location restrictions. GSEMNA also serves as a 
market maker for other Company affiliates by fulfilling those affiliates' hedge requirements. 
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Balance Sheet Treatment — The Company accounls for in nonlrading deriv atives at fair value on the 

balance sheet in accordance with IAS 39. A summary ofllte Company's trading and nomrading 

derivative short-term and [ong-lcnn assets and liabilities as of December 3 U2010 and 2O09,is as 

follows (in ihousands): 

The Company's currem and noncurreni derivative assets and liabililies at fair value by tvpe as of 

December 31. 2010and2009. areas follows (in ihousands): 

Dcrivatitc osstli st fair value Ihrough income; 

Dcmatiic insuumcau (including commodity 

derii otiies) — Usding 

Dem alive instmmcnls (including eommodit)' 

dcriialiies) — undesignated hedges 

Dcrivotiic imimmcnli — commcicial conUncts 

Touldcri iol i ie nssets at fair laluc through income 

Designated hedges: 

Commodit} 

Finnneiat 

Toud design ntcd hedges 

Tolol dentatj\c assets 

Dcnial i i r liabilities al fair value through income; 

Dcmomc instruments (including commoditv 

deri i allies) — trading 

Derivaiivc insimments (including commoditv 

demau'icsl — unlcsigmled hedges 

Derivative instruments — commercial contracts 

Dcrh alive mitnimcnts — llnnncial 

Tolol dcovuivc liabililies al fair value Ihrmigh income 

Designated hedges: 

Commodity 

Finoncial 

Toial dctignaictl hedges 

Tola! dcriNuliic liobilitics Sm6.'J54 t ;w.77r. S5I!1.730 

Ofthe designated hedge values above, fair value hedges had a fair value orSI3.4 million and 

S(i2.6 million as of December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively. Net iuvestmeni hedges had a fair value 

o f S(1.8) million and SO.9 million, ns of December 31. 2010 and 2009. respectively. The remaining 

designaied hedge value from above rclaies to transactions designated as cash How hedges. 

2010 2009 
Current Ndncurrcnl Current Noncutrenl Current NDneurctnl C u m n l Noncurrvnl 

Noncu r ron t Cu r ren t To ta l Tota l DcupnnlcJ h a l f e i 

Nalural pal 

K i i ^ B r d i / l u m m 

Suaj^ 
I 512 

62.757 

I -
1S.4S6 

( (27) 
(4.188) 

5 

(3.905) 

( 9 ! 

7.778 
s -

28.168 

( (370) 

(41.020, 
5 (4. 

t i ^ S I l 

s S 2(..35n S 26.550 S 50.460 
TuTfll 

2.1. Tf)1) 

W.Vfl 

84.996 

11,23(1 

105,271 

92,49(1 

71.427 

190.267 

115.175 

28 .560 

194.195 

IUIUIDI fat 

Eikclricity: 

KomBTcK/runrrn 

Snap 

61.269 

5.014 

18.486 

122 

1.129 

14,415, 

(90.559) 

(51.240) 

f1.905) 

151.078) 

121.5021 

7.869 28.168 

2.115 

62 

( i 1,2 901 

(85 j 871 

(71.5101 

IS395I 

(47.181) 

(25.8981 

4S.IK.3 

1.724 

82,74!) 

1 3 ^ 5 0 

las.m 
I5.0K3 

39.776 

f. 6.699 

Tolal 

t l cc i ix i tv 5.0)4 1.451 1141.799) r7;.580i 2.177 (157.117) 171,081} 
4S.IK.3 

1.724 

82,74!) 

1 3 ^ 5 0 

las.m 
I5.0K3 

39.776 

f. 6.699 

l- ' iMnci.! ' 

tntercil rate 

tixchonvc 
J 4 , 7 K 7 •M.I OK 14(1.895 106.475 

l- ' iMnci.! ' 

tntercil rate 

tixchonvc 11.159 

1.724 (11.415) (45.165) 
46.761 19.9.18 

(45.019i (15.9671 

S 120.783 S 2 0 1 . 3 7 9 

2010 

S331 .162 1300 .670 

2009 

To l l ! 

nnancial 11.159 1,724 (< 1.415) (45.165) 46.761 19.918 (4S/)19| 115.967) 

N o n c u r r c n t C u r r c n l Tota l Totnl cither 14.466 1,126 (21.109) (4.681) 1.111 29 112.1241 15.8191 

Tolal tk i ipruled 

l>nl|lci 196.108 144.787 51202.7581 51126.5.11) 555.961 150.512 11255^70) 5(110.4621 

S S I08 .B5S % 36.111 

47,83'.) 

7,194 

5.390 

7 4 . l i m 

j . n 7 K 

121.92(1 

13.108 

8.46R 

104.048 

1S.564 

6.72(1 

60.423 192.018 2 5 1 4 4 ] 162.443 

n.w< 
45.365 

] 6 7 j 2 5 

35.235 

248.689 

BO. 6011 

205.026 

81.006 

126.531 2112,7511 329.289 376.1132 
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Curnn l N e n c w t n l C u i n n l Vaneutranl Currtnl heneurival C i a i i m Kane u i r i nl 

Undm^ru l rd hcdpn 
SAIurhl pai : 

Fmi^iudVfiiiureB 

Swap 

t 459 

::.!>i7 

I -

i : .7 i i : 

S |6.496] 
(5 IK) 

1312901 

I (528) 

(7,771, 

5 291 

24 648 

5 21 

6.916 

S (8.1901 

(210)81 

I (.1,619) 

15,107) 

Tolal mtiiral 
p . 1.1SJI041 (8.697) 24.919 6.9.19 (112281 IB.926) 

! D « l n c i l i : 
KioniudiTuhirci 
Op1ion< 
Simp 

m 
45.K11 

1,421 
15 

K.IKI 

(12.514) 
(154! 

(21I.S2JI 

122.464) 
(68) 

(17.781) 

8,671 
1.221 

18.769 

7,674 

1 '1,075 

(13.429) 
(779) 

(20.1271 

(15.866) 

(14.567) 

Tolal 
clremciiy .m 11.MD (11.4121 (40.1)6) 48.IV.5 26.749 (14.1151 110.411) 

O i l p:oi)ucli — 
fmisn l i iTmun^ 290 ( 6 » * 1 1.H2 

Wra im i i IN.>ie21| 4.119) 4.864 574 

('.0781 (5.190) (1.4281 (1292) 

O U r t |S,SWI H.9K7I .lj695 1.174 260 85.1 420 4S4 

Tradin|i a w l i 
ami k tb i ln i r i 3 tJ5 ( l (108.8551 50,460 ( lo.111i 

conlnicTi I1.2W 60.197 (6J)( t l) (7.194) 7.116 21.424 (5207) 110.157) 

T o u l f a i i M l u t 1105 J 7 I 1K4.996 5(192.018) !160.421) 5 117.656 I56J.19 1(109.81191 1(52 J W I 

Conunerc ia l commcls marked l o markel as d isc losed in (he above Inhle refers l o conlracls thai support 
Ihe C o m p a n y ' s core business l ines, b in are requited lo be marked (o markci under I A S S 1). as ihey are 
n o i scoped out o f I A S 39 under the "own use" scope exception und tltcy do noi qual i fy us hedges. 
E x a m p l e s include medium-term and long-term sales o f nalural gas w i l h volumeir ic variabi l i ty, 
renewable energy credi i sales, and certain transportation capacity contracts. The table above discloses 
the unreal ized profit nnd loss o f t he contracts in each report ing per iod. Speci f ica l ly , the profit and loss 
ef fect o f t he appl icat ion o f I A S 39 to these comracls has been disc losed in the table above. The real ized 
income or expense from these commercia l contracts represents the physical settlement o f these comrac ls 
at contract prices, and is recorded iu gross margin wi th the remainder o f the Company 's commercia l 
act iv i ty . 

T h e "O the r " l ine in the table above is made up predominnnl ly o f l iqu id i ty reserves that are used to adjust 
the fair values o f derivative instniments f rom midmarkel prices to b id and ask prices as appropriate for 
purchases and sales, respectively. The l iquidity reserve and olher netting adjustments in the above table 
arc al located to assets and l iabi l i l ies in a manner that differs f rom the methodology used to nl locale the 
l iqu id i ty reserve to asscis on Hie l iabi l i l ies on the balance sheel. Th i s a l lows for the total fair value o f 
each o f t he assets nnd l iabi l i l ies in lite table above to match the balance sheet asset and l iabi l i l ies, whi le 
s t i l l reflecting the gross asscis and l iabil i t ies by category and type in I lie table above. 
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A c a i u n l i n g f a r ihe Chnn i ie in Risk M a n a g c m e n i Der ivat ive Values — the Company immediate ly 

recognizes changes in the fair value o f nonhedge derivai ives in mark to market on commodi ty conlracls 

other lhan trading instniments in the consol idaied siaiements o f income. The C o m p a n y appl ies cash How 

hedge accounting to certain o f i ls f inancial and commodi i y risk management derivatives and appl ies la ir 

value hedge account ing to certain o f i ls financial risk management derivatives. The Company recognizes 

changes in fair values o f derivatives appropriately documented as fair value hedges in earnings as offsets 

io the changes in fair value o f related hedged assets, l iabi l i l ies, and firm commitments. 

The Eurobond hedges discussed above arc the on ly instances o f fair value hedges. The earnings results 

from the Company ' s der ivai ives designated as fair value hedges and from the hedged item as o f 

December 31 , 2010 and 2009, are as fo l lows (in thousands): 

2010 20D9 

Fair value hedges 
Ga ins (losses) on the hedging instrument 
(Losses) gains on the hedged item 

Tola l fair value hedges 

S 5,220 S (7,335) 
(5,220) 7.335 

The Company recognizes the changes in fair values o f derivai ives appropriately documented as cash 

f low hedges o f forecasted transactions in e(|uily unl i l the hedged transaclions occur and are recognized 

in earnings. 

The fo l lowing table shows ihe year in wh i ch the Company expects ihe derivatives lhai i i has designated 

as cash f low hedges to affect earnings. The first table discloses the noi ional amounl o f t he commodi ty 

hedged forecasted transaciion (in G W h ) nnd the second table discloses the notional amount o f the 

f inancial instrument hedged forecasted transaclions (in thousands): 

Y e a r of E a r n i n g s Impact (GWh) 

2011 2014 

Commod i ty : 
Nnturnl gas 
E lect r ic i lv 

(7.194) 
19.110 

(5,597) 
8,514 

(3.449) 
2.032 

{1.054) 

196 
(17.294) 
29.852 

Total commodi ty hedges 11,916 2.917 (1.417) (858) 12.558 

Y e a r of Ea rn ings Impact (OOP's) 

2011 2012 2013 Tota l 

F inanc ia l hedges — 
expected swap scl t lcmeats $126 ,188 517,877 S33.136 S 8.305 S185 .506 

Total financial hedges S 126.188 S 17.877 S33.136 S 8.305 S 185.506 

The Company formal ly assesses, both at incepi ion and ol least quarterly thereafter, whether the 

derivatives lhai are used in fair value and cosh How hedging relnl ionships have been h igh ly effect ive in 

offsett ing ihe changes i n either the fair value or cash f lows o f t he hedged item and wltether or noi ihcre 

is a reasonable expec ia l ion thai the hedges w i l l continue to be highly efTective on a prospeci ive basis 

*fhe inefTective portion o f a hedging der ivat ive 's change in fair value is recognized i n earnings in ihe 

period o f change. W h e n it is determined Hint a derivative ceases lo be a highly effect ive hedge, the 

Company discontinues hedge accounting. 
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Tl ic movements tn equity resulting from the Company's cash flow hedge uctiviiy, including the 
recognition of ineffectiveness in earnings as of December 31.2010 and 2009. are as follows (in 
thousands): 

Equity movements: 
Losses recognized iu equity — effective portion ofllte hedge S (87.870) S(I7.255) 
Gains reclassified from equity into income — settlement 172.252 28,27l> 

Profit and loss — gains (losses) recognized for hedge ineffectiveness 8,538 (380) 

Accomuingfor the Settleim-nt o f Risk Manage mviu Derivatives — When the Company realizes its mark-
to-markci assets nnd liabilities related to its nonlrading risk management activities, il records thai settled 
resuli in operaling earnings. D ie Company reflects electricily and stcani sales as revenue and records the 
cast of purchasing fuel cotntnodities to satisfy those sales in purdinscs in theccnsottdtnedsiatcmcms uf 
income. For Ibeyears ended Decembers 1. 2010 and 2009, the Company recorded 5(259,2) million and 
$(385.6) million, respeciively. in gross margin for the settlement of risk manugemenl derivatives, 
including both designated and undesignaied hedges. 

Other Cammadmi Contracts — Al l ofthe Company's physical electricity capacity sales contracts are 
own-use contracts, which IAS 39 requires to be accounted for on an accnial basis. The matorily ofthe 
Company's retail electricily sales arc own-use contracts, which the Company accounts for on an accrual 
basis. 

The Company's trading and nonlrading financial and commodiiy derivative resulls as of December 31. 
2010 nnd 2009, arc as follows (in thousands): 

201D loo t 
EHpvn»> Tncorrw N i l E i p c n i e i Income Net 

finance coi l im hofT(«v*inps: 
iMcra t nn pjmf tannuiniEL inchjdm^ 

Kuaianicc flnd other Jcci 
HnnL and olher inicfefl income 
t ia in i ami l one* on heUpc* u r h o m m i n f t 

|4 , i l 'T j 
i ; .044l 

I -
4.07r. 

]fi.49S 

((2B2.9M) 
12.4311 
11.454 

5(259.722) 
(2.857, 
(6.02l> 

5 -
8.561 

20,180 

1(239.72:) 
S .1M 

14.156 

KinonciBl (c^pentct income (29 I.SIM 20.S74 070.9421 (218^0 ; ) 28,94 1 12I9.M,2) 

Commodi lv demative On**! income 
t Jmejili7xd change in iwdcii^nnlci i hett^ci 
Oci i f rutct l hedjic iM l f t tm-c t i c j i 
Unrat i /edchiu i fw in value of conunercial 

eonliBCH mnded n* marl j t 

( i ; . » : 4 i 
S.S49 

J5.2JJ 

(11.914) 
8.549 

45.23) 

(I.S5H) 
(IKOl 

(5,0021 

( U 5 8 I 
(181)1 

rs.nu:) 

M a d IM marLtt on cntrniHxIjh 
cmitracTi olher Ihon tradmp 
uu ln imenl ' (12/I2J) 5 ' .7"2 40,K5K (6.0401 (6.94(11 

f i r n i i insipin riom enersj t iadinglNnlc 4) (11.5901 (11.590) 78,620 78.620 

Tnial linnncial (cipcn«e| income 5 ( l l ( . .0 i0 j J74..1M, 11141*741 1(255.541) 1107.561 5(147.98!) 

14.3 Market R isk—The Company's commodity and financing aciiviiies subject it to ihe risk of 
changes in forward commodiiy prices, interest rates, and foreign currency exchange rales. To manage its 
risks. Ihe Company has established and monitors various controls, GSEMNA has established a risk 
committee composed of members of senior management lhai meets al least monthly to analyze any 
transaction lhat is not explicitly approved by GSEMNA's documented hedging policies. The Company's 
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trading activity is governed Ihrough the use of various limits, including VaR. deal tenor, and location 
restrictions, which the risk committee periodically reviews and updates. VaR measures the Company's 
maximum exposure lo an economic loss on its commodiiy portfolio over one-day holding period. 1: is 
noi an indication of expected results. The Company measures VaR at a 95% confidence interval. 
Trading VaR incktdes the tisk nttribiited to posilions executed in connection wilh trading activiiics. will) 
Ihe exception of the Company's storage-trading positions. Storage-trading activity includes storage 
capacity contracts, stored physical gas, and derivatives, such as swaps, futures, and options lhat are used 
to optimize the value of the stored gas. Slorage activity is governed by volumetric and tenor limits. The 
Company's VaR measurements for ils trading portfolio as of December 31,2010 and 2009, are as 
follows (in millions): 

Opening VaR: 
Decembers),2010 
December 31,2009 

Closing VaR: 
December 31, 2010 
December 31,2009 

Average VaR: 
December3t.2010 
December31. 2009 

MaNimum VaR: 
December 31.2010 
December 31,2009 

Minimum VaR: 
December31,2010 
December 31. 2009 

Trading 

S 0.04 
1.27 

0.39 
0.04 

0.31 
0.94 

1.22 
2.52 

0.03 
0.04 

Market risk arising from commodity derivative instruments utilized in risk managemem activities is 
assessed, measured, and managed using sensitivity analysis, together wilh other market risk exposure 
indicators. These sensitivity analyses are calculated based on a fixed portfolio ofrisk management 
derivaiives at each year-cud and may not be necessarily representative of fiilure changes in income and 
equity of ihe Company. The analyses are determined excluding the impact of commodiiy purchase and 
sale contracts enlcred into ivilhiu the ordinary course of business (''own-use" contracts). Sensitivity of 
income io markel risk arises mainly from economic hedges not eligible for hedge acconniing under IFRS 
(in thousands). 

P r e la >i Pit tax PfOtnx P r t t t w 

P r i c e Impact o n Impact o n Impact o n Impact o 

S c n s i t i v i t y A n a l y s I s M o v e m e n t s Income Equ i ty Income E q u i t y 

N a m i n l gas S J / M W h S (71.577) S 2 I . 4 R 4 S(84,7921 S 17.045 

Electr ic i tv S 7 / M W h 2 0 0 5 9 311,247 185.492 30 .842 

Coa l S10 / i an (1,600) 

E m i s s i o n rights S3/ton 645 164 
Capac i l y S 7 / M W 6.292 7,784 

14.4 Liquidity Risk — Because Ihe Company's risk management activities contractually obligate it lo 
exchange commodities and cash flows based on commodity prices al future dales, the Company is 
exposed to the risk lhai il will noi be able to purchase or sell commodities at ihose dates lo fulfill ils 
obligations. That liquidity risk can limit the Company's ability to mitigate its market price risk exposure. 



The Company applies a valuation reserve lo adjust Ihe fair value of ils mark-Io-market commodiiy assets 
s/rd liabilities to fair sslot:. Thai resen s is more ftt)h • cxpte'med in ihe Fair vahie o f finandsi insirameafs 
section below. The undiscoumed cash flows lhat the Company expecis lo receive or pay by the year of 
expected paymenl on ils derivaiivc conlracls as of December 31.2010 and 2009, are as follows (in 
millions): 

Da;ember3l.2()IO: 
Dcmomc linancia] liabililics 
Dcmali ic fmnncial assrit 

Tcnnl Dcccinbcr3],2l)10 

December 31. 2009; 
Drrii ainc rinancial liabililics 
Dcrivamc rinancial D S K U 

Tolal December 31, 2II(W 

< 1 Year 2 Yean 3 Yean 4 Yean 5* Yean Total 

206-1 
S(126 0) 

62.2 
S(4I.9) 

IK6 
S (7.91 

9.7 
S <4.l| 

42.6 
5(572.31 

339 5 

1(186 01 S (63.8) J (23.3) f 1.8 % 38.5 S(2?2.B> 

S(40J.l) 
236.0 

S (130.5) S (49.3) 
21.1 

1(16 2) 
7.2 

s (S.2> 
19.2 

S (605.3) 
375.3 

S(16SJ) S (38.7) S(2R21 I (9.0) s N O S (230.0) 

'I'lie Company manages liquidity risk through employing a number of internal controls, making use of 
nulling and olher anangemems to minimize requirements for posting collateral, and participating in 
shared working capiial arrangemenis wilh ils parent company and afliliated cnlilies. Internal controls 
employed include duration limits on trading and nonlrading iransaciions. limiling and monitoring open 
positions by location, limiting transaction locations, and moniioring cash sources and uses, 

14.5 Major Custnmcrs nnd Concern nil iom of Credit Risk — Credii risk relates to the risk of loss 
associated with nonperformance by counterparties. The Company maintains credit risk policies that 
govern ihe managcmeni of credii risk. These policies require an evaluation ofa potential counterparty's 
financial condition, credit rating, and other quantitative and qualitative criteria; this evaluation results in 
establishing credit limits or collateral requirements prior to entering inlo an agreement with a 
connicrparty. Additionally, the Company has established controls to determine and monitor the 
appropriaieness of these limits on an ongoing basis. Risk mitigation tools include, but are not limited lo. 
the use of standardized master contracts and agreements that allow for netting of exposures across 
commodities, rights to margin, and termination upon the occurrence of certain events of default. Credii 
ctihancemenis. suclt as parental guarnnices, fellers of credit, and margin deposits are afso utilized. The 
fair value of essentially all credit enhancements held by ihe Company is equal to ils noiional amounl. 
Credit exposure is monitored daily and the financial condition of our counterparties is reviewed 
periodically. As of year-end 2010 nnd 2009. respeciively. ihe Company held S20.1 million and 
S2 1.2 million of cash collateral and posted SI 5.9 million and SI.8 million of cash collateral wilh 
counterparties. Cash collateral provided to counterparties is included in the trade and olher receivables 
hem on the balance sheet, and cash collateral held is included in the trade and other payables balance. 

Other than cash collateral held, there were no instances in which the Company look possession of 
collaicral held as security during 2010 nnd 2009, 

Many of ihe Company's power-generating facilities have one primary utility or industrial customer 
nntlcr a long-lcrm contraci. A cogeneration facility may also have a single indusirial customer lo which 
it provides steam under a long-term contraci. The Company does not believe lhat these customers 
represent a significant credit risk. However, changes in economic, regulatory, or other factors could have 
a significanl effect on the Company's contraciual relationships. Successful financial operations of these 
plants are largely dependent on the continued perfomtance by customers and suppliers of their 
obligations under the relevant power sales contraci and, in particular, on (he credit quality of ihe 
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purchasers. If a subslantial portion of the Company's long-term power sales contracts was modified or 
lenninaietl lite Cnrnpany would be adversely alTecied to the extent that it might be unable to find oilier 
customers at the same level of contract profitability. 

GSGNAH's primary cuslomer base consists of local gas disiribution companies, electric power 
producers, and nalural gas marketers operaling in the northern Uniied States as well as an electric power 
producer in Puerto Rico. As of December 31. 2010 and 2009. GSGNAH's largest unaffiliated customer 
accounted for 32% and 25%, respectively, of gas sales and ils two largest unaffiliated receivable 
balances represented 59% and 55% of GSGNAH's total receivables, respectively. 

GSERNA sysicmaiically reserves a percentage of its outstanding receivable balances based on ihe age of 
that balance, GSERNA requires collaicral, in Ihe form of cash and letters of credii, from customers 
determined 10 be high risk for delinquency or defnult. Additionally. GSERNA carries nn insurance 
policy that pays a portion of ils uncollectible amounts. 

No individual counierpany of GSERNA. GSEMNA. or GSEGNA presented a significanl concentration 
ofcredil risk for the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009. Kurthermore. no significant past-due 
financial asset is impaired. The Company assesses financial nsscls for impairment once those asseis have 
become pasi due for greater than 60 days. The impairment assessment takes into necouni the 
creditworthiness ofthe applicable counterparty and circumstances that caused the asset lo become past 
due. 

The following table shows the Company's gross and nel exposures lo counterparties and specifics ihe 
exposure to its investment grade counterparties, "investment Grade" corresponds to transaclions with 
counierparlies with a minimum rating of BBB- by Siandard & Poor's. Baa3 by Moody's, or an 
equivalent by Dim and Bradstreet taking into account the existence of collateral. Idlers ofcredil. and 
parent company guarantees (in thousands): 

Investment 
Grade 

Investment 
Grade 

Counterparty exposure: 
Gross exposure 
Net exposure 

S 122.8 S 127.6 S 167.7 S 170.8 
122.8 127.6 167.7 170.R 

The aging ofthe Company's trade receivable exposure without considering the impact of collateral or 
other credit enhancements, ifany, held by the Company securing ihose receivables as ofDecembcr 31. 
2010 and 2009, is as follows (in Ihousands), 

Iota I Account Pail Put Aging 
Rictlvatilw Cunent Put Due Alovance 1-a Monflu n-aMentni (-13 Htwimi > 1 Yiar 

2016 

2009 

S 21.108 5 I6idlii s n . i o i 

J514.7S5 I1U4,«17 5 (7.9J8I 148.102 

14.6 Knir Value of Financial Instruments and Derivatives — 'Hie Company's nonlrading financial 
instriimenis consist primarily of cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, accounls payable, debt 
instnimenis. interest-rate swap ngreemenls. currency swap agreements, and commodiiy instruments. The 
book values of cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, and accounts payable are representative of 
I heir respective fair values due to the short-term nature of Ihcsc instniments. The fair value of debt and 
relaled-paily receivables and payables are discussed in Note 13, See below for details on the Company's 
inlcrcst-raie swap agreements, currency swap ngreemenls. trading derivatives, and nonlrading 
commodity derivative instruments. 
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The Company ilelcrmincs Ihe fair value of these conlracls using quoted prices, forecasted market prices, 
and i f ihose sources are unavailable, valuation models available from industry sources, and appropriate 
valnaiion adjustment methodologies. Certain valuation models include as inputs forward commodity and 
basis prices, which extend beyond the period for which liquid market pricing is available. In those cases, 
Ihe Company extrnpolnies forward price carves incorporating assumptions aboul seasonality and 
volatility of prices and other fadors specific to individual commodities and markets. 

The Company classifies the fair value measurements in its financial statements using a fair value 
hierarchy that reflects the significance of ihe inputs used in making the measurements. The hierarchy 
splits measurements in three levels. Level I includes only Ihose fair value measurements that are taken 
directly from unadjusted quoted prices in aclive markets for ideniical asseis or liabilities. Level 2 
includes inputs olher than quoted prices included in Level I that are observable either directly or 
indirectly. l :innlly. Level 3 inputs are those that arc not based on observable market data. The 
Company's fair value measurements by level as of December 31. 2010 and 2009. are as follows (tn 
thousands): 

Fair value by Level as of 
December 31. 2010: 
Portfolio managemem: 

Derivaiivc asseis 
Derivative liabilities 

Trading aciiviiies: 
Derivaiivc assets 
Derivaiivc liabililics 

Total December 31, 2010 

Level 1 

S 191.730 
(117.695) 

166.267 
(23B,'I59) 

Level 2 Level 3 

S 305.143 
(609.714) 

18,365 
(28.676) 

S 80.690 
(22.325) 

S 577.563 
(749.734) 

184.632 
(267.135) 

S 1.843 $(314.882) $ 58.365 5(254,674) 

Level 1 Level 2 

Fair value by Level as of 
December 31. 2009: 
Portfolio management: 

Derivative assets 
Derivaiivc liabilities 

Tripling nctivities; 
Derivaiivc assets 
Derivaiivc liabilities 

Total December 31.2009 

S 62,162 5 565.736 
(53.580) (817.024) 

262.901 
- (2491418) 

5 8.855 5(255.242) S 8,582 $(237,805) 

S 81,465 
(82.895) 

169.924 
(159.639) 

S 422.109 
(680.549) 

92,977 
(89,779) 

There have been no transfers of asseis or liabilities belween levels of fair value. 'lite movemem of 
Level 3 values between December 31, 2010 and 2009, ate as follows (in thousandsV. 

Assets Liabilities 

1-cvel 3 fair value •— December 31. 2009 $62,160 5(53.580) 
Gains (losses) recorded through earnings 23.540 28.006 
Gains (losses) recorded ihrough OCI -Settlements (4,574) 3.319 

Level 3 fair value — December 31, 2010 $81,126 5(22.255) 

Total gains or (losses) for the period recorded ihrough 
income statement for derivatives held at December 31, 2010 $45,640 S 1.593 
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Thc gains or losses recorded ihrough earnings and the earnings impact of settlements in the table above 
are recorded in the line, mark tn markel on commodity contracts other lhan trading instruments on the 
consolidated siaiements of income. The Company has noi recognized a gain or loss from Ihe purchase, 
sale, or issue of nssets or liabilities with a fair value measured using Level 3 inpuis. 

The Level 3 fair values ahove include liabililics related lo a long-term gas sales contraci. The value of 
ibis coniTBd is largely dependem upon ihe gas price al two localions in ihe nonheast United States. The 
pricing information for these locations is considered illiquid. In order to account for Ihe illiquidiiy ofthe 
prices, the Company reduces Ihe spread belween Ihe two locational prices when they are used for 
valuing Ihe gas sales contraci. The spread reduction is based on siaiislical analysis of price movements at 
each localion. If the spread had noi been reduced, liabililies would have been $4.5 million and 
54,6 million higher at December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively. Net earnings for 2010 would have 
been 50.1 million higher. 

In conneclton wilh the markel valuation of ils fixed-price contracts, the Company maintains certain 
reserves for risks and costs associated wilh these future commitments. These reserves represent 
valuation adjustments to reflect risks and costs associated with the liquidity of the portfolio and 
consideration ofthe time value of money for long-term contracts. Management believes lliese valuation 
adjusimenis adequately adjust the value ofllte mark-to-mar kct positions to reflect the value that would 
be obtained from the liquidation ofthe positions in an orderly, unforced manner. The Company applies 
these valuation adjustments 10 the value of the tolal hedge portfolio and allocaies ihe reserves to short-
term and long-term assets and liabilities from its trading and nonlrading risk management activities 
based upon the proportion of each short-term and long-term assei and liability in relation lo Ihe tolal 
portfolio value. 

Addilionally, ihe Company reserves material inception gaiits and losses on products traded in markets 
with limited liquidity. The Company regularly reviews these incepiion reserves for reasonableness, and 
the Company releases these reserves into earnings when the valuation risk is miligatcd. This is typically 
due to a market or delivery period becoming liquid, a transaction or delivery settling, or an illiquid 
transaction being matched with a transaction that fully offsets the commodity position. In the absence of 
one of these occurrences, inception reserves are reversed in the period or periods dttring which the 
underlying transaction is settled. 

The change in Company's inception valuation tewtves for the years ended December 31,2010 and 
2009, is as follows (in thousands): 

2010 2009 

Inception reserves: 
Beginning unamortized halimce 
Deferral on new transactions 
Amort izalion 

Reserve reversal due to inputs becoming observable 

Ending balance 

5 19.242 
1,249 

(7.349) 

5 28,271 
7,901 

(14.307) 
(2.623) 

$13,142 5 19,242 
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15. F I N A N C I A L D E B T A N D BORROWINGS 

Rita i t D t o m b H l l . 

Maturity IP to iOtn 

A IY i lmo l * * i : 

R c i n k i n g T incnraedi l : i l l l - 2< l ! J 1 tt6V^-l.15V. 1.7554-1 I 0 H 

Line o t t i t d i l iclnlcii lci GSTiNAJ l M I S 6 45 6 4 5 

Tcnn l iun tclnlcJ to ( i . W N A J O H 2.13 1.12 

Tcnn kkan rrtalct! In Hm Sprmgi 2015 1.93 1.92 

Term loan rein led mCjinntla Ine. (Vmtu f l 2011 : 6 6 1.5Bi i-2 39% 

Term loan letated in Astoria 1 2011 1.90 IBS 

Term loaniclataj Co C h o c u n O B T 2017 1.94 

Tcnn loan retalod ro V i U n p 2015 2.01 

Tcnn loan rcUlo j To Jinnii 2015 1.75 

Term Inan 'c 'a lKJmUSI ' IGNA 20)5 | K4 

Tcnn l ian i r b l c J l« G S K N A 2015 1 85 

Term loan rclnlnl lo 1: A: P 2014 U S 

T a m loan rclaldl lo HS1->JA on bchal l i.t K M ' 2014 7 13 2.12-1,73% 

Total alTiliaicd dehi 

Piojeci rmnneinf: 

I r s K l imncing oblipaimn-ChocHii Gencialinn 1 J 1 2047 7 2> 7.23 

Hqoip lca»c rmoncinp ubli^niicNto^lii iciaw Ocnr ta t i imU ' 2011 5-75 5.75 

Prnicel lonnj i r la l rd In W m W U I J W J ' "owa 2.50 
IVticcI losw rrlaicd io W m Wmdwr P O ^ T T 2015 1160 SMI 

I'mjctlloBniieblal lo Wesi Cope Wind Hnerji 2027 
Piojctl loom iclaicd lo Noruai Wnd Encrgv 2026 
Fcnn kkan Scnci A Viking Kncrpv Cflq> 
Tcim loan Sericj B ViLioi; Encrp Coip 
InduilTial rcxenuc bontr lelaled in Rvc^Ec Avraiam 2012 
llondf leblcd in Martau Hncrpr Corpniahnn 2015 
Senior Secured Uonds Scncrrebied [o Finill.LpliI 2026 
Second l.icn Credii Apjccmeni iclalcd Iu Fmd.iphl 2014 
Fiiil Lien Crcdn Agreemenl relaied lo Fiml.iphl 201.1 
ConilEUtti"" 1 J l an bacilli)-— WaTc1hl̂ \, fJcncraUL'n. M^J 2019 
CflniinietrDn 1 .oan Pactlity — Wfllnbun1 Gcncralion. 1 ±C 2020 
IVojeel loam rclalcd In Delta TonnihipUiiliiic«.li.C 2017 
IVijecl loan relaied lo Nnnhciiji Knerpi- IJ' (NIiI.Pi 2011 
Projeel loan relaied in NHLP 
IVoicct loan relaied to Nlil.P 
Tcrni Inan ieljled lo WmooAi 2012 
Revenue bond* — Pcpco Hwrpv SCIMCM 2022 
BmitryBnv 2018 
Astoria Pamicr. LLC fUl l 'Q INVKSTMIiNTS) 20! 5 
Ajtoria l-ncTBJ' U.C Lunn (].C Hatilily) 2015 
A-inria lineipy I.I.C 2nil I.itn IkW-hiillct maiumy 2021 
Ailnria Hncip- U.C 1 Hinl Lien I n n 2016 

Total prniec! rinancmp 

Coipomlr rinancmp: 
Foreign tirpmli Seiiei A 2011 
Koicipn hirtuli Seiiei H 20111 

Tolal rcrporale financing 

Tnial horrouinp? he fore accrued inleccsl and deferrctl 
rinancmg con* 

Acenicd mlcrcfl 
Drrctred rm-incinp co*ii 

Tnial boncu in tJ 

1 jm cmreni portMn oflnmoniiips 

Tolnl Irnig.tcmi boirouinpi 

6 20 
6.12 

(1.50 
015 
S Nl 
J Kl 
2 82 
| f * 
131 
7.27 
S46 

2 05 
(I 44 

MOO 
14 00 
2 50 

10 20 
7.10 

6 20 
6.12 
8 07 
3.12 
040 
0 29 
M l 
481 
2,75 
1 66 

1.11 

7.27 

K46 

7. ,I9 

9.77 

2 0.1 
0 42 
800 

4.50 
5.00 

1010 2DD< 

I 978.141 51,1411.709 
225/100 225.000 
250.000 250.000 

15.000 115.000 

143.174 125.817 
411.200 48.21H> 
69.175 

9.712 

76.811 

6 6 . . " 5 

127.815 

114.85? 

24.655 117,251 

2J7D. I1 I 2.249.979 

149.521 157.275 
IW 410 

11.050 
17.1118 41,109 

15.029 14.506 

10.026 9.K11 
14.370 

11.676 

6.600 12.100 
14,150 14.150 

196.750 104,750 
167.506 166.686 
.111.594 421.754 

71.197 7K.677 
17.7.10 IK.000 
2.812 .1.1.19 
1.144 .12.612 

57.200 
4.109 

569 946 
1,908 4.561 

58,164 22.11K 
47.172 

1.400 

219.727 

141.443 

1.975.114 1.605.551 

66.810 72.010 

144.060 

66.810 2I6.O90 

4.425/155 1.071.620 

21.871 22.522 
(7.9161 (8.111) 

4,441.010 4,0U6.UU 

545.115 655.565 

55.895.895 11.430.446 

15.1 Notes Payable to Affiliate — The Company has a line df credit wilh an affiliate of GDF SUEZ for 
up to SI.5 billion al December 31. 2010. The majority of the oulsianding borrowings under the line of 
credii bear interest al LIBOR, plus 1.5% to 3.85%. The Company had advances, net of receivables under 
this line of credit, of $1,20 billion oiHstHndingwwJSO.S billion avoiluble at December 31.2010. The 
amounts outstanding tinder the credii lines arc included in long-term borrowings and short-term 
borrowings ai December 31, 2010 and 2009. respeciively. as appropriate. 

15.2 Project Financing — During 2002, ihe Company sold and leased back the Choctaw 
Generation, LP facility in a transaction accounlcd for as a financing lease. The iransaction was 
accounted for as a financing lease due 10 coniinucd involvement in the form oT additional collateral 
provided by lite ewsting power contract. As a resuli of ihe sak/leaseback transaciion. the Company 
recorded a financing obligation equal to ihe sales proceeds received of S390.'! million, which is being 
amortiKed over the -IS-year term of the sale/leaseback agreement. The efTective annual imerest rate 
imputed to refleci ihe inlerest cost ofthe financing obligation is 7.23%, The future minimum lease 
payments, which include interest, were S939.8 million al the incepiion ofthe lease, with annual 
payments of approximately $32.5 million yearly over ihe nexi five years. 

Al l project financing is secured by subsidiaries' asseis. eycepi for the revenue bonds of Pcpco Energy 
Services — Suez Thermal. L L C and the project loan related lo Sucii; Energy Astoria. L L C . which are 
both secured by an irrevocable letter of credit. 

Certain ofthe Company's credii agreemenls contain rcsirictive covenants and place restrictions on the 
ariiouni of cash lhat can be used for making debt payments and mainienance and repair expenditures for 
plant facililies. The Company is in compliance with all such covenanis. 

15.3 Interest Rate Swaps — The Company and certain subsidiaries have enlered inlo intercsi-rate swap 
agreements for notional principal amounts aggregating to S l . l billion and SO.8 billion al December 31, 
2010 and 2009. respeciively. These agreemenls efTectively change the variable interest rate IP fixed rales 
rangini; from 1.22% lo 3.92% and 3.54% to 9.89% at December 31, 2010 and 2009. on Ihe portion ofthe 
debi covered by Ihe notional amnunls. The agreemenls expire at various dates through Ociober 2015. 
The Company has entered inlo a currency swap agreement related lo the foreign bonds that .fix ihe 
exchange rates ihrough maturity for the principal and interest. The agrccmenl expired in February 2011. 

The Company was exposed lo interest rate fluctuations on approximately SI.7 billion and S1.9 billiun of 
variable rate debi at December 31.2010 and 2009. respectively. In theevenl of defaull by the 
counierparlies on Ihe intcrcsl rale and currency swap agreemenls discussed above, ihe Company would 
be exposed to fluctuations in ihe inlerest rates and/or currencies. The Company does not amicipale 
nonperformance by the counterpanies. 

lS.4Letttv5 of Credit — A1 December 31.2010 and 2009. ihe Company had S914.5 million find 
S923 million, respectively, available 10 obtain leners ofcredil for operaiional obligations for its 
subsidiaries and affiliates. The Company had issued letters ofcredil of S523 million and $605 million 
under these available lines al December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively. 
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15.4 Scheduled Maturities — Scheduled maluriiies of borrowings ns of December 31, 2010. are as 
follows (in thousands): 

Years Ending 
December 31 Maturities 

2011 S 52D,43fi 
2012 72,835 
2013 437.232 
2014 640,018 
2015 1,307.709 
Thereafter 1.446.825 

54,425,055 

16. PROVISIONS A N D O T H E R LIABILITIES 

16.1 Provisions — Provisions for lite years ended December 31. 2010 and 2009, were as follows (in 
thousands): 

mot AddlDsni Olftpctftftl TfloiJaOon tact 

Nnncuntnt pfni ijtcTu 

AJIWI rt iucmciu oMi ju i iu iu 

I'nn-iiinn few pcn«iorn 

Accumublod |>Foic£l hencfit 

t ihl ipiLiai ( A l ' B C ^ — relijec IDCIJICDI 

K C I C T I T ' — cnt LruTiincnlal 

I 8.211 

11.922 

7.120 
I2 , !M! 

1 519 

f l 6B l 

1 (161) 
(6.7711 

(4.9461 

S 4111 5 12.477 

7.151 

3.474 

12.777 

Tolnl noncurrent provniion* 12,S!K 1.W9 371 (12.080) 401 14.879 

C u i m i l piovisinni^ 

Ptitvi iHm tur m oinlmpcncy 

811 

66.169 IS7 
1566) 247 

66.15f> 

Total cunenl piDvisinni 66,982 IK7 (566) 66.601 

Tolal proMironn S109.SW) 15,856 5 II!I5) 1(13.0801 i 401 5101.482 

3I10S Addiuani 
Amounb 

U i t d D l ipa i *J Trantladon 
Otcembtr M . 

1010 

Nontunc i i l piovinjonn: 

A ^ v l IchlnnciLl oMjgAlioiM 

I W i s i n n f ie |Tnsion< 

(AI 'HOj — icl ircc medical 

Rcvsy es — cnxinrnnvnlal 

I 12.477 

7,131 

2.474 

12.777 

52.54 B 

215 

I 1.147 

(1.642) 

f 2 l l l 

I (691) 5 185 t 15.966 

1.509 

2.6S9 

11^66 

Tolal nnnci inmi pn '^mon i 14.&I79 3.061 (2.706) 1691) 185 14.710 

C'unrm pim-i*iniw 

Dl\ t i i lure e iv l * 

rro^i i ic in fur lax conlmgierc} 
247 

.6r..>S6 510 
124 7( 

(11.513) 15.353 

Tolal current pnn-i i ipni 66.601 510 (11.780) 15.15! 

To la l proiivLdni 1101.462 S1.S91 Sl.l 4.4 86) 5 (69\) S 185 S 70.081 
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16.1.1 Asset Retirement Obligation •— Certain plani and equipment, inclitding conventional power 
stations, iransmission and distribulion pipelines, storage facilities. LNG terminals and E&P facililies. 
have lo be dismamled at the end of Iheir operaiional lives. This obligation is ihe resuli of prevailing 
environmental regulations in Ihe counlries concerned, coniraclual agreemenls, or an implicil 
commitment. The related liability is calcnlaied using the most appropriate technical and budgei 
eslimales, Upon initial recognition, the Company records a provision for the present value ofthe 
expected obligation at ihe decommission date and recognizes a dismantling asset as the matching entry 
for ihe provision. The amounl ofthe provision is adjusted each year to reflect Ihe impact of unwinding 
the discount or adjusimenis in the expected obligation based on new or improved information. The 
additions in 2010 were due lo the consolidation of Asioria asseis (see Note 3). The disposal of 

S0.7 million is attributed to West Windsor Power being released from their liabilily of removing steam 
pipe afler temiinaiion of the conlract. 

16.1.2 Reserves — Environmental — Environmental reserves are accnted when assessments indicate 
lhai it is probable that a liability has been incurred and an amount can be reasonably estimaied. The 
amounl recorded for environmental reserves represents management's best esiimaie ofthe liability ol 
FirstLight for environmental cost and takes into consideration sile assessment and remediation cosis. 

16.1.3 Unrecognized Tax Benefit — See Nole 5 and discussion of IRS audit in Nole 3. 

16.1.4 Legal Provision — See discussion of litigation in Nole 19. 

16.1.5 Pensions — See discussion of pensions in Note 20. 

16.2 Other Liabilities — Olher liabilities for the years ended December 31. 2010 and 2009, were as 
follows (in ihousands): 

2010 2009 

Olher noncurrem liabililies: 
Deferred revenues 
Employee-related liabilities 
Olher liabilities — noncurrem 

S 147.879 
33.795 
40.237 

5141,545 
29.775 
19.709 

Total other noncurreni liabililies 

Olher current liabililies: 
Income lax payable 
Oilier taxes payable 
Deferred revenue and olher operaling payables 
Employee-related payables 
Acquisition value of coal contraci — FirstLight 

Tolal other currenl liabililies 

Total oilier liabililies 

221.911 

29.393 
28,575 
63,466 

6,088 

127,522 

191,029 

7.163 
16.896 
35,187 
67,158 

8,029 

134,433 

S349.433 S325.462 

16.2.1 Deferred Revenue — Defened revenue is relaied to capacily level izalion where the revenue is 
recognized ratably over the term ofthe agreement (see Note 2. L). 

16.2.2 Pension and Other Employee-Related Liabilities — See Notes 20 and 21. 
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17. LEASKS — FINANCE AND OPERATING 

The Company is connactually engaged in currenl lease obligalions. whereby Ihe Companv has both 
lessee and lessor obligations in various airangcmcnls. In accordance with IAS 17, ihe following lables 
delincaic Ihe Company's contrachiolly obligated lease commitments: 

Nnnctmcclable Finance Leases for Which the Company Acls as ihe Lessee —The Choclaw 
Generation, LP facility is leased under a financing lease, as discussed in Note 15.2. Related io this lease 
nt December 31, 2010, S3'I9.5 million is recorded in borrowings in the consolidated balance sheel. and a 
net capital lease asset of S388.1 million is recorded in property, plant, nnd etpiipmcnt (see Nole 8), 

A reconciliaiion of maturities of liabilities under finance leases wilh the maturities of iindiscountcd 
fiilure iniuimum lease payments as of December 31, 2010 and 2009, is as follows (in thousands): 

2010 

Linbililies under finnncc leases 
Impxl of discoumine fuliirt tcprnmcnls 
of principal 

Yean Z-S 
Inctusfve 

Beyond 
Y u r S Total Ycic 1 

S349.52I % R.500 S 3J.1K2 SJW.,(I3II 

333,1113 25,0110 94,1127 21.1.076 

2009 
Ton I 

5357.275 

35tl.0K4 

Iindiscountcd fum 
si present ^ aloe 

leas pin menu 
*6S2.r>24 S 33.30') SI 29.209 55211. IQf. 5715.959 

Operaling Leases for Which (he Company Acts ot Lessee —The Company has two main lease lypes: 
(i) the Company leases ils office facililies under operating lease agreemenls, and (ii) the Company has 
entered into "hare-boat" charter agreements for LNG carrier ships, In 2008, the Company had 20-ycar 
charter agreemenls on Iwo LNG carrier ships. In 2009, ihe Company entered a 20-year agreement wilh 
an affiliate for a third ship. In addition to the base charter cost, ihe Company is required lo reimburse the 
carrier operator for ail cosis incurred in the operaiion ofthe ships. Specific to the "bare-boat" charier, 
only Ihe base charter cost is included in the schedule below. These leases contain renewal options and 
escalation clauses, hi 2010. the Company entered a novation agreement that assigned one of ihe charter 
agreements to an affiliate. 

Tolal lease expense for 2010 nnd 2009 was approximately 549 million and S51,9 million, respeciively. 

Under these operating lenses, a schedule of fiilure noncancelable minimum lease payments under leases 
with an initial or remaining term of more lhan one year is as follows (in thousands): 

Year 1 
Years 2 to 5 inclusive 
Beyond year 5 

Total future minimum lease payments at present value 

2010 

S 26.596 
87.526 
96.179 

S210.301 

Z0D9 

S 48.135 
157.862 
194.163 

S400.160 
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Operating Leases for Which the Company Acls as Lessor —These leases fall mainly within Ihe scope of 
IFRIC 4 guidance on Ihe imerprelaiion of IAS 17 (see Nole 2,M). They concern primarily capacity 
payments al the various plants. Operating lease income for the years ended December 31. 2010 nnd 
2009, can be annly/xd ns follows (in thousuuds): 

2010 2009 

Year 1 
Years 2 lo 5 inclusive 
Beyond year 5 

Totnl future minimum lease payments 

18. C O N T R A C T U A L C O M M I T M E N T S 

S 198,867 S 196,730 
739.473 740,931 

1.300.094 1,385,732 

S 2.23 8,434 £2,323.393 

In the ordinary course of its aciiviiies. the Company enters inlo long-term conlracls. some of which 
include "take-or-pay" clauses. These consisi of firm commiimems to purchase (sell) specified quantities 
of natural gas. electricily. and sieam and related services, in exchange for a firm commitment from the 
other party to deliver (purchase) said quantities and services. These conlracls are outside the scope of 
IAS 39. The main future commitments arising from contracts enlered into by the Company al 
December 31, 2010, are as follows (in GWh's): 

Within 
1 Year 1 to 5 yean > 5 yean 2009 

Total commiunenls ghen (purchases) 
Tolal commitment rceciied (siilesl 

7BO.;;J 
459.743 

91.357 
JK.7.11 

304 .MM 
141.337 

3*14.993 
259.675 

833.048 
432.542 

19. CONTINGENCIES AND LEGAL PROCEEDINGS 

Contingencies correspond to conditions lhat exist as ofthe date ofthe consolidated financial statements 
thai may result in a loss to the Company, but which will only be resolved when one or more future 
events occur or fail to occur. Contingencies include otusianding lawsuits or claims for possible damages 
to third parlies in the ordinary course of ihe Company's business, as well as third-party claims arising 
from disputes concerning legislative interpret alien. Such conlingenl liabilities are assessed by ihe 
Company's management based on available evidence and legal opinion. 

The Company and certain of its subsidiaries are defendants in various lawsuits and proceedings, some of 
which relate to discontinued operations ofa business acquired by the Company in 1995. While the 
outcome of these lawsuits and proceedings cannot be predicted with certainty and could possibly have a 
maieriat adverse effect on the Company's consolidated financial position, results of operations, and cash 
flows, it is the opinion of management, after consulting wilh counsel, that ihe ultimate disposition of 
such lawsuits will not have a material adverse effect on the Company's consolidaied financial position, 
results of operations, or cosh flows. 

GSGNAH had medium-term L N G supply ngreemenls wilh Gas Natural Aprovisionamientos SDG. S.A. 
("GN") (Trains 1 and 2) and Sociedad de Gas de Euskadi, S.A. ("GdE") (Train 3), all of which expired 
on March 31, 2009. In 2005. GN and GdE's suppliers, Atlantic LNG Company of Trinidad and Tobago 
and Atlantic LNG 2/3 Company of Trinidad and Tobago Unlimited (together. A LNG). initiated Ihree 
separale arbitraiion proceedings against GN and GdE, contending that Ihe contraci prices under ihe 
Train 1, 2. and 3 agrecmems should be increased in light of receni market developments and the 
diversion of these LNG supplies away from the primary market in Spain. The contract prices paid by 
SLNGNA under ils medium-term supply agreements with GN and GdE arc calculated by reference to 
the contract prices paid by GN and GdC under iheir underlying long-ierm supply agreements wilh 
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A L N G , 111 2008, llie mbiirniois issued iheir i-'innl Award in ihe Tniiu 1 arbiiraiion proceeding, and 
following several iwonilis negoiiaiion. SLNGNA and G N signed a Memorandum of Understanding 
(MOLT), which provided that (i) G N would pay S L N G N A SIOS million in equal paymcnisof 
S52.5 million on each ofDecembcr 7. 2009 nnd December 7. 2010, nnd (ii) SLNGNA andGN would 
work toward signing a new LNG supply agreement covering the 21-monlh period commencing April 1, 
2O01). The MOU was conlingenl upon, among other things, (i) the final resolution ofthe A L N G / G N 
Train 1 arhitiotioa by iJ*eTOU*ts.aM(itii.lxiiesotvit^ 

incorporating the provisions ofthe M O U . nffective April I, 2009, SLNGNA andGN executed an LNG 
Sales Agreement and a Selllemeni Agreement & General Release embodying the provisions agreed upon 
in ihe parties' earlier MOU. SLNGNA recorded a gain of S96.6 million at ncl present value as of 
Apri l 1. 2009. G N paid the first installment ofS52.5 million on December 7. 2009. nnd the second 
installment ofS52.5 million on December 7. 2010. The Train 3 arbitration was resolved by settlemenl in 
2008, which resulted in on increase in the Train 3 contract price ciTeciive April 1, 2008. for which 
S L N G N A has paid S9.9 million. G N notified SLNGNA on June 1. 2009. that the Train 2 arbitration 
proceeding had also been terminated. 

Millenium Inorganic Chemicals Inc (Millenium), a customer of SUEZ-DEGS of Ashtabula, applied for 
arbitration over S6 million in alleged overcharges between 2004 and 2009 and subsequently has been 
increased to S40.7 million (note that GSENA is only liable for 5\% of any amount awarded and DEGS 
wi l l be liable for remaining 49%). The alleged overcharges relate to a contract section lhai requires 
SUEZ-DEGS to provide services at a cost equal lo or less lhan comparable services available in ihe open 
market. SUEZ-DEGS has rejected each claim arguing that the manner in which Millennium calculated 
the markel-based rale was inconcct. Hearings before a panel of three arbitrators were held in June and 
closing briefs were submiltcdon September 29, 2010. On November 30, 2010. final reply briefs were 
filed wilh ihe arbitration board. Since November 30. 2010. the parties have agreed lo a selllemeni 
whereby contraci amendmcnis arc lo be completed by January 31, 2011. and execution and release of 
claims will be made shorlly thereafter. The proposal requires a joint investment in capital projects for 
SI 1.2 million, DEGS of Ashtabula will contribute S10.7 million (GSENA share al 51% and DEGS ot 
49%) ond Millennium will contribute SO.5 million. If ihe project comes in under SI 1.2 million, ihe 
savings will be shared equally belween SUEZ-DEGS of Ashiabula and Millennium up lo their 
respective capital contributions. As pan of this agreement, the existing assets of Millennium that were 
purchased at the beginning of ihe contract will revert to Millennium. In anticipation ofthe assel 
reversion, SUEZ-DEGS of Ashiabula has recorded a contingency loss for the nel book value of Ihe 
asseis forSI.2 million. 

The GSENA Retail unit operates in the ERCOT, M1SO. PJM. NVISO and NE-ISO competitive retail 
market ISO territories. In all competitive retail markets in which GSENA Retail docs not deal in 
physical energy (that is. all markets except ERCOT), electricity supply for GSENA Retail's load 
obligation is hedged financially through ovcr-tIte-colittler financial transactions and GSENA Retail 
schedules ils anticipated physical supply needs as a purchase of day-ahead power from Ihe ISO. 
Because GSENA Retail's actual load varies depending on weailtcr patterns and olher factors, anticipnied 
day ahead load never precisely equals aelual load. In some hours GSENA Retail ends up having 
purchased loo little day-ahead power and in other hours it has purchased loo much day ahead power. 
When the load lums out to be less lhan anticipated, excess energy purchased bv GSENA Retail is 
"automatically" sold by the ISO in the ISO's balancing energy market and ihe proceeds are credited lo 
G S E N A Reiail. Notwithstanding lhat such imbalance transactions arc automatic by the ISO and without 
negotiation of price, quantily or other terms by GSENA Retail, iu 2010, GSENA Retail's external 
counsel ndvised GSENA Retail lhat the U.S. Federal Energy Rcgulnlory Commission (l-'ERC) considers 
these imbalance transactions lo be wholesale power sales under the Federal Power Act icquiring 
G S E N A Retail to have market based rate auihorization from FERC (nn authorization noi held by some 
retail electricily providers, including GSENA Reiail). Consequcnily. GSENA Reiail promptly notified 
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FERC lhai GSENA Retail had participated in ihe "automatic" imbalance transactions and thai it did noi 
hold a wholesale marketing certificate. As a consequence, and assuming GSENA Retail transacted 
withom the required FERC authority, under usual FERC precedent GSENA Retail would have to refund 
ihe net profit earned from the imbalance iransaciions (netting all gain against all loss imbalance 
Iransaciions over llie period such iransaciions occurred) plus inieresl. Based on this calculation GSENA 
Reiail reporled lo FERC thai GSENA Retail would have zero refund liabilily. This reporl was made on 
Ti vrtWi-ffaWik. fcawi. FE,V.C YiWi'uitjad rfocmkm in ^YnoTiVngpeTiflVnes vir^ifiiuns of Vis Tegulmtons, 
and subsequent lo lllis ftrsl submission. FERC requesied GSENA Retail provide FERC wilh nn 
alternative calculation of those months where the profits from imbalance transactions in the month 
exceeded losses from imbalance transaclions in the monlh. without netting gain mouths against loss 
moulhs. Under this alternative refund liability calculation method, the aggregate profit from all 
profitable months over ihe period of Ihe imbalance iransaciions, including inlerest, was approximalely 
S300.000, While FERC has up to SI million per day penalty authority for violations of ils regulations, it 
has indicated thai il will not seek any penalty or reparations from GSENA Retail beyond the refund-
plus-intcrest obligation described above. GSENA Retail has created a reserve for ihe refund liabilily of 
approximately 5300,000 for these refunds. 

Neptune, a GSENA subsidiary, is involved in disputes with Advanced Production and Loading PLC and 
its successor entities (collectively. APL) regarding certain costs associated with ihe constniction of ihe 
Neptune Deepwatcr Port Neptune and is currcnily williholding payment in the amounl of S21.2 million 
ngainsl invoices owed to APL pending resolution ofthe disputes, of which S20.9 million was accnied in 
December 2010. The Company does not believe lhai ihe uhimaie resolution of these matters will have a 
material effect on our financial positions, results of operations, or cash flows. 

20. E M P L O Y E E B E N E F I T P L A N S 

Defined Contribution Plans — The Company maintains a defined contribution retirement plan (the 
"40l(k) Plan") for ils employees. Under ihe 401(k) Plan, each participant may elect lo defer taxation on 
a portion of his or her eligible earnings, as defined by the 40l(k) Plan, by direcling the Company to 
withhold a percentage of such earnings. The Company contributes 2% of each employee's defined 
compensalion and also tnatches 50% ofthe first 6% ofeach employee's compensation contributed, 
subject to a cap of S200,000. The employees vest immedialely in the Company's contri bin ions. The 
Company's contribution expenses were S6.7 million for each of ihe years ended December 31, 2009 and 
2010, 

Deferred Compensation Plan — The Company has a senior management deferred compensation plan, 
under which certain key employees may elect to defer any percentage or dollar amount of his or her 
compensation, bonus, or incentive compensation and instead have that amount credited to his or her 
deferral account. The Company does not match contributions lo this plan. The amount owed to 
employees under litis plan al December 31, 2010 and 2009, was S2I.5 million and S 19.7 million, 
respectively, and is included in other iioncuircni obligations in ihe consolidaied balance sheets. Such 
amoimis are invested in securities ihrough a mist and are included in other noncurrem asseis. The 
securilies held by the tmsi are considered available for sale, wilh the income earned and changes in 
market value adjusting ihe asset and corresponding liability by equal amounts. 

Perrormance Unil Plan — The Company has a performance unit plan (the "Plan") that provides 
incentive awards based on the Company's performance on selecied financial performance measures over 
a three-year performance cycle. Under this program, new performance cycles begin every year and end 
three years later. 'Hie program is subject to renewal annually for each cycle. Payouts under the Plan arc 
made after the completion of a given cycle and are made in cash. The Company recognized 
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S17.1 million ond S20.3 million for amouuls awnrded under Ihe program during 2010 and 2000, 
respeciively. 

Pension nnd Other Postrctirement Plans — The Company provides a retiree medical plan lo 
employees upon rctiremeni provided ilini, al the lime of iheir lerminniion, ihey arc covered under the 
Company's medical plan, are ai least 55 years of age, have completed 10 years of service, and are not a 
member ofa collective bargaining unit. The retiree and his or her eligible spouse will be entitled to 
substantially the same medical and dental benefits as those available to active employees under the 
pension and other postretiremen I plan option. The cosl for retiree coverage will be primarily covered by 
premiums paid by the retirees. Effective January 1, 2009, the former FirstLight retiree medical plan was 
merged into the Company's plan. Due to differences in benefits under the two plans, al the time ofthe 
plan amendmcnl. Ihe Company reduced its liabilily rclntcd to Ihe plan by S4.1 million, with the amounl 
related lo negative past service cost of fully vested employees of SI.4 million being recognized 
immedialely ns a gain, and the remainder of S2.7 million related to employees lhai had noi fully vested 
recorded direcily lo equity. The amounl recorded directly to equity will be amortized to expense over ihe 
average remaining vesting period of the unvested participants. Amounts expensed in 2010 and 2009 
relaied to the costs ofthis plan were S0.4 million and SO.5 million, respeciively. Under IAS 19, a 
liability for ihe accumulaied postrctiremeni benefit obligation of S2.7 million and S2.5 million at 
December 31. 2010 and 2009, respectively, has been recorded in noncurreni provisions iu the 
accompanying consolidated siaiements of financial position, wilh Ihe unenmed portion of $(2) million 
and S(2.8) million being recorded in equity. 

The Company has an unfunded Supplemental Executive Ketiremem Plan, which provides retirement 
benefits to certain officers. This plan is a nonqualified defined contribution plan and docs not have a 
minimum funding requirement. For the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009, the Company 
expensed SI.2 million nnd S l . l million, respectively, rclntcd lo this plan. 
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Ccrtain fomicr employees of FirstLight continue lo participate in two defined benefit pension plans. The 
plan benefits are generally based on years of service and compensation and are generally 
noucoiilribulory. Effective December 31. 2009. the pension plan for the FirstLight nonbargaining 
employees was amended to cense the accnial of additional benefits. EfTective December 31.2010. the 
pension plan for a ponion ofthe FirstLight bargaining employees was amended to cease the accrual of 
additional benefits. 'Hie curtailmenl rcsulled in a gain of SI.2 million and S7.1 million in 2010 and 2009. 
respeciively. Under IAS 19, a liability for accumulated posiretirement benefit obligation ofS3.5 million 
and S7.2 million has been recorded in provisions in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets at 
December 31, 2010 and 2009. respectively. The informalion relating 10 the Company's pension plans is 
summarized in the table below (in thousands). 

2010 2009 

Benefit obl igat ion (Beg inn ing o f t he plan year) 

Serv ice cost 
Interest cosl 
Benefit payments 
Changes in assumptions 
Actuar ia l loss 

Curtai lment gain 

S13,31f> 
518 
721 

(121) 
421 

(855) 
(1,162) 

17.030 
1.369 
1.062 

(65) 
421 
551 

(7.052) 

Benefit obl igat ion (End o f the plan year) S 12,838 S 13.316 

Change in plan asscis: 
Fa i r value o f plan asscis (Beg inn ing o f t h e plan year) 
Employer conl r ibut ions 
Benef i l payments 
Actua l return on p lan asseis 

S 6.165 
2,795 

(121) 
490 

3.108 
1.759 

(65) 
1.363 

Fair value o f plan nsscls (End o f ihe plan year) S 9.329 S 6.165 

2010 2009 

Information for pension plans wi th an accumulated benefit 
obl igat ion in excess o f plan asseis: 
Projected benefit ob l igat ion 
Fair value o f plan asseis 

S 12,838 
9,329 

S 13.316 
6.165 

Accumu la ied postrctiremeni benefi l ob i i got ion S 3.509 S 7.151 

In December 2010. ihe Company infomied employees of ils intent to terminate the nonbargaining 
defined benefit plan oiler it receives IRS and Pension Benefit Guaranty Corporation approvals. 

- 5 9 -



11. SHMW.-BNSEDCOMPE.NSNTION 

Cenain employees of ihe Company are eligible lo panicipaie in various sliare-bascd compensalion 
awards. The shares granled or used for the basis of ihe awards are ihose of GDF SUEZ. The plans in 
cffeci and expenses under each arc as follows: 

Expense for the Year 
Settlement 2010 2009 

Slock opiion plans Equity S 507 S S30 
SARs (slock option replacements) Cash 338 
Ronus/pcrformance share plans Equity i.392 1.698 
Employee share purchases Cash 1.309 . 
SARs (employee share purchase leverage) Cash (2.562) (5.402) 
Hedge of stock warrants Cash 1,344 7,533 

The Company has awarded stock options to certain officers through the slock option plans of GDF 
SUEZ. The options were awarded to officers at various times from 2001 through 2007, and each plan 
has a four-year vesting period and an additional four-year exercise period. The Company also awards 
bonus shares to certain employees under the bonus share plans of GDF SUEZ. Expense for each of these 
equity awards is recogniwd on a straight-line basis over the vesting tenn ofthe plan. 

In connection wilh the U.S. delisting procedure of GDF SUEZ, stock options granted to U.S. employees 
o f the Company were replaced in 2007 by a SARs plan, which entitles beneficiaries to a cash payment 
equal lo the profit ihey would make on exercising their oplions and immediately selling the underlying 
shares. 

Employees of the Company are eligible to participate in the GDF SUEZ Company corporate savings 
plans. They may subscribe io GDF SUEZ shares at a discount. The discount is expensed immedialely as 
compensalion expense, offset lo additional paid-in capital, as shares purchased are GDF SUEZ shares. 
The plan also entitles the employees to benefit from the positive performance of GDF SUEZ shares at 
the end ofthe mandatory holding period through SARs. The impact of these cash-settled SARs consists 
o f recognizing a payable to the employee over the five-year vesting period of Ihe rights, wilh Ihe 
corresponding adjustment recorded to compensation expense. A l December 31, 2010 and 2009. the fair 
value ofthe liability related lo these awards was $0.5 million and S3.1.million, respeciively, which was 
determined using the Black-Scholes model. The Company and GDF SUEZ have entered warrant 
agreemenls under which cash needed to setile theSAR liabilities will be received from a third party. The 
cost of ihese agreemenls has been paid by GDF SUEZ, and ihcir fair value has been recorded as 
administrative expense and addilional paid-in capital by the Company. Compensalion expense related to 
the SARs was taken on a sirnight-line basis over Ihe vesting lerm. Unrealized loss from Ihe change in ihe 
fair value ofllte warrant agreemenls was 5(1.3) million and S(7.5) million in 2010 and 2009, 
respectively. Over the five-year lerm ofthe SARs and warranl agreements, the nel income slfltcment 
impact will be zero. 
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n . REuaTiD-PATm* TRANSACTIONS 

The Company frequently engages in transaclions with the Parent and uhimate comrolling party, 
subsidiaries, joint ventures, and associates. 

Parent and Ultimate Controlling Party — The Company pays certain expenses on behalf of its Parent 
and affiliates. At December 31, 2010 and 2009. the Company had outstanding balances of S4.2 million 
and SI 1.7 million, respectively, due from ils Parent and affiliates included in accounts receivable in the 
consolidaied balance sheets. 

The Company receives certain services from ils Parent, as well as certain financial guaranlees. Expenses 
incurred during 2010 and 2009 relaied toihese services and guarantees were SI 7.2 million and 
S20.3 million, respectively. 

GSGNAH entered into a subctianet lease of one LNG camcr with iis Parent from April 2009 with a 
novation intent which was actualized in 2010. The Company recognized expenses of 50 and S3.3 million 
in 2010 and 2009. respectively related lo these iransaciions: GSGNAH also entered into a subchaner 
lease for another L N G carrier in 2009, which was reassigned lo an affiliate in 2010. The subcharter lease 
required that GSGNAH sought reimbursement for some of these expenses as they were incurred by the 
Parent company during the lease period. The Company recognized S16.3 million and 522.6 million of 
reimbursement income for 2010 and 2009, respectively, relaied to Ihese transactions. At December 31, 
2010 and 2009. ihe receivable was SO ami $1,6 million, respectively, related toihese transaclions. 

GSGNAH occasionally receives services from ils Parent. The Company, recognized consulting expense 
of $2.4 million and S3.8 million, for 2010 and 2009, respectively. Consequently, at December 31, 2010 
and 2009, the payable was S6,2 million and $3.8 million, respectively, relaied lo ihese transactions. 

GSGNAH occasionally sells LNG cargos to ils Parent. The Company recognized revenue of 
529.2 million and 538 million in 2010 and 2009. respeciively. from its Parenl. 

GSGNAH occasionally purchases LNG cargos from ils Parenl. The Company recognized expense of 
S77 million and $69.9 million in 2010 and 2009. respectively, related to these iransaciions. 

Other Related Parlies — GSGNAH occasionally sells LNG cargos lo aiTdiated companies The 
Company recognized revenue of 553.2 million and 525 million in 2010 and 2009. respectively. The 
related-party receivable related to these cargo sales was 518,8 million and SO at December 31, 2010 and 
2009. respeciively. l l i e Company agreed to a selllemeni from the delay of Yemen supply and 
recognized revenue of S4.2 million and SO.8 million in 2010 and 2009, respeciively, related to Ihese 
transaclions. The related-party receivable was SO and $0.8 million al December 31, 2010 and 2009, 
respectively. 

GSGNAH is under long-term charters with affiliated companies. The Company recognized expenses of 
S36.7 million and SO million in 2010 and 2009, respeciively, related to these transactions. G S G N A H 
also reassigned a charter lo an affiliate tn 2010. The Company recognized income of $13.3 million and 
$0 in 2010 and 2009. respeciively, related 10 these transactions. GSGNAH enlered a Contract of 
Affreightment agrccmenl wilh an affiliate in 2010. The Company recognized expenses of SI.9 million 
and SO in 2010 and 2009, respectively, related Io ihese transaclions. 

GSGNAH occasionally receives services from its affiliates. Al December 31, 2010 and 2009. Ihe 
relaled-party payable was $0,3 million. 
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GSGNAH occjisinnally purcliases LNG cargos from affilintcs. TTie Company recognized expense of 
$U8.8 million and SO million, for 2010 and 2009. respectively. Tite payable relaied lo ihese iransaciions 
at Dccembei 31-2010 and 2009, was S13.3 millioit and SO,3 million, respectively. 

GSGNAH recorded a payable balance at December 31, 2009, of S10.9 million for modification made lo 
the vessel SUEZ Neptune in order to comply with requirements by the receiving pipeline for the 
Nephine Deepwatcr Port. The balance was settled in 2010, leading to no owtstau'ding pavables at 
December31.20l0. 

The Company and ils subsidiaries receive cenain services from ils afTiliates, At December 31, 2010 and 
2009, the accrued rclalcd-pnny expense was S4.1 million and S6.1 million, respeciively. 

The Company tiud its subsidiaries enter into certain pass-through deals on behalf ofits Parenl and 
afTiliates. At December 31,2010 and 2009, llie Company had losses orS46 milUon m i S&7.4 million, 
respectively, which were offset by the third-party gains on these related deals, included in gross margin 
from energy-trading activities in the consolidated slatements of income. 

A subsidiary ofthe Company provides services lo ils associate. Suez Energy Asioria 11 (SEA 11). The 
Company recognized fees ofS2.1 million for lite year ended December 31, 2010, relating to a project 
consimction oversight agreemeni between SEA II and Astoria II. The Company recorded an intangible 
related to this contract wilh the associate and wilh other owner? ofthe associate (sec Nole 6). On 
December 31, 2009. a subsidiaiy ofthe Company provided services to ils associate, Astoria 1, and 
recognized admin istralive and managcmeni fees ofS2.1 million. 

See Note 15 for discussion of debt agreemenls with the Ulimate Parent and affiliates. 

Key Mnnngcmenf Personnel —The Company's key managcmeni personnel is composed ofllte 
members of Ihe executive commitiee. Their compensation breakdown as ofDecembcr 31. 2010 and 
2009. is as follows (in Ihousands): 

2010 2009 

Sh orl-term benefits S 10.752 5 10.234 
Post emp] oyment benefits 942 704 
Share-based paymenl 718 522 

Tolal 512,412 511,460 

23. E&P ACTIVITIES 

In December 2008, Ihe Company made a refundable deposit for Ihe purchase of offshore E&P licenses 
and assets in the Gulf of Mexico. On January 21, 2009, the Company completed llie acquisition of 
working interests ranging between 20% nnd 40% in eiglu offshore drilling licenses, and a 10% and a 
33% working interest in two producing assets, for a tolal group purchase price of S208.9 million. 
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E&P asseis include as of December 31. 2010 and 2009, as follows (in thousands): 

A. Gross Amount 

Acquis! lions 

Asset retirement obligation 

At Deccmber31.2009 

Adjusimenis related to Acquisitions 

At December31, 2010 
B. Accumulated amortization, 

Depreciation and impairment 

Depreciation 
impairmeht 

Al December 31,2009 

Depreciation 
Impainnenl 

At December 31. 2010 

C. Carrying amount 

At December31.2009 
Al December 31,2010 

Licenses 
(Intangible) 

S 189.938 

189.938 

. J2$) 

S 189,903 

(152.112) 

(152,112) 

(37,656) 

S 37,826 
135 

Assets In 
Development 

Phase 

S( 189,768) S_ 

Assets in 
Production 

Phase 
(Tangible) 

S 18.997 
2,939 

21.936 

38 

S (3,055) 

(2,659) 
(5,800) 

S IS.881 
10.460 

Total 

S 208.935 
2.939 

211.874 

3 

5 21.974 5 211.877 

S (3.055) 
(152.112) 

(3.055) (155.167) 

(2,659) 
(43.456) 

£(11.514) S (201,282) 

S 56,707 
10.595 

Impairment was recorded in 2009 for ihe license acquisilion cosl of Iwo licenses for which exploraiion 
activity look place but no reserves were discovered and no future exploraiion is planned, Impairmem 
was alsn laken on five licenses in 2009 and one license in 2010 for which no exploraiion acliviiy 
occuned, but based on revised information and Ihe resuli of drilling nearby, the operator decided lo stop 
drilling. The E&P nel book value al December 31.2010 is S10.5 million less the asset reiiremcnt 
obligation OFSJ.I million. 

The iwo producing asseis remain on the books, and are being depreciated on the units-of-production 
basis in line with Ihe depletion of ihe assets. 

-63 -



A breakdown of the ncl change in capilalized explorations costs as of December 31, 2010 and 2009. is 
as follows (in thousands): 

At December 31. 2008 
Capiiali/cd costs pending deicrmination of proven reserves 
Amounts previously capitalized and expensed during the year 

At December 31, 2009 

At December 31. 2009 
Capitaliz-cd costs pending determination of proven reserves 
Amounts previously capitalized and expensed during the year 

12.868 
(12,868) 

(120) 
120 

At Decemberj!, 2010 

In 2009. a total cost of S 12,9 million was paid through joint intcrcsl billings for exploration asseis and 
capitalized as incurred. In September 2009, it was delermined the well was dry, and as a result, the total 
cosi was classified as dry hole expense. In 2010, adjustments lo the joinl interest billings ofSO.l million 
were made, which reversed Ihe cnpitalizalion and reversed dry well expense. 

24. SUBSKQUKNT EVENTS 

On January 3. 2011. the Company enlcred inlo a loan agreemeni with GDF Suez CC for ihe amount of 
S3'13 million set to expire on January 3. 2016, which relates lo (he loan lhat was bridged as of 
Dcccmber31.2010. 

On Januaty 19, 2011, the Company sold ils E&P assets to related parties for a total price of 
SlO.'l million, resulting in a gain of S3 million. 

On January 27. 2011. the Company agreed to pay SS5.3 million toTntsi Company ofthe West lo pay off 
Ihe loan balance orS58.2 million for Bowery Bay thai was sei to expire in December 2018. 

On February 3, 2011, the Company's direcl parent, Stiez-Traceicbcl S.A., was sold lo Inlcmnlional 
Power pic (IP), a London-based company. On that same day. GDF SUEZ, the Company's ultimate 
parent, aciiuired a 70% interest in IP. therefore, rciaining conlrol over GSENA. IP is listed on the 
London Slock Exchange. 
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25. LISTOFT11E MAIN CONSOLIDATED COMPANIES 
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Applicant is part of the GDF SUEZ group of companies, one of the world's largest corporations with 
annual revenues of nearly $1108, and ranked as the world's No. 1 leader in independent power 
production. GDF SUEZ also ranks as one of the Top 10 Most Accountable Global Corporations by 
Fortune magazine and exhibits its proven financial stability with an "A" credit rating by Standard & Poor's. 
The GDF SUEZ group had 2010 revenues of $111.32 billion. Globally, the group of companies 
represents: Market cap of $72.95 billion, $6.2 billion revenue from North America, $3.3 billion revenue 
from South America, $107.6 billion revenue from Europe, and $4.1 billion revenue from Asia and Pacific. 
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APPLICANT'S EXPERIENCE IN THE ELECTRICITY INDUSTRY 

ROBERT WILSON - President and CEO 
Mr. Wilson has over 20 years experience in the natural gas and power industries. Mr. Wilson is 
responsible for the retail electricity business sen/ing commercial and industrial customers in North 
America. In his 12 years with GDF SUEZ, Mr. Wilson has engaged in a broad range of activities, including 
the establishment of the company's North American commodity trading, marketing, and risk management 
activities. In addition, he managed international energy commodity projects and merger and acquisition 
activities for the group principally in Northern Europe and North America and later oversaw sales, supply, 
and shipping arrangements for the company's liquefied natural gas (LNG) operation in New England. Mr. 
Wilson has most recently served as Head of Strategy, Risk and Portfolio Management, and Chief 
Business Developer for GDF SUEZ Energy North America. He studied Physics and Education at Queen's 
University in Kingston, Ontario, Canada, and earned a Global Energy MBA from the University of 
Houston. 

CRAIG SUTTER - Senior Vice President of Sales 
Mr. Sutter joined GDF SUEZ in January 2005 and is responsible for sales strategy and day-to-day 
operations for all customer segments and geographic territories. Mr. Sutter's experience in liberalized 
energy markets dates back to 1991 and includes senior management roles with Enron Energy Services 
and Sempra Energy Solutions. Mr. Sutter has more than 15 years of energy sales experience and was 
most recently the VP of Industrial Sales at Sempra. Mr. Sutter possesses a broad skill set that includes 
expertise in gas and power markets, operations and maintenance contracts, energy efficiency related 
capital projects, energy outsourcing and general management. He holds a Bachelor of Arts in Marketing 
from Wartburg College in Iowa and currently resides in Houston, Texas. 

JASON AUSTIN - Vice President and General Counsel 
Jason Austin joined the company in November 2006 as Vice President, General Counsel and Corporate 
Secretary, and is responsible for government affairs, regulatory compliance of retail operations, corporate 
transactions, litigation, risk management, and all legal matters impacting the retail business unit. Mr. 
Austin has over 18 years of experience representing energy clientele both in private practice and as in-
house counsel, and was most recently Senior Counsel for the wholesale gas and power trading and 
origination business unit at Fortis Bank. Mr. Austin is a graduate of The University of Kansas and The 
University of Tulsa College of Law. 

JAY HARPOLE - Vice President of Supply 
Mr. Harpole joined the company in August 2002 and is responsible for pricing, and portfolio risk 
management. Mr. Harpole joined GDF SUEZ from Dynegy where he served as Manager of Wholesale 
and Retail Structuring. Before joining Dynegy, Mr. Harpole worked for Exxon Chemical Americas where 
he served in the Controllers Department in Houston. Prior to working at Exxon, Mr. Harpole worked for 
Lamar Advertising Company in Investor Relations and M&A analysis. Mr. Harpole holds a MBA and BS 
degree in International Trade and Finance from Louisiana State University. 

VIKRAM KULKARNI - Group Vice President of Operations 
Vikram Kulkarni joined the company in June 2003 and is responsible for a number of critical operational 
aspects of GDF SUEZ including load analysis, forecasting, order fulfillment and information technology. 
Vikram has more than 10 years of experience in the retail energy space within operations, structuring and 
risk management functions. He was previously with TXU Energy and associate with Enron Energy 
Services prior. Mr. Kulkarni's staff manages the retail business unit's project management, load analytics, 
data analysis, business services, and customer service. He holds a Bachelor of Science degree in 
Economics from the University of Wisconsin - Madison, and a Master of Science degree in Finance from 
Boston College. 

DAVID COFFMAN - Vice President of Marketing 
David Coffman is Vice President of Marketing for GDF SUEZ and is a member of Applicant's Steering 
Committee for the Small Customer Initiative. David joined the company in 2007 and is responsible for 
strategic planning, product development, market research and advertising. Prior to GDF SUEZ, he 



worked at Aquila Energy where he served in various capacities including product development, risk 
management consulting and fundamental market analysis within the retail and wholesale markets. He 
also held similar roles for Black & Veatch Corporation. David earned a Bachelor of Science in 
Business Administration from the University of Missouri and his Masters of Business Administration 
from Avila University. 

DEENA MORGAN - Vice President and General Manager of Small Customer Initiative 
Deena Morgan is Vice President and General Manager of Applicant's Small Customer Initiative Group, 
and is a member of the Leadership Team and the Steering Committee for the Small Customer initiative. 
Deena Morgan has twelve years of experience in the energy market. Prior to GDF Suez, Deena Morgan 
worked at Reliant Energy as Vice President responsible for Small Business Marketing, C&l Strategy and 
overall P&L responsibility for non-residential business in PJM. Deena Morgan holds an Applied 
Mathematics degree from Texas A&M. 
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LICENSES AS A SUPPLIER OF ELECTRIC SERVICES IN OTHER STATES OF JURISDICTIONS; 
TYPES OF CUSTOMERS AND NUMBER OF CUSTOMERS APPLICANT CURRENTLY SERVES IN 
OTHER JURISDICTIONS 

Applicant is licensed as a competitive retail electric supplier in the following states: 
• Massachusetts - licensed by the MA Department of Public Utilities on August 10, 2011, License No. 

CS- 087; and 
• Maryland - licensed by the MD Public Service Commission on August 17, 2011, License No. IR-

2404. 
In additional to applying for a license as an electric supplier in the State of Pennsylvania, Applicant is 
currently in the application review process for licensing in Texas, Illinois, and New Jersey. Applicant will 
also be submitting electric supplier applications in Connecticut, Maine, Ohio, District of Columbia, and 
Delaware in late 2011/early 2012. Although Applicant is currently licensed in Maryland and 
Massachusetts and has license applications pending in Texas, Illinois and New Jersey, it does not 
currently serve customers and anticipates entering the market to serve customers later this year. Once 
licensed, Applicant will serve commercial customers in Pennsylvania. 

Applicant's parent company and sole managing member is GDF Suez Energy Resources NA, Inc., which 
is the retail operating group for GDF Suez Energy NA, Inc. GDF Suez Energy Resources NA, Inc. is one 
of America's largest providers of electricity to businesses and institutions, has over $2 billion in contract 
value, and an 85 percent rate of customer contract renewal. Applicant's parent company is licensed in the 
following States: 

CT - license 04-06-11 issued 9/2004 
DE - license 04-325 issued 11/2004 
DC - order no. 13472 issued 1/2005 
IL-certificate no. 050257 issued 6/2005 
ME - docket no 2003-120 issued 3/2003 
MD - license IR-605 issued 3/2004 
MA - license CS-037 issued 5/2002 
NJ - license -SL-0061 issued 8/2003 
NY -issued 9/2004 
OH - license 04-118 issued 7/2004 
PA - license A-110156 issued 9/2002 
TX - license 10053 issued 8/2003 

BECEWED 

UTIUTY COMNUSSWN 



STAFFING STRUCTURE 

Applicant's Small Customer Initiative Group will consist of the following internal staff to manage its 
operations: 

> Vice President and Group General Manager 
> Director of Supply, managing 2 portfolio managers 
> Director of Marketing, managing the strategic pricing manager, marketing and planning manager, 

and campaign and analytics manager 
> Director of Sales, managing a channel sales manager for each individual market (3 total), 

telesales manager, and manager of channel readiness 
> Director of Operations and Customer Care, managing an operations manager, customer care 

manager, and senior operations analyst 
> Director of IT, managing customer care and customer facing applications IT manager, back office 

IT applications manager, and system integration manager 
> Director of Business Control, managing billing manager, senior billing analyst, and compliance 

manager 

Applicant has contracted with Vertex Business Services as its outsourced billing, call center, and 
customer care group to provide customized billing services such as statement generation and mailing 
and payment processing; customer care services including call center, inbound and outbound call 
management, call center consulting, error handling and resolutions, online customer service, contract 
management, customer enrollments, accounts services, and customer management. Vertex as ten (10) 
years of industry experience, currently serving more than 70 North American utility clients, supporting 
approximately 23 million customers in outsourcing, operational, contract center services, and billing and 
payment transactional services. 

Applicant will also maintain an internal staff as follows: (i) operations and customer care staff to manage 
the day to day management of the Vertex account (outsourced billing and customer care provider) and 
direct contact, as needed, with customers for customer care and billing matters; (ii) supply group to 
manage pricing analytics and portfolio management; (iii) a marketing team to manage all marketing 
functions including strategic pricing, marketing planning, go-to-market strategies, new customer 
acquisition, and campaign management and analysis; (iv) an IT (information technology) team to 
manage the internal systems, databases, technical support, customer-facing applications, back-office 
applications, and system integration; (v) a business control team to manage all financial control matters 
including, billing, revenue, accounting, and settlements; and (vi) an exclusive sales channels to manage 
all direct and indirect sales channels and third-party relationships. 

Applicant will also offer e-services and after-hour services for 24/7 availability to customers. Applicant 
has also contracted with EGS, Energy Services Group to manage and support of EDI, XML and other 
data translation, transmission, auditing, archiving, business rule validation and, exception identification 
and resolution, TMS - Transaction Management Services, Market Portal, and Data Exchange.EGS has 
twelve (12) Years Industry Experience, serving over 80 retail energy suppliers and utilities in twenty (20) 
states. EGS provides services to companies providing energy services to millions of residential, 
commercial and industrial customers; Business Process Solutions; Operations; Transaction 
Management Services; Billing Services and Solutions; Wholesale Energy Services; Forecasting; 
Scheduling; Settlements; and Reporting Services. 
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U €J 

955 Jefferson Ave. 
Valley Forge Corporate Center 
Norristown, PA 19403-2497 

July 12,2011 

Mr. Jason Austin 
GDF Suez Retail Energy Solutions, LLC 
1990 Post Oak 
Suite 1900 
Houston, TX 77056 

Dear Mr. Austin, 

Welcome to PJM! 

As promised, enclosed are the signed membership agreements for your records. To ensure your needs are met, 

PJM has assigned Client Manager Helen Burnley, as your primary point of contact. She can be contacted at 

burnlh@pim.com or 610-635-3468. You may also contact our Customer Service Center at 866-400-8980 should you 

have any questions as well. 

Thank you, 

Leslie Yeager 

PJM Interconnection 

610.666.8980 | www.pjm.com 



Rabie, Naveen 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Subject: 
Attachments: 

yeagerl@pjm.com 
Tuesday, July 12, 2011 10:28 AM 
Rabie, Naveen 
Membership Approval - GDF Suez Retail Energy Solutions, LLC 
2011new-member-kit.pdf 

Welcome to PJM, 

GDF Suez Retail Energy Solutions, LLC has been approved for PJM membership in the Other Supplier Sector and will be 
announced at the next Members Committee ("MC") meeting to be held August 25,2011. If you have not already done 
so, you can register to attend by visiting PJM's web site at www.pim.com and selecting Committees & Groups. Original 
copies of your signed agreements will be mailed to the Members Committee representative for your records. 

To ensure your needs are met. Client Manager Helen Burnley will be contacting you over the next 5 business days to 
welcome you to PJM and answer any questions. You can also contact our Customer Service Center at 866-400-8980 
should you have any questions in the meantime. 

Feel free to visit the following page on our site for a complete list of PJM trainings: http://www.pim.com/training.aspx 
Please see the attached document for your complete Welcome Kit and pjm.com guide. 

Thank you, 
Leslie 

CesCie Yeager 
PJM Interconnection Member Relalions 
955 Jefferson Avenue I Norristown, PA 19403 I www.pjm.com 
610-666-4280 

How am I doing? 



PJM Interconnection, L.L.C. 
Third Revised Rate Schedule FERC No. 24 

Second Revised Sheet No. 171 
Superseding Original Sheet No. 171 

SCHEDULE 4 

STANDARD FORM OF AGREEMENT TO BECOME A MEMBER OF THE L L C 

Any entity which wishes to become a Member of the LLC shall, pursuant to Section 11.6 of this 
Agreement, tender to the President an application, upon the acceptance of which it shall execute a 
supplement to this Agreement in the following form: 

Additional Member Agreement 

1. This Additional Member Agreement (the "Supplemental Agreement"), dated as of 
ZOl( s is entered into among GDP Suez Retail Energy Solutions. LLC and the 

President ofthe LLC acting on behalf ofits Members. 

2. GDF Suez Retail Energy Solutions, LLC has demonstrated that it meets all ofthe qualifications 
required ofa Member to the Operating Agreement. If expansion of the PJM Region is required to 
integrate GDF Suez Retail Energy Solutions, LLC 's facilities, a copy of Attachment J from the PJM 
Tariff marked to show changes in the PJM Region boundaries is attached hereto. GDF Suez Retail 
Energy Solutions. LLC agrees to pay for all required metering, telemetering and hardware and software 
appropriate for it to become a member. 

3. GDF Suez Retail Energy Solutions. LLC agrees to be bound by and accepts all the terms of the 
Operating Agreement as of the above date. 

4. GDF Suez Retail Energy Solutions. LLC hereby gives notice that the name and address of its 
initial representative to the Members Committee under the Operating Agreement shall be: 

Jason Austin. 1990 Post Oak. Suite 1900. Houston, TX 77056 

5. The President of the LLC is authorized under the Operating Agreement to execute this 
Supplemental Agreement on behalf of the Members. 

6. The Operating Agreement is hereby amended to include GDF Suez Retail Energy Solutions. 
LLC as a Member ofthe LLC thereto, effective as of 
President ofthe LLC countersigned this Agreement. 

2.0) I , the date the 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, GDF Suez Retail Energy Solutions, LLC and the Members ofthe 
LLC have caused this Supplemental Agreement to be executed by their duly authorized representatives. 

Memb 

By: 
Name: 

Title: President 

By: 

Name: /J/ason A u s t i n 
Title: Issued By: 

Issued On: 

rP & Genera l Counsel 

RECEIVED 
OCT 1 9 2011 

« PUBUC UTIUTY COMMISSION 
SECRETARY'S BURtAU 

Craig Glazer 
Vice President, Government Policy 
April 30, 2004 

Effective: May 1,2004 



Application for Membership 
Between 

PJM Interconnection, L.L.C. 
and 

GDF Suez Retail Energy Solutions. LLC 
(Company's Name) 

This Application for Membership Agreement ("Agreement") is entered into between PJM 
Interconnection, L.L.C. ("PJM") and ("Applicant"). The purpose of this Agreement is to apply to become a 
member ofthe PJM and to participate under the PJM Amended and Restated Operating Agreement, 
Third Revised Rates Schedule F E R C No. 24 ("Operating Agreement"). The Applicant has read and 
understands the terms and conditions of the Operating Agreement. The Applicant agrees to accept the 
concepts and obligations set forth in this Agreement and the Operating Agreement posted on the PJM 
website.at: http://www.pjm.com/documents/agreements/pjm-agreements.aspx. 

The Applicant also commits to supply data required for coordination of planning and operating, 
including data for capacity accounting, and agrees to pay all costs and expenses in accordance with the 
Operating Agreement and all other applicable costs under the PJM Open Access Transmission Tariff 
("Tariff"). Such costs include but are not limited to: (i) payment obligations under Schedule 3 of the 
Operating Agreement; (ii) costs under Schedule 9 of the PJM Tariff; and (iii) potential default allocation 
payment obligations pursuant to Section 15.2 of the Operating Agreement (PJM may, under the 
Operating Agreement, declare members in default for not paying their invoices. If that occurs, PJM may 
pursue collection ofthe overdue invoices that exceed the collateral PJM holds from the defaulting 
member as well as take steps to terminate the defaulting members' membership. According to the 
Operating Agreement, all members are required to pay a portion of the payment default that exceeds the 
defaulting member's collateral held by PJM.) 

The Applicant will pay the annual fee of $5,000 for the remainder of the year of application upon 
notification of PJM application approval per Schedule 3. 

The Applicant recognizes that it shall become a member of PJM effective as of the date that the 
Applicant receives the supplement to the Operating Agreement in the form prescribed in Schedule 4 of 
the Operating Agreement signed by the Applicant and countersigned by the President of PJM pursuant to 
section 11.6 ofthe Operating Agreement. 

This Agreement will remain in effect until notice of termination is given in writing by the-authorized 
representative of either the Applicant or PJM. Any financial obligations must be satisfied prior to 
termination of the Applicant's obligations and responsibilities under the PJM Agreement. 

Applicant: ^nv Suez. Retefi l l Energy S o l u t i o n s , LLC lez* R e t a i l Eto 

Name&ason A u s t i n Title: v p & Genera l Counselpate: June 7, 2 011 

PJM Interconnection. L L C „ 

Signature: 

Name: ^ B 0 S t 0 D Title: President & C E O pate: J l W ^ V ^ f 
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From: (713) 638-1607 
Naveen Rabie 
SUEZ Energy North America 
1990 Post Oak Blvd. Suite 1900 

Houston, TX 77056 

Origin ID: HOUA • JH20) 108050225 

SHIP TO: (713) 636-1607 BILL SENDER 

PA Public Utility Commission 
Commonwealth of PA 
KEYSTONE BUILDING 
2ND FLOOR - ROOM N201 
HARRISBURG, PA 17120 

Ship Date:190CT11 
ActWgt 1.0 LB 
CAD: 302831MNET3210 

Delivery Address Bar Code 

Ref# si 
Invoice # 
P0# 
Dept# si 

™«t 7953 1117 8211 
10201 

THU-20 OCT A1 
PRIORITY OVERNIGHT 

17120 
PA-US 

MDT 

After printing this label: 
1. Use the 'Print' button on this page to print your label to your laser or inkjet printer. 
2. Fold the printed page along the horizontal line. 
3. Place label in shipping pouch and affix it to your shipment so that the barcode portion of the label can be read and scanned. 

Warning: Use only the printed original label for shipping. Using a photocopy of this label for shipping purposes is fraudulent and could 
result in additional billing charges, along with the cancellation of your FedEx account number. 

Use ofthis system constitutes your agreement to the service conditions in the current FedEx Service Guide, available on fedex.com. FedEx will not be 
responsible for any claim in excess of $100 per package, whether the result of loss, damage, delay, non-delivery,misdelivery,or misinformation, unless 
you declare a higher value, pay an additional charge, document your actual loss and file a timely claim. Limitations found in the current FedEx Service 
Guide apply. Your right to recover from FedEx for any loss, including intrinsic valueof the package, loss of sales, income interest, profit, attorney's fees, 
costs, and other forms of damage whether direct, incidental.consequential, or special is limited to the greater of $100 orthe authorized declared value. 
Recovery cannot exceed actual documented /oss.Maximum for items of extraordinary value.is $500, e.g. j'ewefry, precious metals, negotiable 
instruments and other items listed in our ServiceGuide. Written claims must be filed within strict time limits, see current FedEx Service Guide. 

https://vAvw.fedexxom/shippmg/html/en//PrintIFrame.html 10/19/2011 


